Public Document Pack

SCRUTINY BOARD (CITY AND REGIONAL PARTNERSHIPS)
Meeting to be held in Committee Roons 6 and 7, Civic Hall on
Monday, 21st July, 2008 at 10.00 am
(A pre-meeting will take place for ALL Members of the Board at 9.30 a.m.)
MEMBERSHIP
Councillors
B Atha S Bentley (Chair) C Campbell G Driver -

Weetwood
Otley and Yeadon
Middleton Park

C Fox -

Adel and Wharfedale

R Harington -

Gipton and Harehills

V Kendall J Lewis T Murray R Pryke A Shelbrooke L Yeadon -

Agenda compiled by:
Governance Services
Civic Hall
LEEDS LS1 1UR
Telephone No:

Kirkstall

Andy Booth

Roundhay
Kippax and Methley
Garforth and Swillington
Burmantofts and Richmond
Hill
Harewood
Kirkstall

Principal Scrutiny Advisor:
Steven Courtney
Tel: 2474707

24 74325
Produced on Recycled Paper

A

AGENDA

Item
No
1

Ward/Equal
Opportunities

Item Not
Open

Page
No
APPEALS AGAINST REFUSAL OF INSPECTION
OF DOCUMENTS
To consider any appeals in accordance with
Procedure Rule 25* of the Access to Information
Procedure Rules (in the event of an Appeal the
press and public will be excluded).
(* In accordance with Procedure Rule 25, notice of
an appeal must be received in writing by the Chief
Democratic Services Officer at least 24 hours
before the meeting).

2

EXEMPT INFORMATION - POSSIBLE
EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC
1

To highlight reports or appendices which
officers have identified as containing exempt
information, and where officers consider that
the public interest in maintaining the
exemption outweighs the public interest in
disclosing the information, for the reasons
outlined in the report.

2

To consider whether or not to accept the
officers recommendation in respect of the
above information.

3

If so, to formally pass the following
resolution:RESOLVED – That the press and public be
excluded from the meeting during
consideration of the following parts of the
agenda designated as containing exempt
information on the grounds that it is likely, in
view of the nature of the business to be
transacted or the nature of the proceedings,
that if members of the press and public were
present there would be disclosure to them of
exempt information, as follows:-

B

Item
No
3

Ward/Equal
Opportunities

Item Not
Open

Page
No
LATE ITEMS
To identify items which have been admitted to the
agenda by the Chair for consideration.
(The special circumstances shall be specified in
the minutes.)

4

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
To declare any personal / prejudicial interests for
the purpose of Section 81 (3) of the Local
Government Act 2000 and paragraphs 8 to 12 of
the Members Code of Conduct.

5

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
To receive any apologies for absence.

6

MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING

1-4

To receive and approve the minutes of the
previous meeting held on 23 June 2008
7

INPUT TO THE WORK PROGRAMME
To consider the attached report of the Head of
Scrutiny and Member Development providing
information and guidance to assist the Board
continue to develop its work programme for
2008/09.
Document A – Local Area Agreement – Pages 746
Document B – Leeds Strategic Plan 2008– Pages
47-82
Document C – Council Business Plan 2008-11 –
Pages 83-120
Document D – Corporate Assessment Actions –
Pages 121-126
Document E – Details of Partners – Pages 127136
Document F – Board’s Terms of Reference –
Pages137-140

C

5140

Item
No
8

Ward/Equal
Opportunities

Item Not
Open

Page
No
DETERMINE WORK PROGRAMME

141 144

To consider the attached report of the Head of
Scrutiny and Member Development on determining
the Board’s Work Programme for 2008/09
9

REQUEST FOR SCRUTINY REGARDING
UNIVERSITY FEES

145 182

To consider the attached report of the Head of
Scrutiny and Member Development outlining the
request for scrutiny which has been made by
Leeds University Union concerning University Fees
10

INQUIRY ON VOLUNTARY COMMUNITY FAITH
SECTOR - DRAFT TERMS OF REFERENCE

183 188

To consider the attached report of the Head of
Scrutiny and Member Development providing draft
terms of reference for an Inquiry on Voluntary
Community Faith Sector
11

PROGRESS REPORT OF THE BOARD'S
WORKING GROUPS

189 192

To consider the report of the Head of Scrutiny and
Member Development which gives a progress
update on the Board’s Working Groups.
12

CURRENT WORK PROGRAMME
To consider the attached report of the Head of
Scrutiny and MEmber Development providing the
Board’s current work programme, together with a
copy of the Forward Plan of Key Decisions for the
period 1st July to 31st October 2008 pertaining to
this Board’s terms of reference and the Executive
Board minutes of 11th June

13

DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING
Thursday, 25 September 2008 at 10.00 a.m. (Premeeting at 9.30 a.m.)

D

193 224

Agenda Item 6
SCRUTINY BOARD (CITY AND REGIONAL PARTNERSHIPS)
MONDAY, 23RD JUNE, 2008
PRESENT:

Councillor S Bentley in the Chair
Councillors B Atha, C Campbell, G Driver,
C Fox, R Harington, V Kendall, J Lewis,
R Pryke, A Shelbrooke and L Yeadon

1

Declarations of Interest
Councillors Shelbrooke, Yeadon and Pryke declared personal interests in
Agenda Item 3, Input to Work Programme 2008/09, due to their respective
positions with the University of Leeds, Royal Mencap Society and the
Regional Flood Defence Committee. Minute no. 3 refers.

2

Apologies for Absence
Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillor Murray.

3

Input to Work Programme 2008/09
The Head of Scrutiny and Member Development submitted a report which
provided information and guidance to the Board on developing the work
programme for the 2008/09 Municipal Year. Documents appended to the
report included the Draft Memorandum of the Local Area Agreement, the
Leeds Strategic Plan and the Council Business Plan 2008-11.
The Chair welcomed the following to the meeting:
•
•
•

Councillor Richard Brett, Leader of the Council
James Rogers, Assistant Chief Executive (Planning, Policy and
Improvement)
Martin Dean, Deputy Director, Leeds Initiative

The following issues were discussed in relation to the Board’s potential Work
Programme and areas of interest:
•

•

Beacon Status – it was reported that the Council had been awarded
Beacon Status for Strategic Partnerships and Local Area Agreements.
James Rogers explained the selection criteria for achieving Beacon
Status and reported that funding was available in those areas that had
achieved Beacon Status to share best practice with other Local
Authorities.
Flooding – It was reported that a Scrutiny Commission had previously
investigated flooding in Leeds and the Scrutiny Board (City
Development) had carried out work in this area. Leeds City Council in
partnership with the Environment Agency and Yorkshire Water had

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Monday, 21st July, 2008

Page 1

•
•

•

•

•

•
•

•

•
•
•

implemented flood defence works at Wykebeck and major work was
due to take place on defences for the River Aire. Flood defence works
had also been carried out at Kirkstall and Allerton Bywater.
Housing developments.
James Rogers informed the Board of the Local Government and Public
Involvement in Health Act 2007 and how it changed the role of the
Authority in terms of partnership working. It sought to put Elected
Members at the forefront of partnership activity and reinforced the way
that the Local Area Agreements would be delivered. The Act also
imposed a duty on partners to co-operate and proposed mechanisms
to ensure that partners would participate in scrutiny inquiries.
Councillor Brett addressed the Board. He referred to the large number
of partnership organisations the Council was involved with and the
scope that it provided for the Board. Many of the partnerships that the
Council was involved with were relatively new or under development
and he felt that the Board could play an influential role in the shaping of
these partnerships. He also highlighted the Voluntary, Community and
Faith Sector as key partners in building stronger communities.
Small businesses – Members suggested that the Board consider an
inquiry into Small Businesses. It was reported that a range of
organisations supported small businesses, both in the City and across
the region.
University fees - it was reported that the Scrutiny Board (City
Development) had previously considered the impact of students on the
economy of Leeds and this had briefly covered fees.
Development of Skills and Training – who was responsible for the
delivery of these? This was felt to be a major issue for the city.
The role of regional partnerships including the Leeds City Region,
Association of West Yorkshire Authorities and Yorkshire Forward. The
Leeds City Region list of priorities included Transport, Housing,
Innovation and Skills.
European City ambitions – it was reported that there were difficulties in
comparing European cities due to varying characteristics and
geography. The Leeds Initiative had set up the Going up a League
Board whose aims were to drive forward outcomes which met Leeds’
aim to become a successful European City. In relation to this Members
discussed issues including the provision of an Arena and lack of late
night public transport to and from the city.
Increased responsibilities to the Voluntary, Community and Faith sector
organisations and how these work in partnership with the Council.
The future of regional bodies and their roles.
Interactivity between partners of all levels in Leeds and on a regional
basis.

The Chair thanked those present for their attendance.
RESOLVED – That the report and discussion with officers and the Leader of
the Council be used to inform the development and approval of the Board’s
Work Programme.
Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Monday, 21st July, 2008

Page 2

4

Determine Work Programme
The Head of Scrutiny and Member Development submitted a report which
contained information on determining the Board’s Work Programme for the
2008/09 Municipal Year. Also attached to the report was information on
Inquiry Selection Criteria.
Members discussed issues raised with officers and the Leader of the Council
and made the following suggestions for inclusion to the Work Programme:
•
•

•
•

•
•
•

Establish a working group to consider Small Businesses.
To consider requesting a report from the Regional Housing Partnership
pending discussion with the Director of Environment and
Neighbourhoods.
Transport – It was reported that the Chief Executive would be attending
the next meeting when this issue could be discussed.
To invite the Chief Executive and Chair of the Leeds Initiative’s
Narrowing the Gap Executive to a meeting with a view to presenting
half yearly/quarterly reports to update the Board.
To receive a report on the review of the Leeds Strategic Plan –
progress update.
To establish a Skills Working Group.
To draft terms of reference into an inquiry regarding the Role of the
Voluntary, Community and Faith Sector.

RESOLVED –
RESOLVED –
1)That the issues raised be included in the Board’s Work Programme for
2008/09.
2) That the Board establish a Small Business Working Group comprising Cllrs
Atha, Bentley and Kendall to identify if an inquiry was appropriate and if so to
draw up suitable terms of reference for consideration by the Board
3) That the Board establish a Skills Working Group comprising Cllrs Bentley,
Driver, and Yeadon to determine if an inquiry would be appropriate and draw
up suitable terms of reference for consideration by the Board
4) That an inquiry be undertaken on the Voluntary and Community Faith
sector and that terms of reference be submitted to the Board’s next meeting
for consideration.
5

Date and Times of Future Meetings
RESOLVED –
That the dates and times of meetings of the Scrutiny Board (City and Regional
Partnerships) for the 2008/09 Municipal Year be held as follows:

Monday, 21 July 2008
Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Monday, 21st July, 2008

Page 3

Thursday, 25 September 2008
Thursday, 23 October 2008
Thursday, 20 November 2008
Wednesday, 17 December 2008
Thursday, 15 January 2009
Thursday, 26 February 2009
Thursday, 26 March 2009
Thursday, 30 April 2009
All at 10.00 a.m. (Pre-meetings at 9.30 a.m.)

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Monday, 21st July, 2008

Page 4

Agenda Item 7

Agenda Item No 7 (a)
Originator: Richard Mills
Tel: 247 4557
Report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development
Scrutiny Board (City & Regional Partnerships)
Date: 21st July 2008
Subject: Input to the Work Programme 2008/09 - Sources of Work and
Establishing the Board’s Priorities
Electoral Wards Affected: All

Specific Implications For:

Equality and Diversity
Community Cohesion
Narrowing the Gap

Ward Members consulted
(referred to in report)

1.0

Purpose of Report

1.1

This report provides information and guidance to assist the Board continue to
develop its work programme for 2008/09 that is focused on strategic issues.

2.0

Introduction

2.1

At the last Board meeting the Leader of Council, Councillor R Brett, the Assistant
Chief Executive (Policy, Planning and Improvement) and the Deputy Director of
Leeds Initiative, Martin Dean assisted the Board to identify areas for possible
scrutiny and responded to questions from the Board. As a consequence of these
discussions an initial work programme was agreed.

2.2

The Board today wanted the opportunity to examine further the relationships the
Council has at a city, area and regional level with regard to development and
regeneration. It particularly expressed interest in transport and city region decision
making and wanted to identify areas for scrutiny inquiries that would add value to the
process.

2.3

The Executive Board Member with portfolio responsibility for Development and
Regeneration, Councillor Andrew Carter, the Chief Executive of the Council
Paul Rogerson and the Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods, Neil Evans
have been invited to attend today’s meeting to talk on these issues and to respond
to questions from the Board.

Page 5

3.0

Background Information

3.1

It is important for Scrutiny Boards in developing their work programme in 2008/09 to
have regard to the CPAs concerns and focus more on the Council’s corporate
strategic priorities.

3.2

A full set of relevant core information from key sources were provided to Members
at the last meeting but key documents are provided again for ease of reference as
follows:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Local Area Agreement (Document A)
Leeds Strategic Plan (Documents B)
Council Business Plan 2008 -11 (Document C)
Corporate Assessment Actions 2008 (Document D)
Details of Partners (Document E)
Board’s terms of reference (Document F)

4.0

Guidance

4.1

Over the last few years of Scrutiny Board work, experience has shown that the
process is more effective if the Board seeks to minimise the number of substantial
inquiries running at one time.

4.2

The Board is advised to consider the benefits of single item agendas (excluding
miscellaneous information and minutes) in order to focus on all the relevant
evidence and complete the inquiry in a shorter period of time. There are various
mechanisms available to assist the Board in concluding inquiries quickly whilst the
issues are pertinent, such as working groups and site visits.

4.3

The agreed Memorandum of Understanding between Executive Board and
Overview and Scrutiny which now sits within the Council’s Constitution states;
“The responsibility of those setting scrutiny work programmes is, therefore, to
ensure that items of work come from a strategic approach as well as a need to
challenge service performance and respond to issues of high public interest.
It is recognised that Scrutiny Boards have a ‘watching brief’ role. In addition
information is required for members’ own development process, particularly as
membership of the Boards is changed annually.
However, it is also recognised that agendas are often filled up with reports for this
purpose, which takes up time for both officers and Members. Where Scrutiny
Boards wish to ask questions at a general or more strategic level and/or be updated
on issues already considered in detail, the facility of Members’ Questions – where a
verbal exchange replaces written reports - should be used.
It is expected that where ever possible prior notification is given of the likely
questions to be asked”.

5.0

Recommendation

5.1

Members are requested to use the discussion with the Executive Member with
portfolio responsibility for Development and Regeneration and those of the
officers and the information provided with this report to develop its work programme
and prioritise issues to be investigated under the next agenda item.

Page 6

Page 7

DOCUMENT A

Enable more
people to
become
involved in sport
and culture by
providing better
quality and
wider ranging
activities and
facilities.

Increased
participation in
cultural
opportunities
through
engaging with
all our
communities.

Enhanced
cultural
opportunities
through
encouraging
investment and
development of
high quality
facilities of
national and
international
significance.

Improvement
Priority

Strategic
Outcome

Partnership
Agreed

Partnership
Agreed

Agreed
or
Partnership
Agreed

Government

Proxy Measure - Further
development of this local
PI is currently being
undertaken

LKI SC19:
Number of sports facility
types with a specified
quality assured standard

NI 8 Adult participation in
sport and active
recreation

Indicator

13
(2007/08)

20.50%
(2005/06
Active
People
Survey)

Culture

Baseline

Milestone
2008/09

Milestone
2009/10

19

(due to the
Private Finance
Initiative project
one site (Morley)
will be closed for
rebuilds and thus
lose their
accreditation
status 08/09)

12

15

Increase of 1% on the baseline by 2010/11

LAA
3 Year
Target
2010/11

1

LEEDS CITY COUNCIL

VCFS bodies through
Leeds Voice Health Forum

Re’New

Leeds Partnership
Foundation Trust

Sport England

LEEDS CITY COUNCIL

LEAD/contributory
partners

Note: Targets are in place for all indicators that will be measured during 2008/09. Negotiations are ongoing with Government Office to finalise
targets in three areas.

DRAFT Memorandum of LAA

Page 8

DOCUMENT A

Strategic
Outcome

Improvement
Priority

Partnership
Agreed

NI 9 Use of public
libraries

Agreed
or
Partnership
Agreed
Partnership
Agreed

The number of visits to
museums and galleries
(temporary proxy
measure)

NI 10 Visits to museums
and galleries

Number of visits to
libraries (temporary
proxy measure)

Indicator

Government

384,346

2008/09
new data
return –
Baseline
will be in
place by
March
2009

4,181,923
(20062007)

2008/09
new data
return –
Baseline
will be in
place by
March
2009

Baseline

Milestone
2008/09

Milestone
2009/10

Library
renovation
programme will
mean reduced
capacity for
2008/9

4,111,297

N/A

N/A

740,000

N/A

Proxy measure to be used in Year 1 -see
below.
Targets for Year 2 and Year 3 to be agreed
by March 2009.

N/A

Proxy measure to be used in Year 1 -see
below.
Targets for Year 2 and Year 3 to be agreed
by March 2009.

LAA
3 Year
Target
2010/11

2

Museums, Libraries and
Archives - Yorkshire

LEEDS CITY COUNCIL

Museums, Libraries and
Archives - Yorkshire

LEEDS CITY COUNCIL

Museums, Libraries and
Archives - Yorkshire

LEEDS CITY COUNCIL

VCFS bodies through
Leeds Voice Older
People’s Forum and CYP
forum

Museums, Libraries and
Archives – Yorkshire

LEEDS CITY COUNCIL

LEAD/contributory
partners

Note: Targets are in place for all indicators that will be measured during 2008/09. Negotiations are ongoing with Government Office to finalise
targets in three areas.

DRAFT Memorandum of LAA

Page 9

DOCUMENT A

Strategic
Outcome

Facilitate the
delivery of major
cultural
schemes of
international
significance.

Improvement
Priority

This is a
new
indicator
which
relates to
specific
projects as such
there is no
baseline
data.

Not
applicable

b) number of physical
infrastructure capital build
projects of International
significance that will
increase and/or improve
cultural provision

Partnership
Agreed

2008/09
new data
return –
Baseline
will be in
place by
March 2009

Baseline

Restore, refurbish &
increase the cultural
infrastructure of the city:
a) amount spent on
buildings/
refurbishing new &
existing buildings of
International significance

NI 11 Engagement in the
Arts

Agreed
or
Partnership
Agreed
Partnership
Agreed

Partnership
Agreed

Indicator

Government

Milestone
2008/09

Milestone
2009/10

5
(cumulative)

£38,460k

Total 3 Year
cumulative
spend

(Cumulative)

3

£37,530k

£10,519k

2

Total 2 Year
cumulative
Spend

Year 1 Spend

New indicator – to be determined by Active
People Survey by March 2009.

LAA
3 Year
Target
2010/11

Highways Agency

English Heritage

Arts Council

3

LEEDS CITY COUNCIL

English Heritage

Arts Council

LEEDS CITY COUNCIL

Re’New

Arts Council

LEEDS CITY COUNCIL

LEAD/contributory
partners

Note: Targets are in place for all indicators that will be measured during 2008/09. Negotiations are ongoing with Government Office to finalise
targets in three areas.

DRAFT Memorandum of LAA

Page 10

DOCUMENT A

Increase
international
communications
, marketing and

Partnership
Agreed

Facilitate the
delivery of major
developments in
the city centre to
enhance the
economy and
support local
employment

Increased
international
competitiveness
through
marketing and
investment in
high quality
infrastructure
and physical
assets,
particularly in
the city centre.

Partnership
Agreed

Increase
innovation and
entrepreneurial
activity across
the city.

Increased
entrepreneurshi
p and innovation
through
effective support
to achieve the
full potential of
people,
business and
the economy.

Partnership
Agreed

Partnership
Agreed

Agreed
or
Partnership
Agreed

Improvement
Priority

Strategic
Outcome

Government

Baseline

LAA
3 Year
Target
2010/11

a) Percentage of UK
residents surveyed who
regard Leeds as a ‘great
place to live’.

Result of annual
satisfaction survey
relating to planning
performance
agreements.

Processing of major
planning applications

To support the
establishment of 550
new businesses in
deprived communities in
Leeds by 2011

2008/09 to
be used as
baseline
year.

2008/09
new data
return –
Baseline
will be in
place by
March
2009

63%
(2007/08)

12,751
(2006)

65%

12,934

Milestone
2008/09

70%

13,117

Milestone
2009/10

New indicator – targets and milestones to be
determined following calculation of baseline
by March 2009.

New indicator – targets and milestones to be
determined by March 2009

75%

13,301

Enterprise and the Economy

Indicator

4

LEEDS CITY COUNCIL

West Yorkshire Metro

Highways Agency

LEEDS CITY COUNCIL

West Yorkshire Fire and
Rescue Service

Highways Agency

LEEDS CITY COUNCIL

VCFS bodies through VCF
Strategy Group (Lead
forum)

Leeds Chamber

LEEDS CITY COUNCIL

LEAD/contributory
partners

Note: Targets are in place for all indicators that will be measured during 2008/09. Negotiations are ongoing with Government Office to finalise
targets in three areas.

DRAFT Memorandum of LAA

Page 11

DOCUMENT A

An enhanced
workforce that
will meet future
challenges
through fulfilling
individual and
economic
potential and
investing in
learning
facilities.

Strategic
Outcome

NI 163 Proportion of
population aged 19-64
for males and 19-59 for
females qualified to at
least Level 2 or higher.

NI 164 Proportion of
population aged 19-64
for males and 19-59 for
females qualified to at
least Level 3 or higher

Government
Agreed

Government
Agreed

Enhance the
skill levels of the
workforce to
fulfil individual
and economic
potential

Indicator

b) Improve Leeds’ image
as a major centre for
business.

Agreed
or
Partnership
Agreed

Government

business
support
activities to
promote the city
and attract
investment.

Improvement
Priority

218,000
(51.0%)

305,000
(71.0%)

Learning

(From
Brahm
Research
Study)

Baseline

Baseline + 6
percentage
points

Baseline + 9
percentage
points

LAA
3 Year
Target
2010/11

Baseline + 2
percentage
points

Baseline + 2
percentage
points

Milestone
2008/09

Baseline + 4
percentage
points

Baseline + 5
percentage
points

Milestone
2009/10

Leeds City Council

Leeds Chamber

5

LEARNING AND SKILLS
COUNCIL

VCFS bodies through
Leeds Voice Economy and
Skills Forum

Leeds Confederation of
Further Education
Colleges

Jobcentre Plus

Leeds City Council

Leeds Chamber

LEARNING AND SKILLS
COUNCIL

LEAD/contributory
partners

Note: Targets are in place for all indicators that will be measured during 2008/09. Negotiations are ongoing with Government Office to finalise
targets in three areas.

DRAFT Memorandum of LAA

Page 12

DOCUMENT A

Strategic
Outcome

NI 79: Achievement of
Level 2 qualifications by
the age of 19
NI80: Achievement of
Level 3 qualifications by
the age of 19

Government
Agreed

Partnership
Agreed

DCSF Statutory Targets
(below)

Improve
learning
outcomes and
skill levels for 19
year olds.

NI 78 Reduction in
number of schools where
fewer than 30% of pupils
achieve 5 or more A*-C
grades at GCSE and
equivalent including
GCSEs in English and
Maths

Indicator

Government
Agreed

Agreed
or
Partnership
Agreed

Government

Improve
learning
outcomes for all
16 year olds,
with a focus on
narrowing the
achievement
gap.

Improvement
Priority

65%
2006/07
Academic
Year
41%
(2006/07
Academic
Year)

7 Schools

Milestone
2008/09

2 Schools

Milestone
2009/10

(2007/08
Academic year)

(2009/10
Academic year)

(2008/09
Academic year)

47%

Academic year)

Academic year)

43%

71%
(2008/09

68%
(2007/08

49%

(2009/10
Academic year)

75%

Technical issue raised with audit commission,
targets currently exclude Academies as per
DCSF Guidance but clarification has been
sought on CLG guidance which states
academies should be included.

1 School

13
Schools
(2006/07
Academic
Year)

LAA
3 Year
Target
2010/11

Baseline

6

Leeds Confederation of

Learning and Skills
Council

Education Leeds

LEEDS CITY COUNCIL

VCFS bodies through
Leeds Voice Connexions
Forum

Leeds Confederation of
Further Education
Colleges

Education Leeds

LEEDS CITY COUNCIL

VCFS bodies through
Leeds Voice Economy and
Skills Forum

Leeds Confederation of
Further Education
Colleges

Jobcentre Plus

LEAD/contributory
partners

Note: Targets are in place for all indicators that will be measured during 2008/09. Negotiations are ongoing with Government Office to finalise
targets in three areas.

DRAFT Memorandum of LAA

Page 13

DOCUMENT A

Strategic
Outcome

Increase the
proportion of
vulnerable
groups engaged
in education,
training or
employment.

Improvement
Priority

Government
Agreed

Agreed
or
Partnership
Agreed

Government

DCSF Statutory Targets

NI 117: 16-18 year olds
who are not in education,
training or employment
(NEET)

Indicator

10.0%
(Average of
Nov, Dec
and Jan as
per national
reporting
guidance)

Baseline

6.5%

LAA
3 Year
Target
2010/11

8.9%

Milestone
2008/09

7.8%

Milestone
2009/10

Jobcentre Plus

7

VCFS bodies through
Leeds Voice Economy and
Skills forum

Learning and Skills
Council

Probation Service

Leeds Confederation of
Further Education
Colleges

Education Leeds

LEEDS CITY COUNCIL

VCFS bodies through
Leeds Voice Connexions
Forum

Further Education
Colleges

LEAD/contributory
partners

Note: Targets are in place for all indicators that will be measured during 2008/09. Negotiations are ongoing with Government Office to finalise
targets in three areas.

DRAFT Memorandum of LAA

Page 14

DOCUMENT A

Strategic
Outcome

Improve
participation and
early learning
outcomes for all
children, with a
focus on
families in
deprived areas.

Improvement
Priority

Agreed
or
Partnership
Agreed
Partnership
Agreed

Government

DCSF Statutory Targets
(see below)

NI 148 Care leavers in
education, employment
or training

Indicator

71.3%
(2006/07)

Baseline

76.6%

Milestone
2008/09

81.7%

Milestone
2009/10

8

VCFS bodies through
Leeds Voice Connexions
Forum

Leeds Confederation of
Further Education
Colleges

Leeds Partnership
Foundation Trust

Learning and Skills
Council

Education Leeds

LEEDS CITY COUNCIL

LEAD/contributory
partners

Not applicable – see statutory DCSF indicator and target below

86.8%

LAA
3 Year
Target
2010/11

Note: Targets are in place for all indicators that will be measured during 2008/09. Negotiations are ongoing with Government Office to finalise
targets in three areas.

DRAFT Memorandum of LAA

Page 15

DOCUMENT A

Increased
accessibility and
connectivity
through
investment in a
high quality
transport
system and
through
influencing
others and
changing
behaviours

Strategic
Outcome

Improve the
quality, use and
accessibility of
public transport

Deliver and
facilitate a range
of transport
proposals for an
enhanced
transport
system,
including cycling
and walking.

Improvement
Priority

Local bus passenger
journeys originating in
the authority area

Cycle Trips to the City
centre in the morning
peak period (0730-0930).

Partnership
Agreed

Partnership
Agreed

NI 167 Congestion average journey time per
mile during the morning
peak

Indicator

Government
Agreed

Agreed
or
Partnership
Agreed

Government

Baseline
being
produced
from data

728 (2007)

222
seconds (3
mins 42
secs) 2005

Transport

Baseline

3 mins 54
secs
(234
seconds)

Milestone
2008/09

3 mins 56
secs
(236
seconds)

Milestone
2009/10

780 (2008)

840 (2009)

Data received from Metro – targets currently
being developed and will be in place by 30
May 2008.

880 (2010)

On target routes to accommodate an expected
increase in travel of 5% with an increase in
average person journey time per person mile of no
more than 7%.

3 mins 57
secs
(237seconds)

LAA
3 Year
Target
2010/11

Leeds City Council

WEST YORKSHIRE
METRO

9

VCFS bodies through
Leeds Voice Environment
Forum

Leeds Cycling Action
Group

LEEDS CITY COUNCIL

Highways Agency

West Yorkshire Metro

LEEDS CITY COUNCIL

LEAD/contributory
partners

Note: Targets are in place for all indicators that will be measured during 2008/09. Negotiations are ongoing with Government Office to finalise
targets in three areas.

DRAFT Memorandum of LAA

Page 16

DOCUMENT A

Strategic
Outcome

Government

Improve road

NI 47 People killed or

NI 169 Non-principal
classified roads where
maintenance should be
considered

Government
Agreed

Improve the
condition of the
streets and
transport
infrastructure by
carrying out a
major
programme of
maintenance
and
improvements.

Indicator

Percentage of non-car
journeys into central
Leeds in the morning
peak period.

Agreed
or
Partnership
Agreed

Government

Partnership
Agreed

services in
Leeds.

Improvement
Priority

364

Currently
awaiting
2007/08
data – by
June 2008

42.30%
(2004)

produced
by Metro –
will be
agreed by
30 May
2008

Baseline

Baseline –1%

44.30%

Milestone
2008/09

Baseline –2%

44.70%

Milestone
2009/10

-3.9%

0%

-2.5%

Please note that if the baseline is lower than
8% then the reduction will be 0.5% per year.

Baseline –3%

45%

LAA
3 Year
Target
2010/11

10

LEEDS CITY COUNCIL

LEEDS CITY COUNCIL

Leeds Partnership
Foundation Trust

Highways Agency

West Yorkshire Metro

LEEDS CITY COUNCIL

LEAD/contributory
partners

Note: Targets are in place for all indicators that will be measured during 2008/09. Negotiations are ongoing with Government Office to finalise
targets in three areas.

DRAFT Memorandum of LAA

Page 17

DOCUMENT A

Cleaner,
greener and
more attractive
city through
effective
environmental
management
and changed
behaviours.

Reduced
ecological
footprint through
responding to
environmental
and climate
change and
influencing
others.

Strategic
Outcome

Government
Agreed

Government
Agreed

Reduce
emissions from
public sector
buildings,
operations and
service delivery,
and encourage
others to do so.

Agreed
or
Partnership
Agreed
Agreed

Government

Increase the
amount of waste
reused and
recycled and
reduce the
amount of waste
going to landfill.

safety for all our
users,
especially motor
cyclists pedal
cyclists and
pedestrians.

Improvement
Priority

NI 185 CO2 Reduction
from Local Authority
operations

(2005-07
3 year
average)

Baseline

Baseline
to be set
from 2008
Calendar
year (1
January
2008 to 31
December
2008)

27.05%
(2007/08)

Environment
NI 192 Percentage of
household waste sent for
reuse, recycling and
composting

seriously injured in road
traffic accidents

Indicator

30.26%

364 (20062008)

Milestone
2008/09

33.94%

355 (20072009)

Milestone
2009/10

To be set when baseline has been calculated
– January 2009.

41.32%

341 (20082010)

LAA
3 Year
Target
2010/11

11

Leeds Confederation of
Further Education

VCFS bodies through
Leeds Voice Environment
Forum

West Yorkshire Fire and
Rescue Service

LEEDS CITY COUNCIL

VCFS bodies through
Leeds Voice Environment
Forum

Environment Agency

LEEDS CITY COUNCIL

VCFS bodies through
Leeds Voice Environment
Forum

West Yorkshire Fire and
Rescue Services

Highways Agency

LEAD/contributory
partners

Note: Targets are in place for all indicators that will be measured during 2008/09. Negotiations are ongoing with Government Office to finalise
targets in three areas.

DRAFT Memorandum of LAA

Page 18

DOCUMENT A

Strategic
Outcome

Undertake
actions to
improve our
resilience to
current and
future climate
change.

Improvement
Priority

Government
Agreed

Agreed
or
Partnership
Agreed

Government

NI 188 Planning to Adapt
to Climate Change

Indicator

Level 0
(2007/08)

Baseline

Level 3

LAA
3 Year
Target
2010/11

Level 1

Milestone
2008/09

Level 2

Milestone
2009/10

12

VCFS bodies through
Leeds Voice Environment
Forum

Leeds Confederation of
Further Education
Colleges

West Yorkshire Metro

Natural England

West Yorkshire Fire and
Rescue Service

Highways Agency

Environment Agency

LEEDS CITY COUNCIL

Colleges

LEAD/contributory
partners

Note: Targets are in place for all indicators that will be measured during 2008/09. Negotiations are ongoing with Government Office to finalise
targets in three areas.

DRAFT Memorandum of LAA

Page 19

DOCUMENT A

Improved quality

Reduced health
inequalities
through the
promotion of
healthy life
choices and
improved
access to
services.

Strategic
Outcome

Reduce
premature
mortality in the
most deprived
areas.

Improve the
quality and
sustainability of
the built and
natural
environment.

Address
neighbourhood
problem sites;
improve
cleanliness and
access, to and
quality of green
spaces.

Improvement
Priority

Government
Agreed

Partnership
Agreed

Agreed
or
Partnership
Agreed
Government
Agreed

Government

10.8%
(2004/05)

2008/09 to
be used as
baseline
year.

Baseline

NI 120 All-age all cause
mortality rate (target
disaggregated to focus
on narrowing the gap
between most deprived
10% and the Leeds
average)
(1995-97
average)

605 per
100,000
(females)

Milestone
2008/09

Milestone
2009/10

(females living
in 10% most
deprived
SOAs)

(females living
in 10% most
deprived SOAs)

491 per
100,000
(females)

19%

639 per
100,000

472 per
100,000
(females)

23%

(females living
in 10% most
deprived SOAs

628 per
100,000

481 per
100,000
(females)

21%

Targets for 2009/10 and 2010/11 to be set
following calculation of baseline by April
2009.

LAA
3 Year
Target
2010/11

616 per
100,000

Health and Wellbeing

Percentage of parks and
countryside sites
assessed internally that
meet the Green Flag
criteria

NI195 Improved street
and environmental
cleanliness

Indicator

13

Leeds Teaching Hospitals
Trust

Leeds Partnership
Foundation Trust

Leeds City Council

LEEDS PCT

VCFS bodies through
Leeds Voice Environment
Forum

Natural England

VCFS bodies through
Leeds Voice Environment
Forum
LEEDS CITY COUNCIL

West Yorkshire Metro

West Yorkshire Fire and
Rescue Service

LEEDS CITY COUNCIL

LEAD/contributory
partners

Note: Targets are in place for all indicators that will be measured during 2008/09. Negotiations are ongoing with Government Office to finalise
targets in three areas.

DRAFT Memorandum of LAA

Page 20

DOCUMENT A

Enhanced
safety and
support for
vulnerable
people through
preventative
and protective
action to
minimise risks
and maximise
wellbeing.

of life through
maximising the
potential of
vulnerable
people by
promoting
independence,
dignity and
respect.

Strategic
Outcome

Reduction in the
number of
people who
smoke.

Improvement
Priority

Partnership
Agreed

Partnership
Agreed

Agreed
or
Partnership
Agreed

Government

NI 123 Stopping smoking
- disaggregated to
narrow the gap between
10% most deprived
SOAs and rest of Leeds

121 Mortality rate from
circulatory diseases at
ages under 75 (per
100,000 population)

Indicator

30.66%
(2004)

23.3%
City
30.2% in
10% most
deprived
SOAs

25.7% City

33.3% in
10% most
deprived
SOAs

21.0%
City
27.1% in 10%
most deprived
SOAs

72.7 per
100,000
population

974 per
100,000
(Males living
in 10% most
deprived
SOAs)

697 per
100,000
(males)

Milestone
2009/10

76.2 per
100,000
population

1002 per
100,000
(Males living
in 10% most
deprived
SOAs)

715 per
100,000
(males)

Milestone
2008/09

69.3 per
100,000
population

946 per
100,000
(Males living
in 10% most
deprived
SOAs)

(1995-97
average)

145 per
100,000
population
(3 year
average
for 19951997)

679 per
100,000
(males)

LAA
3 Year
Target
2010/11

942 per
100,000
(Males)

Baseline

14

VCFS bodies through
Leeds Voice Health Forum

Leeds Teaching Hospitals
Trust

Leeds City Council

LEEDS PCT

As above

Re’New

West Yorkshire Fire and
Rescue Service

Natural England (Active
Lifestyles)

VCFS bodies through
Leeds Voice Health Forum

LEAD/contributory
partners

Note: Targets are in place for all indicators that will be measured during 2008/09. Negotiations are ongoing with Government Office to finalise
targets in three areas.

DRAFT Memorandum of LAA

Page 21

DOCUMENT A

Strategic
Outcome

Government
Agreed

Government
Agreed

Improve the
assessment and

Government
Agreed

Agreed
or
Partnership
Agreed

Government

Reduce teenage
conception and
improve sexual
health.

Reduce rate of
increase in
obesity and
raise physical
activity for all.

Improvement
Priority

NI 132 Timeliness of
social care assessment

NI 112 Under 18
conception rate disaggregated to focus
on the 14 wards in the
city with the highest rates
of conception in the city

NI 57 Children and
Young People’s
Participation in highquality PE and Sport

Indicator

80.9%
(Apr-Dec

Baseline
to be set
from
national
data
release in
November
2008 for
the 14
wards in
the city
with the
highest
conception
rate.

2008/09
new data
return –
Baseline
will be in
place by
March
2009

Baseline

Milestone
2008/09

Milestone
2009/10

15%
reduction in
the 14 wards
with the
highest
conception
rate.

35%
reduction in
the 14
wards with
the highest
conception
rate.

90%

85%

88%

Subject to negotiation with Government
Office.

Subject to
outcome of
national
annual review.

New indicator to be introduced from April
2009.

LAA
3 Year
Target
2010/11

15

LEEDS CITY COUNCIL

VCFS bodies through
Leeds Voice Health Forum

Re’New

Leeds Teaching Hospitals
Trust

Leeds PCT

LEEDS CITY COUNCIL

Sport England
Education Leeds
Youth Sport Trust
Re’New

Leeds PCT

LEEDS CITY COUNCIL

LEAD/contributory
partners

Note: Targets are in place for all indicators that will be measured during 2008/09. Negotiations are ongoing with Government Office to finalise
targets in three areas.

DRAFT Memorandum of LAA

Page 22

DOCUMENT A

Strategic
Outcome

care
management of
children,
families and
vulnerable
adults.

Improvement
Priority

NI 63 Stability of
placements of looked
after children: length of
placement

NI 66 Looked after
children cases which
were reviewed within
required timescales

NI 133 Timeliness of
social care packages
following assessment (all
adults)

Partnership
Agreed

Partnership
Agreed

(all adults)

Indicator

Partnership
Agreed

Agreed
or
Partnership
Agreed

Government

90% reviewed
within required
timescales

95%

85 %
(2007/08)

80%

LAA
3 Year
Target
2010/11

60.2%
(April –
Dec 2007)

(December
2007)

70%

2007)

Baseline

90%

70%
reviewed
within
required
timescales

72%

Milestone
2008/09

92%

80%
reviewed
within
required
timescales

75%

Milestone
2009/10

16

VCFS bodies through

Leeds Partnership
Foundation Trust

Leeds PCT

LEEDS CITY COUNCIL

LEEDS CITY COUNCIL

Leeds PCT

LEEDS CITY COUNCIL

Leeds Teaching Hospitals
Trust

VCFS bodies through
Leeds Voice Health Forum

Leeds Partnership
Foundation Trust

Leeds PCT

LEAD/contributory
partners

Note: Targets are in place for all indicators that will be measured during 2008/09. Negotiations are ongoing with Government Office to finalise
targets in three areas.

DRAFT Memorandum of LAA

Page 23

DOCUMENT A

Strategic
Outcome

Increase the
number of
vulnerable
people helped
to live at home.

Improved
psychological,
mental health,
and learning
disability
services for
those who need
it.

Improvement
Priority

Government
Agreed

Partnership
Agreed

Agreed
or
Partnership
Agreed

Government

59% (Q2
2007/08)

2008/09
new data
return –
Baseline
will be in
place by
March 2009

VSC02 Proportion of
people with depression
and/or anxiety disorders
who are offered
psychological therapies.

NI 141 Percentage of
vulnerable people
achieving independent
living

2008/09
new data
return –
Baseline
will be in
place by
March
2009

Baseline

NI 58 Emotional and
behavioural health of
looked after children

Indicator

Milestone
2008/09

Milestone
2009/10

76%

66%

71%

New indicator – targets and milestones to be
determined by March 2009

New indicator – targets and milestones to be
determined by March 2009

LAA
3 Year
Target
2010/11

17

Leeds Partnerships
Foundation Trust

Leeds PCT

LEEDS CITY COUNCIL

Leeds Confederation of
Further Education
Colleges

Leeds Partnership
Foundation Trust

Leeds City Council

LEEDS PCT

Leeds PCT

LEEDS CITY COUNCIL

Leeds Teaching Hospitals
Trust

Leeds Voice Health Forum

LEAD/contributory
partners

Note: Targets are in place for all indicators that will be measured during 2008/09. Negotiations are ongoing with Government Office to finalise
targets in three areas.

DRAFT Memorandum of LAA

Page 24

DOCUMENT A

Strategic
Outcome

Increase the
proportion of
people in receipt

Improvement
Priority

NI 130 Social care clients
receiving Self Directed
Support per 100,000

NI 136 People supported
to live independently
through social services
(all adults)

Partnership
Agreed

Government
Agreed

NI 139 The extent to
which older people
receive the support they
need to live
independently at home

Indicator

Government
Agreed

Agreed
or
Partnership
Agreed

Government

2008/09
new data
return –
Baseline
will be in
place by
March
2009
95.65
(rate per
100,000
population)

Place
Survey Awaiting
further
guidance.
Baseline
to be
agreed by
March
2009.

Baseline

Milestone
2008/09

Milestone
2009/10

198.5 (rate
per 100,000)

127.0 (rate
per 100,000)

164.2 (rate
per
100,000)

New indicator – targets and milestones to be
determined by March 2009

New indicator – targets and milestones to be
determined by March 2009.

LAA
3 Year
Target
2010/11

18

VCFS bodies through

LEEDS CITY COUNCIL

VCFS bodies through
Leeds Voice Health Forum

West Yorkshire Fire and
Rescue Service

LEEDS CITY COUNCIL

VCFS bodies through
Leeds Voice Older
People’s Forum

Leeds Partnerships
Foundation Trust

Leeds PCT

LEEDS CITY COUNCIL

VCFS bodies through
Leeds Voice Health Forum
Leeds Confederation of
Further Education
Colleges

Re’New

LEAD/contributory
partners

Note: Targets are in place for all indicators that will be measured during 2008/09. Negotiations are ongoing with Government Office to finalise
targets in three areas.

DRAFT Memorandum of LAA

Page 25

DOCUMENT A

Strategic
Outcome

of community
services
enjoying choice
and control over
their daily lives.
Improve
safeguarding
arrangements
for vulnerable
children and
adults through
better
information,
recognition and
response to risk.

Improvement
Priority

Number of children
looked after (expressed
as a rate per 10,000
excluding
unaccompanied asylum
seekers
Estimated number of staff
employed by independent
sector registered care
services in the council area
that have had some training
on protection of adults
whose circumstances make
them vulnerable that is
either funded or
commissioned by the CSSR

Partnership
Agreed

population

Indicator

Partnership
Agreed

Agreed
or
Partnership
Agreed

Government

2008/09
new data
return –
Baseline
will be in
place by
March
2009

1281
(83.6)

Baseline

1156
(75.4 rate per
10,000)

Milestone
2008/09

1031
(67.3 rate
per 10,000)

Milestone
2009/10

To bet set for 2009/10 following calculation of
baseline – March 2009.

906
(59.1 rate per
10,000)

LAA
3 Year
Target
2010/11

19

Leeds Confederation of
Further Education
Colleges

LEEDS CITY COUNCIL

VCFS bodies through
Leeds Voice CYP Forum

LEEDS CITY COUNCIL

Leeds Learning Disability
Forum

LEAD/contributory
partners

Note: Targets are in place for all indicators that will be measured during 2008/09. Negotiations are ongoing with Government Office to finalise
targets in three areas.

DRAFT Memorandum of LAA

Page 26

DOCUMENT A

Increased
economic
activity through
targeted support
to reduce

Increase the
number of
affordable
homes.

Increase the
number of
“decent homes”.

Improved quality
of life through
mixed
neighbourhoods
offering good
housing options
and better
access to
services and
activities.

Reduced crime
and fear of
crime through
prevention,
detection,
offender
management
and changed
behaviours.

Improvement
Priority

Strategic
Outcome

Government
Agreed

Partnership
Agreed

Agreed
or
Partnership
Agreed

Government

NI 154 Net additional
homes provided

Baseline

3327
(2006-07)

Provisional
baseline –
targets
may be
revised
based on
final
baseline.

33.1%
(Nov
2007)

Thriving Places
NI 158 Percentage nondecent council homes

Indicator

10200
Over 3 year
period

9%

LAA
3 Year
Target
2010/11

At least
3400
after year 1

27%

Milestone
2008/09

At least
6800
After year 2

18%

Milestone
2009/10

Re’New

20

Housing and Regeneration
bodies through the Leeds
Housing Partnership

LEEDS CITY COUNCIL

VCFS bodies through VCF
Strategy Group

Re’New

Housing Regeneration
Bodies through Leeds
Housing Partnership

LEEDS CITY COUNCIL

LEAD/contributory
partners

Note: Targets are in place for all indicators that will be measured during 2008/09. Negotiations are ongoing with Government Office to finalise
targets in three areas.

DRAFT Memorandum of LAA

Page 27

DOCUMENT A

worklessness
and poverty.

Strategic
Outcome

Reduce the
number of
homeless
people.

Improvement
Priority

Partnership
Agreed

Government
Agreed

Agreed
or
Partnership
Agreed

Government

LKI HAS4 The number of
homeless acceptances
made in the year.

NI 155 Number of
affordable homes
delivered (gross)

Indicator

1142
(2007/08)

232
(2006/07)

Baseline

1022

(Cumulative)

1800

LAA
3 Year
Target
2010/11

300

1100

Milestone
2008/09

1060

(Cumulative)

800

Milestone
2009/10

21

Leeds Confederation of
Further Education
Colleges

VCFS bodies through
Leeds Voice Health Forum

West Yorkshire Police

West Yorkshire Probation
Service

Housing Regeneration
Bodies in the Leeds
Housing Partnership

LEEDS CITY COUNCIL

Re’New

Housing and Regeneration
bodies through the Leeds
Housing Partnership

LEEDS CITY COUNCIL

LEAD/contributory
partners

Note: Targets are in place for all indicators that will be measured during 2008/09. Negotiations are ongoing with Government Office to finalise
targets in three areas.

DRAFT Memorandum of LAA

Page 28

DOCUMENT A

Strategic
Outcome

Reduce the
number of
people who are
not able to
adequately heat
their homes.

Improvement
Priority

Government
Agreed

Agreed
or
Partnership
Agreed

Government

NI 187 Tackling fuel
poverty – % of people
receiving income based
benefits living in homes
with a low energy
efficiency rating

Indicator

45.44%

44%
2007/08
(SAP>=65)

2.36%

LAA
3 Year
Target
2010/11

4%
2007/08
(SAP<35)

Baseline

44.34%

3.46%

Milestone
2008/09

44.89%

2.91%

Milestone
2009/10

22

VCFS bodies through
Leeds Voice Environment
Forum

Housing Regeneration
bodies in the Leeds
Housing Partnership

Leeds PCT

LEEDS CITY COUNCIL

LEAD/contributory
partners

Note: Targets are in place for all indicators that will be measured during 2008/09. Negotiations are ongoing with Government Office to finalise
targets in three areas.

DRAFT Memorandum of LAA

Page 29

DOCUMENT A

Strategic
Outcome

Create safer
environments by
tackling crime

Increase
financial
inclusion in
deprived areas.

Improvement
Priority

NI16 Serious acquisitive
crime rate

NI 20 Assault with injury
crime rate

NI 24 Satisfaction with
the way the police and
local council dealt with
anti-social behaviour

Government
Agreed

Government
Agreed

Increase the number of
new customers on low
incomes accessing credit
union services (savings,
loans and current
accounts).

Indicator

Government
Agreed

Agreed
or
Partnership
Agreed
Partnership
Agreed

Government

2008/09
new data
return –
Baseline
will be in
place by
March
2009

8.0
(rate per
1000
population)

27.0
(rate per
1000
population)

6700 (Jan
– Dec
2007)

Baseline

(7.7 rate per
1000
population)
LEEDS CITY
COUNCIL

(7.4 rate per
1000
population)
New indicator
– targets and
milestones to
be determined
by March
2009

West
Yorkshire
Police

4% reduction
on baseline

(26.4 rate per
1000
population)

2.3%
reduction on
baseline

(exceptional
performance in
2007/08 so
target for
2008/09 is to
maintain this
performance.)

6700

Milestone
2008/09

8% reduction
on baseline

(25.2 rate per
1000
population)

7% reduction
on baseline

7000

LAA
3 Year
Target
2010/11

23

VCFS bodies through
Leeds Voice Community
Safety Consortium

West Yorkshire Probation
Service
6% reduction
on baseline
(7.5 rate per
1000
population)

West Yorkshire Police
Authority

Leeds City Council

WEST YORKSHIRE
POLICE

VCFS bodies through
West Leeds Debt Forum

Leeds City Credit Union

LEEDS CITY COUNCIL

LEAD/contributory
partners

(25.8 rate
per 1000
population)

4.7%
reduction on
baseline

6850

Milestone
2009/10

Note: Targets are in place for all indicators that will be measured during 2008/09. Negotiations are ongoing with Government Office to finalise
targets in three areas.

DRAFT Memorandum of LAA

Page 30

DOCUMENT A

Strategic
Outcome

Reduce
offending by
managing
offending
behaviour better

Improvement
Priority

Partnership
Agreed

Agreed
or
Partnership
Agreed
Government
Agreed

Government

A complete count of the
number of first time

NI 30 Re-offending rate
of prolific and priority
offenders

Indicator

2076
(2004/05)

Awaiting
Home
Office
Guidance.
Baseline
will be
calculated
by 30 May
2008

Baseline

N/A
LPSA 2

5% year on
year reduction
in re-offending
rate

LAA
3 Year
Target
2010/11

1877

5% year on
year
reduction in
re-offending
rate

Milestone
2008/09

N/A
LPSA 2

5% year on
year
reduction in
re-offending
rate

Milestone
2009/10

24

Leeds Confederation of
Further Education
Colleges
YOUTH OFFENDING
SERVICE

VCFS bodies through
Leeds Voice Community
Safety Consortium

Learning and Skills
Council

Jobcentre Plus

Re’New

Local Criminal Justice
Board

Youth Offending Service

Leeds City Council

West Yorkshire Police

West Yorkshire Probation
Service

SAFER LEEDS
PARTNERSHIP

LEAD/contributory
partners

Note: Targets are in place for all indicators that will be measured during 2008/09. Negotiations are ongoing with Government Office to finalise
targets in three areas.

DRAFT Memorandum of LAA

Page 31

DOCUMENT A

Strategic
Outcome

Government
Agreed

Government
Agreed

Reduce antisocial

Agreed
or
Partnership
Agreed

Government

Improve lives by
reducing the
harm caused by
substance
misuse

Improvement
Priority

NI 24 Satisfaction with
the way the police and

NI 40 Number of drug
users recorded as being
in effective treatment

2008/09
new data

2976
(2007/08)

3006

573

Milestone
2008/09

3067

N/A
LPSA 2
Target –
finishes
March 2009

Target–
finishes
March 2009

Milestone
2009/10

New indicator – targets and milestones to be
determined by March 2009

3201

N/A
LPSA 2
Target –
finishes March
2009

A complete count of
offences committed by
young people resulting in
a substantive outcome
during a bail or remand
episode during the
specified year.

LAA
3 Year
Target
2010/11
Target–
finishes March
2009

622 (2005)

Baseline

entrants into the youth
justice system receiving
a substantive outcome
between 1 April and 31
March in the reporting
year specified.

Indicator

25

LEEDS CITY COUNCIL

VCFS bodies through
Leeds Voice Community
Safety Consortium

Leeds Partnership
Foundation Trust

Leeds PCT

LEEDS CITY COUNCIL

Leeds Confederation of
Further Education
Colleges

VCFS bodies through
Youth Work Panel

Re’New

Leeds City Council

West Yorkshire Police

West Yorkshire Probation
Service

LEAD/contributory
partners

Note: Targets are in place for all indicators that will be measured during 2008/09. Negotiations are ongoing with Government Office to finalise
targets in three areas.

DRAFT Memorandum of LAA

Page 32

DOCUMENT A

Strategic
Outcome

Reduce the
number of
children in
poverty

Reduce
worklessness
across the city
with a focus on
deprived areas.
30.4%
(2007)

11.4%
(2007)

33%
(2007)

return –
Baseline
will be in
place by
March
2009

Baseline

28.4% by
2010/11

10.4% by
2010/11

22.5%

LAA
3 Year
Target
2010/11

29.8%

11.1%

30%

Milestone
2008/09

29.2%

10.8%

26.5%

Milestone
2009/10

VCFS bodies through
Leeds Voice Economy and
Skills Forum

Yorkshire Forward

Learning and Skills
Council

Leeds City Council

VCFS bodies through
Leeds Voice CYP Forum
JOB CENTRE PLUS

LEEDS CITY COUNCIL

West Yorkshire Police

LEAD/contributory
partners

26

Indicators, targets and measures to be determined from April 2009 following more focussed
work locally and further government guidance

NI 153 - Working age
people claiming out of
work benefits in the worst
performing
neighbourhoods

Partnership
Agreed

Partnership
Agreed

NI 152 working age
people on out of work
benefits

Government
Agreed

NI 69 Children who have
experienced bullying

Government
Agreed

Reduce bullying
and
harassment.

Indicator

local council dealt with
anti-social behaviour

Agreed
or
Partnership
Agreed

Government

behaviour.

Improvement
Priority

Note: Targets are in place for all indicators that will be measured during 2008/09. Negotiations are ongoing with Government Office to finalise
targets in three areas.

DRAFT Memorandum of LAA

Page 33

DOCUMENT A

Improved
community
cohesion and
integration
through
meaningful
involvement and

More inclusive,
varied and
vibrant
communities
through
empowering
people to
contribute to
decision making
and delivering
local services.

Strategic
Outcome

An increased
number of local
people engaged
in activities to
meet community
needs and
improve the
quality of life for
local residents.

Develop
extended
services, using
sites across the
city, to improve
support to
children,
families and
communities.

Improvement
Priority

Partnership
Agreed

Agreed
or
Partnership
Agreed
Partnership
Agreed

Government

42%
(2006/07
academic
year)

Baseline

100% (by
Sept 2010)

LAA
3 Year
Target
2010/11

NI 6 Participation in
regular volunteering

NI 110 Young people’s
participation in positive
activities

2008/09
new data
return –
Baseline

To be set
when
TellUs
Survey is
completed
by June
2008

74%
(by Sept
2008)

Milestone
2008/09

90%
(by Sept
2009)

Milestone
2009/10

New indicator – targets and milestones to be
determined by March 2009

To be set when TellUs Survey is completed
by June 2008

Harmonious Communities

NI 88 Percentage of
schools providing access
to extended services.

Indicator

27

VCFS Bodies through
Voluntary Action Leeds

LEEDS CITY COUNCIL

Leeds Confederation of
Further Education
Colleges

VCFS bodies through
Leeds Voice CYP Forum

West Yorkshire Fire and
Rescue Service

Arts Council

LEEDS CITY COUNCIL

Leeds Confederation of
Further Education Colleges

VCFS bodies through Leeds
Voice CYP Forum

Education Leeds

West Yorkshire Police

LEEDS CITY COUNCIL

LEAD/contributory
partners

Note: Targets are in place for all indicators that will be measured during 2008/09. Negotiations are ongoing with Government Office to finalise
targets in three areas.

DRAFT Memorandum of LAA

Page 34

DOCUMENT A

valuing equality
and diversity.

Strategic
Outcome

Government
Agreed

Partnership
Agreed

Enable a robust
and vibrant
voluntary,
community and
faith sector to

Agreed
or
Partnership
Agreed

Government

An increase in
the number of
local people that
are empowered
to have a
greater voice
and influence
over local
decision making
and a greater
role in public
service delivery.

Improvement
Priority

NI 7 Environment for a
thriving third sector

NI 4 Percentage of
people who feel they can
influence decisions in
their locality

Indicator

To be set
by Office
of the
Third

Baseline
to be set
by 2008
Place
Survey

will be in
place by
March
2009

Baseline

(measured by second OTS survey in Autumn

Increase of 4.1 percentage points on baseline
by 2010/11

28

VCF bodies through VCF
Strategy Group

LEEDS CITY COUNCIL

VCFS bodies through
Leeds Voice Community
Empowerment Network

Leeds PCT

West Yorkshire Fire and
Rescue Service

West Yorkshire Police

West Yorkshire Police
Authority

Leeds PCT

Sport England

Museums, Libraries,
Archives, Yorkshire

Arts Council

LEAD/contributory
partners

(Measured by Place Survey in Autumn 2010)

Milestone
2009/10

LEEDS CITY COUNCIL

Milestone
2008/09

Increase of 4.1% on baseline figure.

LAA
3 Year
Target
2010/11

Note: Targets are in place for all indicators that will be measured during 2008/09. Negotiations are ongoing with Government Office to finalise
targets in three areas.

DRAFT Memorandum of LAA

Page 35

DOCUMENT A

Strategic
Outcome

An increased
sense of
belonging and
pride in local
neighbourhoods
that help to build
cohesive
communities.

facilitate
community
activity and
directly deliver
services.

Improvement
Priority

Government
Agreed

Agreed
or
Partnership
Agreed

Government

NI 1 Percentage of
people who believe
people from different
backgrounds get on well
together in their local
area

Indicator

Baseline
to be set
by 2008
Place
Survey

Sector
Survey Autumn
2008

Baseline

29

Leeds Confederation of
Further Education
Colleges

Natural England

West Yorkshire Police

Leeds PCT

VCF bodies through VCF
Strategy Group

West Yorkshire Police

Leeds PCT

LEAD/contributory
partners

(Measured by Place Survey in Autumn 2010)

Milestone
2009/10

LEEDS CITY COUNCIL

2010)

Milestone
2008/09

Increase of 4.1% on baseline figure.

LAA
3 Year
Target
2010/11

Note: Targets are in place for all indicators that will be measured during 2008/09. Negotiations are ongoing with Government Office to finalise
targets in three areas.

DRAFT Memorandum of LAA

Page 36

N/A

Key Stage 3 - to increase proportion achieving level 5+ in both English and maths
69% (2006/07 academic
year)
N/A
N/A
42.1% (2006/07
academic year)
N/A

N/A

N/A
N/A

Key Stage 2-3 - to improve proportion progressing 2 national curriculum levels in English

Key Stage 2-3 - to improve proportion progressing 2 national curriculum levels in Maths

Key Stage 4 – to increase proportion achieving 5 A*-C grades at GCSE and equiv incl GCSE
English and Maths

Key Stage 3-4 - to improve proportion progressing equivalent of 2 national curriculum levels in
English

Key Stage 3-4 - to improve proportion progressing equivalent of 2 national curriculum levels in
Maths

Attendance – to reduce persistent absentee pupils in secondary schools

Attendance – to reduce persistent absentee pupils in primary schools

N/A
N/A

Key Stage 3 – to increase proportion achieving level 5 in science

Baseline
38% (2006/07 academic
year)
47.1% (2006/06
academic year)
N/A

Key Stage 1-2 – to improve proportion
progressing 2 national curriculum levels in English
Key Stage 1-2 - to improve proportion progressing 2 national curriculum levels in Maths

Key Stage 2 – to increase proportion achieving level 4+ in both English and maths

Early Years (EYFSP) – to increase achievement for all children at age 5

Early Years (EYFSP) – to narrow the achievement gap at age 5

Indicator

DCSF Statutory Targets

30

7.7%
(for 2008/09 academic year)
No statutory target set (only set for
secondary schools)

32.6%
(for 2008/09 academic year)

62.7%
(for 2008/09 academic year)

30%
(for 2008/09 academic year)
53%
(for 2008/09 academic year)
77%
(for 2008/09 academic year)
85%
(for 2008/09 academic year)
87%
(for 2008/09 academic year)
74%
(for 2008/09 academic year)
77%
(for 2008/09 academic year)
34%
(for 2008/09 academic year)
65%
(for 2008/09 academic year)
51.6%
(for 2008/09 academic year)

Targets

Note: Targets are in place for all indicators that will be measured during 2008/09. Negotiations are ongoing with Government Office to finalise
targets in three areas.

DRAFT Memorandum of LAA

Page 37

N/A
N/A
N/A

Children in care – to increase proportion achieving level 4+ in English at Key Stage 2

Children in care – to increase proportion achieving level 4+ in maths at Key Stage 2

Children in care – to increase proportion achieving 5 A*-C grades at GCSE and equiv incl GCSE
English and maths

31

56%
(for 2008/09 academic year)
56%
(for 2008/09 academic year)
17%
(for 2008/09 academic year)

Note: Targets are in place for all indicators that will be measured during 2008/09. Negotiations are ongoing with Government Office to finalise
targets in three areas.

DRAFT Memorandum of LAA

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 38

DRAFT

Control document
Senior Management Accountabilities and Responsibilities aligned to the Leeds Strategic Plan 2008-11
Purpose of the document
To identify individuals in Leeds City Council who have lead Accountability and/or Responsibility for the Strategic Outcomes and Improvement Priorities in the Leeds
Strategic Plan.
Note 1: At this stage individuals in partner agencies who have lead Accountability and/or Responsibility roles are not identified in this document, this information is
being developed and will be part of this document at a later stage.
Note 2: Leeds City Council requires a lead or link individual on all targets and indicators that will deliver the Improvement Priorities as Leeds City Council is the overall
accountable body for the Local Area Agreement requirements in the Leeds Strategic Plan.
Definition of Accountability and Responsibility are taken from RACI:
Responsible - individuals who perform an activity - responsible for action/implementation. The degree of responsibility is defined by the accountable person, R's can
be shared.
Accountable - the individual who is ultimately accountable includes yes/no and power to veto. Only one A can be assigned to an activity/decision.
The table assumes the following:
The Accountable Director is accountable for the Strategic Outcomes
The Accountable Officer is accountable for an Improvement Priority and linked national indicators
The Responsible Officer is responsible for relevant areas of activity that contribute to the Improvement Priority and linked national indicators.

Strategic Outcome

Accountable
Director

Improvement Priority

Accountable Officer

Responsible Officer

National Indicators / Local Indicators

Culture
* LKI-SC19 Number of sports facility types with a specified quality
assured standard.
* NI 8 Adult participation in sport and active recreation

Increase participation in cultural
opportunities through engaging
with all our communities

Jean Dent
Director of
City Development

Enable more people to become
involved in sport and culture by
providing better quality and wider
ranging activities and facilities.

Jean Dent
Director of
City Development

Martin Farrington Acting Chief
Recreation Officer

* NI 9 Number of visits to libraries
* NI 10 Visits to museums and galleries

Catherine Blanshard Chief Officer
Libraries, Arts and Heritage

* BV 170b - The number of visits to Local Authority funded, or partfunded museums and galleries that were in person, per 1,000
population
* NI 11 Engagement in the Arts

Steve Speak
Chief Strategy and Policy Officer
Enhance cultural opportunities
through encouraging investment
and development of high quality
facilities of national and
international significance

Jean Dent
Director of
City Development

Facilitate the delivery of major cultural
schemes of international significance

Jean Dent
Director of
City Development

Paul Stephens Chief Economic
Services Officer

Restore, refurbish & increase the cultural infrastructure of the city:
a) amount spent on buildings / refurbishing new & existing buildings

Martin Farrington
Acting Chief Recreation Officer

b) number of physical infrastructure capital build projects that will
increase and/or improve cultural provision

Catherine Blanshard Chief Officer
Libraries, Arts and Heritage

Enterprise and the Economy

Stephen Boyle Chief Regeneration
Officer
Increase innovation and entrepreneurial
activity across the city

Paul Stephens Chief Economic
Services Officer

To support the establishment of 550 new businesses in deprived
communities in Leeds by 2011

Catherine Blanshard Chief Officer
Libraries, Arts and Heritage
Increase entrepreneurship and
innovation through effective
support to achieve the full
potential of people business and
the economy

Facilitate the delivery of major
developments in the city centre to
enhance the economy and support local
employment

Phil Crabtree Development Services
Officer
Gary Bartlett Chief Highways Officer
Jean Dent
Director of
City Development

Jean Dent
Director of
City Development

Steve Speak Chief Strategy & Policy
Officer
Paul Stephens Chief Economic
Services Officer

Increased international
competitiveness through
marketing and investment in high
quality infrastructure and physical
assets, particularly in the city
centre

Increase international communications,
marketing and business support
activities to promote the city and attract
investment.

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\5\6\2\AI00014265\DocumentALAACityRegionalPartnershipsresponsibilities0.xls

NI 157 - Processing of planning applications
Result of annual satisfaction survey relating to Planning
Performance Agreements

Paul Stephens Economic Services
Officer
James Rogers Assistant Chief
Executive (PP&I)

Page 39

To develop a perception survey

DRAFT
Strategic Outcome

Accountable
Director

Improvement Priority

Accountable Officer

Enhance the skill level of the workforce
to fulfil individual and economic
potential.

Jean Dent Director of City
Development

Responsible Officer

National Indicators / Local Indicators

Learning

Stephen Boyle Chief Regeneration
Officer

NI 163 Proportion of population aged 19-64 for males and 19-59 for
females qualified to at least Level 2 or higher

Paul Stevens Chief Economic Services NI 164 Proportion of population aged 19-64 for males and 19-59 for
Officer
females qualified to at least Level 3 or higher

Edwina Harrison Chief Officer Children
& Families
Improve learning outcomes and skill
levels for 16 year olds, with a focus on
narrowing the achievement gap.

NI 78 Reduction in number of schools where fewer than 30% of
Sally Threlfall Chief Officer Early Years
pupils achieve 5 or more A* - C grades at GCSE and equivalent
and Youth
including GCSEs in English and Maths
Chris Edwards Chief
Catherine Blanshard Chief Libraries ,
Executive Education Leeds Arts & Heritage Officer

Enhance the current and future
workforce through fulfilling
individual and economic potential
and investing in learning facilities.

Rosemary Archer
Director of Children's
Services

Improve learning outcomes and skill
levels for all 19 year olds.

Edwina Harrison Chief Officer Children
& Families

NI 79: Achievement of a Level 2 qualification by the age of 19
NI 80: Achievement of Level 3 qualifications by the age of 19

Catherine Blanshard Chief Libraries ,
Arts & Heritage Officer

Increase the proportion of vulnerable
groups engaged in education, training
or employment.

Sally Threlfall Chief Officer Early
Years and Youth

Stephen Boyle Chief Regeneration
Officer

NI 117: 16-18 year old who are not in education, training or
employment (NEET

Paul Stevens Chief Economic Services
NI 148 Care leavers in education, employment or training
Officer
Edwina Harrison Chief Officer Children
& Families

Sally Threlfall Chief Officer Early Years
and Youth
Improve participation and early learning
Chris Edwards Chief Executive Edwina Harrison Chief Officer Children
outcomes for all children, with a focus
DCSF Statutory Targets
Education Leeds
& Families
on families in deprived areas.
Catherine Blanshard Chief Libraries ,
Arts & Heritage Officer

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\5\6\2\AI00014265\DocumentALAACityRegionalPartnershipsresponsibilities0.xls

Page 40

DRAFT
Strategic Outcome

Accountable
Director

Improvement Priority

Accountable Officer

Responsible Officer

National Indicators / Local Indicators

Transport
Increased accessibility and
connectivity through investment in
a high quality transport system
and through influencing others
and changing behaviours

Jean Dent
Director of
City Development

Deliver and facilitate a range of
transport proposals for an enhanced
transport system.

Steve Speak
Chief Strategy and Policy Officer

NI 167 Congestion – average journey time per mile during the
morning peak

Gary Bartlett Chief Highways Officer

Cycle Trips to the City centre in the morning peak period (730-930)

Jean Dent
Director of
City Development
Steve Speak
Chief Strategy and Policy Officer

Improve the quality, use and
accessibility of public transport services
in Leeds

Increased accessibility and
connectivity through investment in
a high quality transport system
and through influencing others
and changing behaviours

Jean Dent
Director of
City Development

Gary Bartlett Chief Highways Officer

Improve the condition of the streets and
transport infrastructure by carrying out a
major programme of maintenance and
improvements.

Gary Bartlett chief Officer
Highways

Improve road safety for all our users,
especially motor cyclists, pedal cyclists
and pedestrians.

Jean Dent Director of City
Development

Increase the amount of waste reused
and recycled and reduce the amount of
waste going to landfill

Neil Evans Director of
Environment and
Neighbourhoods

NI 177 Local bus and light rail passenger journeys originating in the
authority area
Percentage of non-car journeys into central Leeds in the morning
peak period

Steve Speak Chief Strategy and Policy NI 169 Non-principal classified roads where maintenance should
Officer
be considered

Steve Speak
Chief Strategy and Policy Officer

NI 47 People killed or seriously injured in road traffic accidents

Gary Bartlett Chief Officer Highways

Environment

NI 192 Percentage of household waste sent for reuse, recycling
and composting

Paul Brook
Chief Asset Management Officer

Reduce emissions from public sector
buildings, operations and service
delivery, and encourage others to do
so.
Reduced ecological footprint
through responding to
environmental and climate
change and influencing others.

Andrew Mason Chief Officer
Environmental Services

Steve Speak Chief Strategy & Policy
Officer

NI 185 CO2 Reduction from Local Authority operations

Gary Bartlett Chief Officer Highways

Jean Dent
Director of
City Development
Jean Dent Director of City
Development

Steve Speak
Chief Strategy & Policy Officer
Paul Brook Chief Asset Management
Officer

Undertake actions to improve our
resilience to current and future climate
change.

NI 188 Planning to Adapt to Climate Change

Stephen Boyle Chief Regeneration
Officer
Gary Bartlett Chief Officer Highways

Neil Evans Director
Environment &
Neighbourhoods

Address neighbourhood problem sites;
improve cleanliness and access to and
quality of green spaces.

Andrew Mason Chief Officer
Environmental Services

Steve Speak
Chief Strategy & Policy Officer
Martin Farrington
Acting Chief Recreation Office

NI 195 Improved street and environmental cleanliness (levels of
litter, detritus, graffiti and fly posting)

Steve Speak
Chief Strategy & Policy Officer
Cleaner, greener and more
attractive city through effective
environmental management and
changed behaviours.

Phil Crabtree Chief Planning Officer
Andrew Mason Chief Officer
Environmental Services
Jean Dent
Director of
City Development

Improve the quality and sustainability of
Jean Dent
Gary Bartlett Chief Officer Highways
the built and natural environment.
Director of City Development
Paul Brook Chief Asset Management
Officer
Paul Stephens Chief Economic
Services Officer
Martin Farrington Acting Chief
Recreation Officer

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\5\6\2\AI00014265\DocumentALAACityRegionalPartnershipsresponsibilities0.xls

Page 41

The percentage of parks and countryside sites assessed internally
that meet the green flag criteria

DRAFT
Strategic Outcome

Accountable
Director

Improvement Priority

Accountable Officer

Responsible Officer

National Indicators / Local Indicators

Health and Wellbeing
Rosemary Archer Director of Children's
Services

Reduce premature mortality in the most
deprived areas.
Reduced health inequalities
through the promotion of healthy
life choices and improved access
to services.

Steve Carey Acting Chief Officer
Benefits & Revenues
Sandie Keene
Director of Adult Services
or

Andrew Mason Chief Officer
Environmental Services

NI 120 All-age all cause mortality rate (target disaggregated to
focus on narrowing the gap between most deprived 10% and rest
of Leeds)
NI 121 Mortality rate from circulatory diseases at ages under 75
(per 100,000 population)

Jim Willson Chief Officer Substance
Use

Deputy Director Partnerships
& Organisational
Effectiveness
Andrew Mason Chief Officer
Environmental Services

Reduction in the number of people who
smoke

NI 123 Stopping smoking
Stuart Turnock Chief Legal Services
Officer

Martin Farrington Acting Chief
Recreation Officer
Rosemary Archer Director of Children'
Services
Reduce rate of increase in obesity and
raise physical activity for all.

Sandie Keene
Director of Adult Services

Chris Edwards Chief Executive
Education Leeds

NI 57 Children and Young People’s Participation in high-quality PE
and Sport

Gary Bartlett Chief Officer Highways
Steve Speak Chief Strategy & Policy
Officer

Chris Edwards Chief Executive
Education Leeds

Reduce teenage conception and
improve sexual health.
Reduced health inequalities
through the promotion of healthy
life choices and improved access
to services.

Edwina Harrison Chief Officer Children
Sarah Sinclair Director of & Families
NI 112 Under 18 conception rate
Commissioning - Children's &
Maternity Services
Keith Burton Deputy Director Children's
Services (Commissioning &
Partnerships)
Chief Officer Commissioning Adults

Sandie Keene
Director of Adult Services
NI 132 Timeliness of social care assessment (all adults)
Chief Officer Access & Inclusion
Improve the assessment and care
management of children, families and
vulnerable adults

Improved psychological, mental health,
and learning disability services for those
who need it

Sandie Keene
Director of Adult Services

Chief Officer Access and
Inclusion

NI 63 Stability of placements of looked after children: length of
placement
Edwina Harrison Chief Officer, Children
& Families
NI 66 Looked after children cases which were reviewed within
required timescales
Chief Officer Learning Disability
NI 133 Timeliness of social care packages following assessment
(all adults)

NI 58 Emotional and behavioural health of looked after children
Edwina Harrison Chief Officer, Children
& families
Effectiveness of children and adult mental health services
(percentage of PCTs and Local Authorities who are providing a
Chief Officer Learning & Disability
comprehensive CAMHS.
Chief Officer Access and Inclusion

Chief Officer Accommodation and
enablement
Improved quality of life through
maximising the potential of
vulnerable people by promoting
independence, dignity and
respect.

Increase the number of vulnerable
people helped to live at home.

Chief Officer Accommodation
and Support

Dennis Holmes
Chief Officer Commissioning
Paul Langford Chief Housing Services
Officer
Andrew Mason Chief Environmental
Services Officer

Proportion of people with depression and/or anxiety disorders who
are offered psychological therapies.

NI 141 Percentage of vulnerable people achieving independent
living
NI 139 The extent to which older people receive support they need
to live independently at home
NI 136 People supported to live independently through social
services (all adults)

Chief Officer Accommodation and
enablement
Increase the proportion of people in
Deputy Director
Paul Langford Chief Housing Services
receipt of community services enjoying Commissioning - Adult Social Officer
choice and control over their daily lives.
Care
Chief Officer Access and Inclusion

NI 130 Social care clients receiving Self Directed Support per
100,000 population

Chief Officer Learning Disability
Enhance safety and support for
vulnerable people through
preventative and protective action
to minimise risks and maximise
wellbeing.
Rosemary Archer
Director of Children's
Services
Sandie Keene
Director of Adult Services

Improve safeguarding arrangements for
vulnerable children and adults through
better information, recognition and
response to risk.

Keith Burton Deputy Director Children's
Services (Commissioning &
Partnerships)
Number of children looked after (expressed as a rate per 10,000)
Edwina Harrison Chief
Excluding unaccompanied asylum seekers
Officer, Children & families Edwina Harrison Chief Officer, Children
& families
The percentage of staff employed by the independent sector
Sandie Keene
registered care services in Leeds that have received some training
Director of Adult Services All Chief Officers Adult Social Care
on protection of vulnerable adults that is either funded or
commissioned by Leeds Adult Social Care
Dennis Holmes
Chief Officer Commissioning

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\5\6\2\AI00014265\DocumentALAACityRegionalPartnershipsresponsibilities0.xls

Page 42

DRAFT
Strategic Outcome

Accountable
Director

Improvement Priority

Accountable Officer

Responsible Officer

National Indicators / Local Indicators

Thriving Neighbourhoods
Stephen Boyle Chief Regeneration
Officer
Increase the number of “decent
homes”.

Steve Speak Chief Strategy & Policy
Officer

NI 158 % non-decent council homes

Phil Crabtree Chief Planning Officer

Steve Speak
Chief Strategy and Policy Officer
Gary Bartlett Chief Officer Highways
Increase the number of affordable
homes

Stephen Boyle Chief Regeneration
Officer
Paul Langford Chief Housing
Services Officer

NI 154 Net additional homes provided
NI 155 Number of affordable homes delivered (gross)

Phil Crabtree Chief Planning &
Development Services Officer
Paul Brook Chief Asset Management
Officer

Stephen Boyle Chief Regeneration
Officer
Reduce the number of homeless
people.

Jim Willson Chief Officer Substance
Use

LKI HAS4 The number of homeless acceptances made in the year.
CP HAS50 Reduce the number of homeless people in Leeds per
1000 households, as defined by the Council.

Andrew Mason Chief Environmental
Services Officer

Improved quality of life through
mixed neighbourhoods offering
good housing options and better
access to services and activities.

Neil Evans Director
Environment &
Neighbourhoods

Steve Carey Acting Chief Officer
Benefits & Revenues

Reduce the number of people who are
not able to adequately heat their
homes.

Andrew Mason Chief
Environmental Services
Officer

Paul Langford
Chief Housing Services Officer
Steve Speak Chief Strategy and Policy
Officer

NI 187 Tackling fuel poverty – % of people receiving income based
benefits living in homes with a low energy efficiency rating

Paul Brook Chief Asset Management
Officer

Steve Carey Acting Chief Officer
Benefits & Revenues
Stephen Boyle Chief Regeneration
Officer
Steve Speak Chief Strategy and Policy
Officer
Andrew Mason Chief Environmental
Services Officer
Increase financial inclusion in deprived Jean Dent Director of City
areas.
Development

Paul Stephens Chief Economic

Increase the number of new customers on low incomes accessing
credit union services (savings, loans and current accounts).

Services Officer
Catherine Blanshard Chief Libraries ,
Arts & Heritage Officer
Sally Threlfall Chief Officer Early Years
and Youth
Paddy Clarke Acting Chief Customer
Services
Officer
Richard Jackson
Chief Officer - Community Safety
Paul Langford Chief Housing Services
Officer
Stephen Boyle Chief Regeneration
Officer
Create safer environments by tackling
crime

Gary Bartlett Chief Officer Highways
Andrew Mason Chief Environmental

NI 16 Serious acquisitive crime rate
NI 20 Assault with injury crime rate
NI 24 Satisfaction with the way the police and local council dealt
with anti-social behaviour

Services Officer

Reduced crime and fear of crime
through prevention, detection,
offender management and
changed behaviours.

Neil Evans Director
Environment &
Neighbourhoods

Paul Stephens Chief Economic
Services Officer
Nicole Jackson Assistant Chief
Executive (Corporate Governance)
NI 30 Re-offending rate of prolific and priority offenders

Reduce offending by managing
offending behaviour better

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\5\6\2\AI00014265\DocumentALAACityRegionalPartnershipsresponsibilities0.xls

Richard Jackson Chief Officer Community Safety

A complete count of the number of first time entrants into the youth
justice system receiving a substantive outcome between 1 April
and 31 March in the reporting year specified.

Edwina Harrison Chief Officer Children
& Families
A complete count of offences committed by young people resulting
in a substantive outcome during a bail or remand episode during
the specified year

Page 43

DRAFT
Strategic Outcome

Accountable
Director

Improvement Priority

Accountable Officer

Responsible Officer

National Indicators / Local Indicators

Richard Jackson Chief Officer Community Safety
Improve lives by reducing the harm
cuased by substance misuse

Neil Evans Director
Environment &
Neighbourhoods

Reduced crime and fear of crime
through prevention, detection,
offender management and
changed behaviours.

NI 40 Number of drug users recorded as being in effective
Edwina Harrison Chief Officer Children treatment
& Families
To be developed around A&E admissions due to alcohol
Jim Willson Chief Officer Substance
Use

Rosemary Archer Director of Edwina Harrison Chief Officer Children
Children's Services
& Families
Reduce bullying and harassment

NI 69 Children who have experienced bullying
Chris Edwards Chief
Richard Jackson Chief Officer
Executive Education Leeds Community Safety

NI 152 Working age people on out of work benefits
Reduce worklessness across the city
with a focus on deprived areas.

Increased economic activity
through targeted support to
reduce worklessness and poverty.

Stephen Boyle Chief
Regeneration Officer

Paul Stephens Chief Economic
Services Officer

Reduce the number of children in
poverty

Develop extended services, using sites
across the city, to improve support to
children, families and communities.

NI 153 Working age people claiming out of work benefits in the
worst performing neighbourhoods

To be developed

Chris Edwards Chief Executive Sally Threlfall Chief Officer Early Years NI 88 Percentage of schools providing access to extended
Education Leeds
and Youth
services.

Harmonious communities

Martin Farrington
Acting Chief Recreation Office
Catherine Blanshard Chief Officer
Libraries, Arts and Heritage
An increased number of local people
engaged in activities to meet
community needs and improve the
quality of life for local residents.

Andrew Mason Chief Environmental
Services Officer

NI 110 Young People's participation in positive activities
NI 6 Participation in regular volunteering

Paul Langford Chief Housing Officer
Richard Jackson Chief Community
Safety Officer
Chief Officers from each Directorate

More inclusive, varied and vibrant
communities through empowering
people to contribute to decision
making an delivering local
services

Sally Threlfall Chief Officer Early Years
and Youth
An increase in the number of local
people that are empowered to have a
greater voice and influence over local
decision making and a greater role in
public service delivery.
Neil Evans Director
Environment &
Neighbourhoods

Andrew Mason Chief Environmental
Services Officer

NI 4 Percentage of people who feel they can influence decisions in
their locality

Paul Langford Chief Housing Officer

Stephen Boyle Chief
Regeneration Officer

Richard Jackson Chief Community
Safety Officer

Sally Threlfall Chief Officer Early Years
and Youth
Enable a robust and vibrant voluntary,
community and faith sector to facilitate
community activity and directly deliver
services.

Andrew Mason Chief Environmental
Services Officer

NI 7 Environment for a thriving third sector

Paul Langford Chief Housing Officer
Richard Jackson Chief Community
Safety Officer

Andrew Mason Chief Environmental
Services Officer
Paul Langford Chief Housing Officer
Improved community cohesion
and integration through
meaningful involvement and
valuing equality and diversity

An increased sense of belonging and
pride in local neighbourhoods that help
to build cohesive communities.

Richard Jackson Chief Community
Safety Officer

NI 1 Percentage of people who believe people from different
backgrounds get on well together in their local area

James Rogers Assistant Chief
Executive
Chief Officers from each Directorate

Early Years (EYFSP) – to narrow the achievement gap at age 5
Sally Threlfall Chief Officer Early Years
and Youth
Early Years (EYFSP) – to increase achievement for all children at
age 5
Key Stage 2 – to increase proportion achieving level 4+ in both
English and maths *
Key Stage 1-2 – to improve proportion progressing 2 national
curriculum levels in English*
Key Stage 1-2 - to improve proportion progressing 2 national
curriculum levels in Maths*
Key Stage 3 - to increase proportion achieving level 5+ in both
English and maths *
Key Stage 3 – to increase proportion achieving level 5 in science *

Statutory DCSF Indicators

Rosemary Archer
Director of Children's
Services

Chris Edwards Chief Executive
Education Leeds

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\5\6\2\AI00014265\DocumentALAACityRegionalPartnershipsresponsibilities0.xls

Ros Vahey Deputy Chief Executive
(Education Leeds)

Key Stage 2-3 - to improve proportion progressing 2 national
curriculum levels in English*

Dirk Gilleard Deputy Chief Executive
(Education Leeds)

Key Stage 2-3 - to improve proportion progressing 2 national
curriculum levels in Maths*

Page 44

Key Stage 4 to increase proportion achieving 5 A*-C grades at
GCSE and equiv. incl. GCSE English and Maths

DRAFT
Strategic Outcome

Accountable
Director

Improvement Priority

Accountable Officer

Responsible Officer

National Indicators / Local Indicators
Key Stage 3-4 - to improve proportion progressing equivalent of 2
national curriculum levels in English*
Key Stage 3-4 - to improve proportion progressing equivalent of 2
national curriculum levels in Maths*
Attendance – to reduce persistent absentee pupils in secondary
schools
Attendance – to reduce persistent absentee pupils in primary
schools
Children in care – to increase proportion achieving level 4+ in
English at Key Stage 2

Alun Rees Head Teacher
Edwina Harrison Chief Officer Children &
Families

Advice on a resolution is required

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\5\6\2\AI00014265\DocumentALAACityRegionalPartnershipsresponsibilities0.xls

Page 45

Children in care – to increase proportion achieving level 4+ in
Maths at Key Stage 2
Children in care – to increase proportion achieving 5 A*-C grades
at GCSE and equiv incl. GCSE English and maths

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 46

DOCUMENT B

Leeds Strategic Plan 2008

Page 47

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 48

1
Page 71
49

LIST OF PARTNERS HERE

2
Page 72
50

Front Cover
Inside cover – logos of partner organisations
About this publication – other languages, formats
Foreword – (Leaders, Chief Executive) Background to plan, Our Values
Table of Contents
Section 1 – Making a Difference
Section 2 – Priorities by Theme
Section 3 – Making it Happen

3
Page 73
51

Foreword - to include:
•

Delighted to present the Leeds Strategic Plan for 2008-11;

•

The Plan is a significant milestone in working together as partners across the city to
agree the real changes we want to see in the lives of the people in Leeds and in the city
by 2011 and how we will deliver these in partnership;

•

Builds on a strong history of partnership working, co-ordinated through Leeds Initiative.
This has brought together the Council, business, voluntary, community and faith groups
and public bodies and produced a longer term strategy for the Leeds Community, the
Vision for Leeds 2004-20;

•

The Leeds Strategic Plan shows how these long term goals will be translated into
practical action over the next three years - both in terms of what will be achieved and
how it will be delivered;

•

Key areas for improvement by 2011 have been informed by consultation both from
Members and other stakeholders in different areas in the city and representatives of city
wide networks who represent different ‘interests’ in the city. Also, analysis of the most
up-to-date information about current conditions and prospects for Leeds and anticipated
social and population changes;

•

Leeds City Council has a key leadership role, with its partners, in both ‘shaping’ Leeds
for now and future generations and in making sure that targets set are delivered.

•

Recent government legislation reinforces this role, particularly enhancing the role of
Councillors as leaders and shapers of local neighbourhoods and the city.

•

The Council has recently been awarded the highest possible ‘4 star’ grading in terms of
its performance placing it in an excellent position to undertake this role in Leeds.

4
Page 74
52

SECTION 1
MAKING A DIFFERENCE

5
Page 75
53

PROGRESS and CHALLENGES
Leeds is recognised as one of Britain’s most successful cities. It has transformed itself over
the last 20 years from a mainly industrial city into a broad based commercial centre, the
most important financial and legal and business service centre outside London. Leeds is the
largest city in the Yorkshire and Humber region and is the biggest retail and employment
centre.
Leeds is a quality place to live, work and raise families and has attracted the largest absolute
increase in population in the country, 4.8% since 2001. This current population of over
750,000 embraces a rich diversity of over 130 different nationalities.
Economic, cultural and environmental factors have made major contributions to Leeds being
a successful place. Over the past decade Leeds has benefited from continued and
significant economic growth. Between 1996 and 2006 the City has seen Gross Value
Added, a measure of wealth creation, increase by 36% and 59,000 new jobs created.
Recent investment in the city has been impressive with £3.2bn invested in commercial
property development and a further £7.2bn under construction or planned. The public sector
has also invested significantly in new schools, health facilities and in new town and district
centres. Investment in the planning service has assisted investors, developers and citizens
in Leeds.
Culturally, Leeds continues to invest in its magnificent and growing collection of concert
halls, theatres, galleries, museums, parks and sporting venues. There is lively participation
in community festivals across the city and Leeds offers the widest range of free events in the
country.
Environmentally, Leeds is a green city with two-thirds of its area green belt land. Improving
local neighbourhoods is also a strong priority and real improvements have been made.
Cleanliness has been improved in 28 of the 31 most deprived neighbourhoods as a result of
partner agencies working together with local residents. There has also been considerable
investment to bring all our homes in Leeds up to the national ‘Decent Homes’ standard and
by 2010 this will be met.
People in Leeds are generally living longer and more safely. Life expectancy for both men
and women has grown by over a year over the last 10 years. Crime has fallen by
approximately 30% since 2003/4, the second highest fall in crime in the country.
More children are doing well at school than ever before with results at GCSE showing strong
and sustained improvement. These changes are being achieved by an approach that
engages children and young people and puts schools and childrens centres at the heart of
the community. It is being supported by large scale investment in new and refurbished
schools and childrens centres. Leeds is also a major centre of learning for further and higher
education, with two leading universities and a student population of over 124,000.
However, despite these positive trends, many challenges still remain and recent
developments such as a rising population and traffic present fresh challenges.
Too many children and young people still leave school with few or no qualifications,
particularly from low income families, those with special educational needs, some black and
minority ethnic groups and looked after children.
Health inequalities continue to exist. Children born into the most deprived neighbourhoods
can expect to live almost 12 years less than those in areas that enjoy the best health. The

6
Page 76
54

percentage of people over 60, currently 20% of the population, is forecast to grow raising
issues of how older people’s health, independence and contribution to the life of the
community will be supported.
Some neighbourhoods and communities have not shared in the economic success enjoyed
by much of the city. The numbers of people unable to work due to illness or injury remains a
key issue for the city. Many local people are excluded from job opportunities or developing
their careers due to a mismatch between their skills and aspirations and the skills now
required. Only 50% of the Leeds workforce has level 2 skills (equivalent to five A* to C
GCSEs) against a national skills target of 90% by 2020.
A growing population and greater prosperity puts pressure on the housing market in Leeds
The impact of climate change can be clearly seen in Leeds and will be an increasingly
important issue for the city. Parts of the city have been subject to flooding and are at high
risk of further flooding in the future. There is an urgent need to reduce CO2 and other green
house gas emissions to contribute to national and global targets. More people living and
travelling to work in Leeds places greater strain on the transport system. Road traffic grew
by 4.9% between 1996 and 2006 and further growth is predicted. Migration enriches our
diversity but raises challenges for creating and sustaining a sense of belonging amongst all
communities.
These are some of the key challenges facing the city and city region over the next three
years and beyond. They are explained in fuller detail in section 2 of this Plan accompanied
by an explanation of where we need to focus our efforts to overcome these challenges.

OUR AMBITION
Leeds has an ambitious vision for the city and for the people who live, work and visit Leeds.
This vision is captured in the Leeds’ sustainable community strategy, the Vision for Leeds
2004 to 2020. This sets out our key ambitions of ‘going up a league’ both economically and
in terms of quality of life and ‘narrowing the gap’ between the richer and poorer parts of the
city.
The Council and its partners all share the desire ‘to bring the benefits of a prosperous,
vibrant and attractive city to all the people of Leeds’. Our ambitions for the next three years
are to see:
•
•
•
•
•
•

people happy, healthy, safe, successful and free from the effects of poverty;
our young people equipped to contribute to their own and the city’s future well being
and prosperity;
local people engaged in decisions about their neighbourhood and community and
help shape local services;
neighbourhoods that are inclusive, varied and vibrant offering housing options and
quality facilities and free from harassment and crime;
an environment that is clean, green, attractive and above all, sustainable; and
a city-region that is prosperous, innovative and distinctive enabling individuals and
businesses to achieve their economic potential.

REAL CHANGE
The Vision for Leeds 2004 to 2020 sets out eight themes that provide a broad framework for
our actions. These are Culture, Enterprise and Economy, Learning, Transport, Environment,
Health and Wellbeing, Thriving Neighbourhoods and Harmonious Communities.

7
Page 77
55

This plan sets out the outcomes - the real changes we want to see in the lives of people in
Leeds and the city by 2011 in each of the Vision themes. It is based on a robust analysis of
the strengths and weaknesses of the city and identifies the key areas where we want to
focus our efforts to ensure we achieve results. These areas we describe as improvement
priorities. Finally, it sets targets for what will be achieved and how we will measure progress
over the three year journey.

VIEWS AND COMMITMENT
The experiences and views of a wide range of people in the city have been taken into
account in identifying the outcomes and improvement priorities in this plan. 71% of the
population of Leeds were involved in establishing the themes and priorities of the Vision for
Leeds during 2003 and 2004. As well as the consultation findings from that exercise we
have updated our understanding of what the people of Leeds want by gathering fresh
evidence. We consulted Councillors representing people of all communities in the City; we
drew on the latest results of the Annual Citizen’s Survey and we organised a series of focus
groups representative of the gender, age, ethnic origin, disability and sexuality profile of the
Leeds population.
We also consulted a wide range of city-wide networks and key partners who represent
different interests in the city. These included black and ethnic minority communities, local
businesses and voluntary sector networks and representatives and partners from education,
health, community safety, culture, transport, economic and environmental sectors.
Our discussions have been informed by the latest information available on the changing
context of Leeds in terms of social, economic, demographic and environmental data and
progress in reaching established targets in areas such as education, crime, health and
employment and the overall prosperity of the city. We have also considered the implications
of national policies where relevant, such as the ‘Every Child Matters’ agenda, promoting the
health and wellbeing of adults and economic, transport and housing policy developments.
We have a shared and inclusive vision of the changes we want to see over the next three
years and with our partners we are committed to turning our long term vision into. We know
too that there is a great commitment from those living, working, investing, volunteering and
participating in organisations and communities that will also make a huge contribution to
more positive changes in the city.

APPROACH
Many people have raised the importance of how we approach what we need to do over the
next three years. Below, are key areas that have been highlighted and will inform the spirit of
implementation.
•

Interconnectivity and partnership working

Getting to the root of many challenges in the city will require an awareness of the
interconnection between our different outcomes and improvement priorities. For example,
consistently raising achievement levels of young people in some of the most deprived areas
of Leeds involves raising the quality of life for families living in those communities; finding
solutions to, and engaging people in, employment opportunities; housing security and
environmental and health issues.

8
Page 78
56

Listening, sharing and learning from each other will help us identify where our efforts are
best concentrated to achieve the best results. Such a partnership approach is something we
are already proud of in the city and in many areas is mature and embedded as an approach
to delivering services. It has contributed to some impressive results. For example,
neighbourhoods in the city that are the most deprived according to recent results of a
national measure of multiple deprivation have reduced from 31 to 22 neighbourhoods.
However, it is important that we build on this strong basis and engage in more innovative
thinking about how needs can be met and services improved, effectively and efficiently,
through partnership working. A series of principles underpinning our approach to partnership
working is outlined on page 32.
•

Equality, cohesion and integration

We are committed to increasing equality for, and valuing the diversity of all communities in
Leeds. We recognise that priorities and actions can affect some communities or groups of
people who participate in the city differently. The plan has been reviewed in this respect and
careful and thorough assessments of more detailed targets and actions in all areas will need
to continue over its duration.
We also need to work more intensively to make sure that the implementation of our
‘improvement priorities’ supports and encourages a shared sense of belonging in all
communities in the city and widely shared sense of the contribution of different individuals
and groups to a future local vision. We recognise that people with different backgrounds
should experience similar life opportunities and access to services and work to develop a
strong sense of an individual’s local rights and responsibilities.
•

Sustainability

Finally, we need to ensure that any developments that meet the needs of the present do not
compromise the ability of future generation to meet their own needs. The plan has been
reviewed in terms of its impact on sustainable development, namely whether it promotes
living within environmental limits; ensures a strong, healthy and just society; helps to achieve
a sustainable economy; uses sound technology responsibly; and promotes good
governance. The sustainability criteria used in the review are the same as those being used
to review the city’s other plans.

MAKING IT WORK
The Council’s lead role in helping to shape the future of Leeds has been strengthened by
recent legislation - the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007. The
government has asked Council’s to work with partners to ensure that they jointly agree the
ambitions for their area over the next three years. Partners have also been asked to cooperate with Council’s and other partners to agree and deliver targets that ensure the
ambitions result in real change. These legal responsibilities are carried out in drawing up and
implementing this Plan as it fulfills the statutory requirements for Leeds to have a local area
agreement.
Leeds Initiative, the city’s overarching partnership body in Leeds, is the forum effective
partnership working, collectively monitoring and reviewing progress on the delivery of the
priorities in the Leeds Strategic Plan. All target-setting and consequent financial,
commissioning or contractual commitments agreed are put in place through Leeds City
Council as the accountable body and principal partner and by partners through their own

9
Page 79
57

strategic plans and decision making arrangements . These will be subject to the normal
scrutiny by Councillors and openness to the public.
Leeds Initiative thematic partnerships contribute to the development of the supporting
strategies and plans for the Vision for Leeds and for the Leeds Strategic Plan. Some of
these strategies provide an in-depth and longer term expression of the objectives or aspects
of a Vision theme, for example, Culture and Climate Change. Others are more specific, time
limited thematic plans that contain more detail of what will be delivered and by whom during
the lifespan of the Leeds Strategic Plan. Key strategies and plans are signposted in each
theme in Section 2.
Section 3 outlines how the plan will be delivered in greater detail. It shows how the Leeds
Strategic Plan fits into the overall framework of city-wide planning. It also sets out the
partnership principles that will guide how partners will work together over the duration of the
plan. Accountability is further clarified with an explanation of how performance will be
reviewed and managed. Finally, it explains the arrangements for reviewing and revising the
Plan as a whole.

10
Page 80
58

Section 2
Priorities by Theme

11
Page 81
59

Culture

Strategic Outcomes
What we want to see by 2011:
•

Increased participation in cultural opportunities through engaging with all our
communities.

•

Enhanced cultural opportunities through encouraging investment and
development of high quality facilities of national and international significance.

Context
Through culture in all its different forms, people can find enjoyment, enrich their lives, fulfil
their potential and keep active. The benefits of culture are linked to improved health,
wellbeing and educational attainment. A broad-based and diverse approach to culture can
both help to regenerate communities and contribute to the standing and profile of a city. We
seek to provide the widest range of opportunities for local people and visitors to experience
and participate in.
Consultation on the priorities for this plan showed that Leeds people prioritise the
participation by all groups and communities in cultural events. In the 2007 Annual Residents
Survey, over a quarter of residents said those activities specifically for teenagers should be a
priority for the council. Excellence, diversity and wider participation are also emphasised
nationally and the run up to the 2012 London Olympics will focus attention particularly on
participation in sport and broader cultural activities.
Leeds has a large and growing range of cultural events and facilities including, theatres,
galleries and museums, sporting venues, parks and open spaces, an International Concert
Season of more than 200 concerts per year, International Film Festivals, 53 Libraries and
renowned opera and ballet companies. Leeds City Council also has a longstanding
commitment to free events for local people such as Party and Opera in the Park and to
community festivals such as Chapeltown Carnival.
Over the last three years, substantial investment in cultural facilities has resulted in the first
phase of restoration of the Art Gallery and Central Library where we have seen an 85%
increase in visitor figures, the opening of the Kirkstall Abbey visitor centre; refurbishment of
the Grand Theatre, and opening of an Aquatics Centre at the John Charles Centre for Sport.
Further opportunities will be created by the opening of Leeds’ new museum in 2008,
restoration of the City Varieties Music Hall; a major redevelopment of Garforth Library and
two new leisure centres in Armley and Morley. Extensive consultation about parks and open
spaces has resulted in an additional £4.5m of investment to improve community parks
across the city.
However, there is still a great deal of progress to be made in ensuring that Leeds has the
highest quality cultural facilities and activity that are accessible and inclusive of all its
citizens. Some of Leeds’ cultural facilities still do not match the quality of its events or fulfil
their potential to help put Leeds on an international stage. A sustainable future also needs to
be found for some of Leeds’ most exciting cultural events, for them to thrive and grow.
We need to do more to increase people’s access to cultural opportunities. We are working
towards doubling visitor figures for Leeds’ museums and galleries; creating initiatives to

12
Page 82
60

bring more people to cultural buildings in the city centre and finding ways to better represent
all sections of the community and consult people about what they want.
Leeds is working particularly hard to ensure that young people can enjoy the cultural
opportunities on offer. The Breeze Card is an increasingly useful channel for children and
young people to access cultural activities and facilities. Over 167,000 Breeze card holders
participate in 100 holiday sports programmes while a further 15,500 attend Breeze on Tour
activities across Leeds.
We need to further develop ways of better coordinating
opportunities for young people to engage in creative activity outside school, to ensure that
no young people are left behind.
Our priorities listed below will enhance the cultural life of Leeds to reflect its status as a
vibrant cosmopolitan city and enable everyone to participate in and enjoy what the city has
to offer.

Improvement Priorities
What we want to deliver by 2011:
§

Enable more people to become involved in sport and culture by providing
better quality and wider ranging activities and facilities.

§

Facilitate the delivery of major cultural schemes of international significance.

Supporting Strategies:
Cultural Strategy*
Informed by:
•

Library Plan

•

Renaissance in the Regions (Museums
Strategy)

•

Parks and Greenspace Plan

•

Taking the Lead: A strategy for sport and
active recreation in Leeds 2006 to 2012

•

Physical Activity Strategy*

•

Children and Young People’s Plan 2006-09

*In development

13
Page 83
61

Enterprise and the Economy
Strategic Outcomes
What we want to see by 2011:
•

Increased entrepreneurship and innovation through effective support to
achieve the full potential of people, business and the economy.

•

Increased international competitiveness through marketing and investment in
high quality infrastructure and physical assets, particularly in the city centre.

Context
The story of Leeds is an undeniable success and the renaissance of the Leeds economy
underpins the city’s success.
Between 1996 and 2006 the city has seen Gross Value Added increase by 36% and 59,000
new jobs, more than any city outside London. Recent investment in the city has been
phenomenal with £3.2bn invested in commercial property development and a further £7.2bn
under construction or in the pipeline. Major new developments such as the £800m Eastgate
and Harewood Quarter, £300m Trinity Quarter, the regeneration of the Aire Valley and the
completion of the East Leeds Link road (which will unlock 400 hectares of prime
development land and a potential 30,000 jobs over the next 10-15 years) will build on the
recent history of success.
However, we are not complacent about Leeds’ future economic performance and significant
challenges remain. Leeds has produced fewer new start up businesses than other cities and
far fewer new businesses are set up in the poorest parts of the city. Similarly, consultation
for this plan showed that spreading enterprise to the more deprived parts of the city and
equipping the workforce with the skills to participate in the economy were key priorities. The
business community also emphasised the need to make the most of private sector
investment and enhance the city’s reputation as a centre for knowledge and innovation.
The city council fulfils a pivotal role in guiding the city’s renaissance and providing a
supportive framework for investment and development including investing in the public realm
– such as creating new public spaces like Millennium Square and redeveloping City Square.
The council and its partners are supporting economic development and regeneration in
neighbourhoods and local communities across the city in programmes such as the Town and
District Centre Programme and Local Enterprise Growth Initiative which is specifically aimed
at developing enterprise, creating new jobs and boosting prosperity in the city’s most
disadvantaged communities.
Leeds is also an engine of growth for the City Region and the region as a whole. In 2006, a
Leeds City Region Development Plan was launched to accelerate the creation of new jobs in
the area, particularly by enhancing transport links and the skills of the local workforce. A
multi area agreement between Leeds, its neighbouring local authorities and government will
help deliver the ambitious goals set out in the City Region Development Plan.
However, if Leeds is to achieve all it can for its residents and the wider region it must
establish itself on the international stage and attract businesses and investment from further

14
Page 84
62

afield. We are now developing a new Economic Development Strategy which will build on
the current core aims and incorporate many recent changes. This includes the recognition of
increasing globalisation and the growing consensus the significance and importance of
climate change.
Our priorities listed below seek to support our aspiration to ensure Leeds’ continued success
and establish it as a leading European city which provides better outcomes for local people
and narrows the gap between the most disadvantaged people and communities and the rest
of the city.

Improvement Priorities
What we want to deliver by 2011:
§

Increase innovation and entrepreneurial activity across the city.

§

Facilitate the delivery of major developments in the city centre to enhance the
economy and support local employment.

§

Increase international communications, marketing and business support
activities to promote the city and attract investment.

Supporting Strategies:
Leeds Economic Development Strategy*
Informed by:
§

City Region Development Plan

§

Regional Economic Strategy 2006-2015

§

Leeds Renaissance Framework

§

Regional Spatial Strategy to 2016
(Published December 2004)

§

Local Development Framework, core
strategy and other policies

*in development
§

15
Page 85
63

Learning
Strategic Outcomes
What we want to see by 2011:
•

An enhanced workforce that will meet future challenges through fulfilling
individual and economic potential and investing in learning facilities.

Context
Learning is central to achieving our aspirations for the city. A skilled and well-trained
workforce is vital for the future prosperity of Leeds and for everyone to share in that success.
In addition, learning and educational success helps to promote better wellbeing and health
for individuals and communities and supports a culturally vibrant city. The foundations for
this are laid in our schools but, increasingly, training to update and acquire new skills will be
a lifelong activity for us all.
Leeds’ schools and early year’s providers have made great progress in recent years,
strengthened by massive investment in award-winning new buildings and IT systems for
schools and children’s centres. Early year’s provision is a strength of the city and the most
recent results show strong improvements. Primary schools are good and results are in line
with national averages and performance in similar areas. Secondary schools have improved
strongly in recent years, particularly in those schools in the most challenging circumstances.
Results for 14 year olds are now in line with national averages and similar authorities.
Outcomes at GCSE have seen strong and sustained improvement so that results are now in
line with similar areas, and are close to the national average. However, despite this progress
significant challenges remain. Particular priorities include: increasing the progress made by
learners throughout secondary school; raising attendance in secondary schools and
reducing the number of students who are persistently absent; and lastly narrowing the gap in
achievement for vulnerable groups of children and young people, especially those from low
income families, those with special educational needs, some Black and Minority Ethnic
groups and lastly, but importantly, Looked After Children and Young People.
Increasing participation and educational success for young people is a key priority. At
present fewer young people continue in learning or employment after the age of 16 in Leeds
than in similar areas or nationally. Vulnerable groups of young people are more likely to not
be in learning and work. As such it is important that schools, colleges and partners continue
to work together to develop better choice and better routes and pathways to learning so that
all young people are engaged, successful and ready for adult life.
Around a fifth of the Leeds workforce were recorded as having no skills in 2005, and
although a survey showed in 2005 that 63 per cent of respondents had undertaken some
form of training in the previous year, more will have to be done if the workforce in Leeds is to
meet the national targets set out in the government’s review of skills needs published in
2006. This review set a target of 90% of the workforce having level 2 skills (equivalent to
five good GCSEs) by 2020. The current figure for Leeds is around 50%.
Consultation on the priorities for this plan showed strong support among all groups for
improving the results achieved by children and young people and raising the participation
levels among our children and young people in education and training. The business
community also emphasised the importance of the city’s universities and colleges.

16
Page 86
64

The priorities below address these issues and will measure the improvement achieved by
our young people and across the workforce over the coming three years.

Improvement Priorities
What we want to deliver by 2011:
§
§

Enhance the skill level of the workforce to fulfil individual and economic
potential.
Improve learning outcomes for all 16 year olds, with a focus on narrowing the
achievement gap.

§

Improve learning outcomes and skill levels for 19 year olds.

§

Increase the proportion of vulnerable groups engaged in education, training
or employment.

§

Improve participation and early learning outcomes for all children, with a
focus on families in deprived areas.

Supporting Strategies:
Children and Young People’s Plan 2006-2009
People Centred Places*
Informed by:
§

Leeds 14-19 Strategy 2006-2010

§

Education Leeds Strategic Plan 2004 – 2007

§

HE/FE Plans

*in development

17
Page 87
65

Transport

Strategic Outcomes
What we want to see by 2011:
•

Increased accessibility and connectivity through investment in a high quality
transport system and through influencing others and changing behaviours.

Context
Whether a journey is in a car, on a bus or train, on two wheels, or on foot and whether it is to
get to work, school or to the shops, quality of life is undoubtedly enhanced by being able to
move around more easily. Similarly, moving people and goods within Leeds and beyond is
key to the city being a good place to do business. Accessible, affordable, and convenient
transport will make a big contribution to the city being a place where people want to live and
work. Our aspirations are to deliver this goal and ensure that future growth is not constrained
by transport difficulties.
Leeds has good transport links - the M1, M621 and A1 (M) provide good road links to other
parts of the country; Leeds’ railway station has the highest number of passengers of any
station outside London with 90,000 passengers using the station every day and it has
recently undergone refurbishment to meet this growing demand. Leeds also has an
extensive bus network with about 90 million passenger journeys every year. Innovations like
guided bus routes along converted central reservations have improved journey reliability and
punctuality.
Transport is however, a major concern for local people. Consultation during the autumn of
2007 to identify priorities for this plan found that improving the quality, accessibility and use
of public transport was a priority for all groups and improving access to job opportunities was
a key issue for many. Similarly, the business community emphasised the need to improve
international links and connectivity for the benefit of both local businesses and people. In
2007 residents said that road and pavement repairs were the most important issue in their
local area and should also be a top priority for the council.
However, as more people live in and travel to work in Leeds, greater strain will be imposed
on the transport system. Road traffic grew by 4.9% between 1996 and 2006 and further
growth is predicted. In 2001 around 108,000 people commuted into Leeds daily for work
and that number is estimated to have grown significantly in recent years; and in 2006 the
total number of trips into the city averaged about 122,500 a day; consequently, further
investment to boost the capacity of the transport system, particularly for buses and trains in
Leeds will be needed to meet rising demand within the city and the surrounding area.
A proposal to upgrade the city’s buses and develop a high grade transit system is under
development and this could deliver a fast and convenient alternative to the car for many
journeys, as well as reducing congestion and pollution. With our neighbouring local
authorities and Metro, we are working together to improve rail and bus links within and
around Leeds and have established an ambitious 25 year Transport Vision which will ensure
that these improvements are City Region based rather than just within Leeds. We are also
investing heavily in highways maintenance to significantly improve the network.
Supplementing Central Government funding, we have made an extra £82m available to

18
Page 88
66

complete hundreds of schemes across the city by 2012 which will significantly improve the
condition of our streets.
The priorities below address these issues and also indicate how improving our streets and
roads and public transport can contribute to reducing the number of people killed or seriously
injured in traffic accidents as well as help to improve the city’s environment.

Improvement Priorities
What we want to deliver by 2011:
§

Deliver and facilitate a range of transport proposals for an enhanced transport
system, including cycling and walking.

§

Improve the quality, use and accessibility of public transport services in
Leeds.

§

Improve the condition of the streets and transport infrastructure by carrying
out a major programme of maintenance and improvements.

§

Improve road safety for all our users, especially motor cyclists pedal cyclists
and pedestrians.

Supporting Strategies:
West Yorkshire Local Transport Plan 2006-2011
Informed by:
§

25 year Leeds city-region Transport Vision

§

Highways Asset Management Plan

§

Traffic Management Action Plans

§

Regional Transport Strategy as part of
Regional Spatial Strategy

* in development

19
Page 89
67

Environment

Strategic Outcomes
What we want to see by 2011:

•

•

Reduced ecological footprint through responding to environmental and climate
change and influencing others.

•

Cleaner, greener and more attractive city through effective environmental
management and changed behaviours.

Context
We are fully committed to being at the leading edge of responding to the challenge of climate
change and so managing and adapting to this challenge is a key priority for Leeds.
Fortunately, Leeds is well placed to meet this challenge. The council monitors its impact on
the environment through the rigorous EMAS standard including issues relating to air quality
and environmental noise, and with local partners working together to develop a Climate
Change Strategy to mitigate the impact of climate change on the city.
Local residents also feel the environmental challenge is important. In 2007, 14% of local
residents surveyed said that a clean neighbourhood (without litter or graffiti) was one of the
five things most in need of improvement in their area. A third of residents said that rubbish
and litter lying around was a local problem and over a quarter said that vandalism and graffiti
were also local problems. Linked issues like the state of pavements and roads and access
to parks and green space were also cited as issues of concern. A well maintained
environment contributes to other important aspects of wellbeing like accessibility and
opportunities for leisure and relaxation, and we are proud that two-thirds of Leeds’ area is
green space and a number of our parks have already achieved Green Flag status. Extensive
consultation about parks and open spaces has resulted in an additional £4.5m of investment
to improve community parks.
Waste and recycling is also important locally. Doorstep recycling collection and local
recycling facilities have been used by virtually all local residents and there are generally high
levels of satisfaction with the facilities provided in Leeds. However, Leeds’ performance in
terms of recycling and particularly waste going to landfill is average in comparison with other
authorities and further progress will be needed to meet the ambitious targets we have set for
recycling.
The environment is a key priority locally, nationally and globally. The UK Government is on
track to reduce its CO2 and other greenhouse gas emissions by 12.5 per cent (using 1990
levels as a baseline) as part of its commitment under the Kyoto Protocol. This has been
achieved through greater energy efficiency; promoting less polluting and encouraging the
use of renewable sources of energy; and also reducing the amount of pollution emitted from
all energy sources. The current Climate Change Bill proposes a statutory framework for
reducing greenhouse gas emissions and will set ‘carbon budgets’ to drive forward reductions
in CO2 emissions by households, businesses, local authorities and other public bodies.
We will all have an obligation to change our behaviour to mitigate the effects of climate
change. The council, for example, is already reducing its impact on the environment by
switching the majority of its electricity to ‘green electricity’, establishing schemes within its

20
Page 90
68

buildings to involve staff in managing environmental impacts, and delivering and advising on
energy efficiency in both privately owned and Housing Association homes. Through planning
regulations, developers and partners are being encouraged to improve design quality and
sustainability to reduce the environmental impact of their activities. For example, developers
working in Holbeck Urban Village have produced a sustainability report to support planning
applications which covers energy efficiency, waste management and the reduction of CO2
emissions.
The impact of climate change can be clearly seen in Leeds and will be an increasingly
critical issue for the city. Parts of the city were flooded, both in June 07 and January 08, and
consequently we are working with our partners and actively participating in seeking to secure
an effective flood defence system.
The priorities below set out where we are concentrating our efforts over the next three years
to take on the challenge to improve the city’s environment.

Improvement Priorities
What we want to deliver by 2011:
§

Increase the amount of waste reused and recycled and reduce the amount of
waste going to landfill.

§

Reduce emissions from public sector buildings, operations and service
delivery, and encourage others to do so.

§

Undertake actions to improve our resilience to current and future climate
change.

§

Address neighbourhood problem sites; improve cleanliness and access to
and quality of green spaces.

§

Improve the quality and sustainability of the built and natural environment.

Supporting Strategies:
§ Local Development Framework
§ Regional Spatial Strategy to 2016
§ Climate Change Strategy
§ Integrated Waste Strategy 2006 - 2025
§ Leeds Strategic Flood risk assessment
§ West Yorkshire Local Transport Plan
§ Energy and Water Management Plan
§ Parks and Greenspace Strategy
*in development

21
Page 91
69

Health and Wellbeing
Strategic Outcomes
What we want to see by 2011:
•

Reduced health inequalities through the promotion of healthy life choices and
improved access to services.

•

Improved quality of life through maximising the potential of vulnerable people
by promoting independence, dignity and respect.

•

Enhanced safety and support for vulnerable people through preventative and
protective action to minimise risks and maximise wellbeing.

Context
People in Leeds are growing healthier and living longer. At birth men can expect to live for
76.2 years compared to 74.6 years in 1997. Life expectancy at birth for women has
increased from 80.1 years to 81.2 in the same period.
A challenge for Leeds is that this increase is not evenly spread across the city. The gap
between richer and poorer areas of Leeds can be counted in extra years of life and it is not
narrowing. Despite the death rate falling in Leeds during the last ten years, the fall has been
faster in the wealthier parts of the city. Children born today in the city’s most disadvantaged
neighbourhood can expect to live almost twelve years less than those in areas of Leeds
which enjoy the best health.
As people live longer they should also enjoy more years of good health. Again this is more
likely in the wealthier parts of the city. It is inevitable that longer life and the increasing
number of older people will increase the need for additional services or support to maximise
the capacity of elderly or vulnerable people to continue living independently.
Health is influenced by many different factors. Some of these will be improved by action
undertaken within other themes, particularly culture through sport and physical activity and
the environment through cleaner air and noise reduction. Our lifestyles and choices around
issues like smoking, drinking or exercise have an impact not just on our health as individuals
but also on the health needs of Leeds as a whole. People with poor diets or who do not take
enough exercise are much more likely to become overweight or obese which brings with it a
higher risk of diabetes, stroke or heart disease. Excessive drinking also contributes to ill
health and increases the risk of injury or accidents. The rate of sexually transmitted
diseases is rising among young people in Leeds.
Leeds is rising to the challenge to have active lifestyles that encourage improved health and
well-being. In 2007, there were over four million visits to Leeds City Council leisure centres
and 36,470 visits to ‘Active Life’ classes, for people aged over 50, across the city.
Through schemes such as Keeping House which has assisted over 2,000 older and disabled
people in Leeds to find practical support and help in the home, the council and its partners
are working hard to help adults and particularly older adults to live happy and independent
lives. Adult care services in Leeds have recently been commended for achieving quality of
life improvements for vulnerable adults and helping them to get better access to services.

22
Page 92
70

By giving direct payments to more people we are working to give more choice to people so
that they can choose for themselves the services they want. Take up of direct payments
have more than doubled over the past 12 months resulting in over 300 more people having
greater choice and control over the services they receive.
To meet the challenge of reducing health inequalities in Leeds, the Council working with our
key partners in the health service we will work to increase the number who quit smoking, and
increase their rate of physical activity across all age groups. In partnership the Council will
also tackle drug and alcohol misuse co-ordiante action to reduce the number of teenage
conceptions. We want to give greater independence to vulnerable people by supporting
them to choose the services to improve their opportunity and quality of life. Direct payments
and individual budgets will help to achieve this alongside improved access to mainstream
services, such as training for a job or enjoying local community and recreational facilities.
There remains much more to do to reduce health inequalities for local people and improve
their physical, mental and social wellbeing. Our new priorities set out below detail how we
will meet these challenges in the coming years.

Improvement Priorities
By 2011:
§

Reduce premature mortality in the most deprived areas.

§

Reduce the number of people who smoke.

§

Reduce rate of increase in obesity and raise physical activity for all.

§

Reduce teenage conception and improve sexual health.

§

Improved assessment and care management for children, families and
vulnerable adults.

§

Improved psychological mental health and learning disabilities services for
all who need it.

§

Increase the number of vulnerable people helped to live at home.

§

Increased proportion of people in receipt of community services enjoying
choice and control over their daily lives.

§

Improve safeguarding arrangements for vulnerable children and adults
through better information, recognition and response to risk.

23
Page 93
71

Supporting Strategies:
Health and Wellbeing Plan*
Children and Young People’s Plan 2006-9
Informed by:
§

Leeds Tobacco Control Strategy 2006-2010

§

Food Matters: a food strategy for Leeds 20062010

§

Leeds Childhood Obesity Strategy 2006-2016

§

Leeds Alcohol Strategy 2007-2010

§

Older Better Strategy 2006-2011

§

Leeds Emotional Health Strategy 2008/11

§

Leeds Mental Health Strategy 2006-2011

§

Supporting People Strategy 2005-2010

§

Physical Activity Strategy

§

West Yorkshire Local Transport Plan

*in development

24
Page 94
72

Thriving Neighbourhoods

Strategic Outcomes
What we want to see by 2011:
•

Improved quality of life through mixed neighbourhoods offering good housing
options and better access to services and activities.

•

Reduced crime and fear of crime through prevention, detection, offender
management and changed behaviours.

•

Increased economic activity through targeted support to reduce worklessness
and poverty.

Context
The priorities in this theme are key concerns of local people. Low crime, low levels of antisocial behaviour and affordable, decent housing are the three most important things for
making somewhere a good place to live according to Leeds residents in 2007. Tackling
crime and anti-social behaviour were also cited as two of the top five priorities for the Council
to tackle.
Stakeholders consulted on priorities for this plan echoed the views of residents: crime,
housing and reducing worklessness were chosen as the top priorities in that exercise.
Councillors in particular saw this theme as vital for ‘narrowing the gap’ in the city between
areas with low crime, good housing and high employment and more deprived parts of Leeds.
Partnership work with West Yorkshire Police to reduce crime, anti-social behaviour and the
fear of crime in those neighbourhoods with the highest crime levels has proved successful
with crime falling by more than a quarter over the last three years, the second highest fall in
crime in the country. However, there is more to do to reduce crime further by targeting
persistent offenders and addressing anti-social behaviour and the problems that arise from
alcohol and drug misuse.
The council has made significant progress in improving council housing to ensure that by
2010 it will meet the national ‘Decent Homes’ standard. Work with private sector landlords
has resulted in over 2,300 empty homes being brought back into use in the last year and we
have provided grants and advice to enable lower income households to heat their homes as
cheaply and efficiently as possible. However, many households are finding it increasingly
difficult to buy or rent a home in the city and higher fuel bills mean that an increasing number
of residents find it difficult to heat their homes.
The Council will work with its partners to deliver more new housing at a level that is
affordable to buy and rent to ensure that we can meet the housing needs for all residents
and not just those on high incomes. Work is underway to improve existing homes and build
new homes through our existing PFI scheme in Swarcliffe with further work planned for Little
London and Beeston Hill. The East and South East Leeds Project (EASEL) will deliver over
5,000 new homes, along with community facilities and businesses over the next 15-20 years,
helping to create strong and sustainable communities in those areas.

25
Page 95
73

There are neighbourhoods where too many people do not have a job, households are
dependent on benefits and children grow up in poverty. Many residents do not have a bank
account or can not borrow or save money at reasonable rates. The Council will work with its
partners to support residents to obtain the right skills to secure work and progress in existing
and new jobs. We will extend our award winning programmes to give households greater
control over their money and access to trustworthy and reliable savings and credit so that
families can be financially secure.
The priorities below build on these successful programmes to create the conditions for
thriving neighbourhoods over the next three years.

Improvement Priorities
By 2011:
§

Increase the number of “decent homes”.

§

Increase the number of affordable homes.

§

Reduction in the number of homeless people.

§

Reduce the number of people who are not able to adequately heat their
homes.

§

Increased financial inclusion in deprived areas.

§

Reduce crime and fear of crime.

§

Reduce offending.

§

Reduce the harm from drugs and alcohol to individuals and society.

§

Reduce anti-social behaviour.

§

Reduced bullying and harassment.

§

Reduce worklessness across the city with a focus on deprived areas.

§

Reduce the number of children in poverty.

§

Develop extended services, using sites across the city, to improve support
to children, families and communities.

26
Page 96
74

Supporting Strategies:
Leeds Housing Strategy 2005/06 – 2009/10
Regional Spatial Strategy
Local Development Framework
Children and Young People’s Plan 2006-9
Safer Leeds Strategy 2005 -2008
Regional Spatial Strategy - 2016
Local Development Framework
Informed by:
§

Leeds Affordable Warmth Strategy 20072016

§

Leeds Domestic Violence Strategy 20042007

§

Leeds Alcohol Strategy 2007-2010

27
Page 97
75

Harmonious Communities

Strategic Outcomes
What we want to see by 2011:
•

More inclusive, varied and vibrant communities through empowering people to
contribute to decision making and delivering local services.

•

Improved community cohesion and integration through meaningful involvement
and valuing equality and diversity.

Context
Local pride, a sense of belonging and neighbourliness are key ingredients for the sorts of
places people want to live in. Leeds residents report high levels of belonging and
satisfaction with where they live. In the 2007 Annual Residents Survey three quarters of
respondents said they feel they belong to their neighbourhood and nearly half (46%) said
they feel that local people work together to improve their neighbourhood. Two thirds of
residents said that people of different backgrounds got on well together and three fifths of
residents said that people respected ethnic difference where they lived. Overall 81% were
satisfied with their neighbourhood as a place to live.
However, not all parts of the city share this sense of belonging and neighbourliness in equal
measures. Residents in the south of the city were less likely to say they belonged to their
neighbourhood or that people worked together to improve their neighbourhood. Young
people were less likely than older people to say that people of different backgrounds got on
well together where they lived or that people respected ethnic differences where they lived.
Although a third of residents said they were satisfied with the way they could influence public
services in their area, over a third said they would like more say in making decisions that
affected their local area.
In parts of the city the Council has put in place Neighbourhood Managers to encourage local
people to speak out and work with those delivering services to make the changes needed in
their neighbourhood. Results show that people in these areas feel that they can make
themselves heard and that they are listened to. Satisfaction with the way that problems like
litter, graffiti or anti-social behaviour are dealt with has risen. Other services like the Police
have also put in place neighbourhood teams so that they are closer to the local community
they serve.
There are numerous groups and organisations in the city, known collectively as the
Voluntary, Community and Faith sector, that support a wide range of activity and services
needed in local communities. These organisations provide opportunities for local people to
volunteer their time and skills to help others in their community and foster good relationships.
Groups such as these are often community led and supported by grant funding and are
vulnerable to changes in the way public services are delivered and grant funding is provided.
The council is committed to working in partnership with this sector to ensure that it can
continue to offer locally based services and opportunities for local citizens to take an active
part in community life.
A growing and increasingly diverse population creates new challenges as well as
opportunities for creating strong cohesive communities. Integrating new migrants from

28
Page 98
76

Eastern Europe as well as long established communities will enrich the city over time but
perceptions of disadvantage or unfairness need to be addressed immediately. Fostering
more ways for people to engage in and shape the life of their communities will be a vital part
of the process of creating strong, sustainable and harmonious communities.
The priorities and targets below will measure progress towards these goals over the next
three years.

Improvement Priorities
What we want to deliver by 2011:
§

An increased number of local people engaged in activities to meet
community needs and improve the quality of life for local residents.

§

An increase in the number of local people that are empowered to have a
greater voice and influence over local decision making and a greater role in
public service delivery.

§

Enable a robust and vibrant voluntary, community and faith sector to facilitate
community activity and directly deliver services.

§

An increased sense of belonging and pride in local neighbourhoods that help
to build cohesive communities.

Supporting Strategies:
Community Engagement Framework 2006
Community Cohesion Action Plan
Children and Young People’s Plan 2006-9

29
Page 99
77

SECTION 3
MAKING IT HAPPEN

30
Page
Page100
78

STREAMLINING THE CITY’S PLANNING FRAMEWORK
The Leeds Strategic Plan sets out the goals that Leeds City Council and its partners have
agreed to achieve over the next three years to help achieve the longer term objectives
contained in the Vision for Leeds 2004 to 2020. The Leeds Strategic Plan is effectively the
delivery plan for the long term Vision for Leeds.
We have used the legal requirement to develop a new Local Area Agreement (LAA) for
Leeds as an opportunity to make the planning process in the city simpler. The Leeds
Strategic Plan replaces two plans, the Council’s Corporate Plan, which contained the
Council’s priorities for the City (and itself as an organisation) and the Leeds Regeneration
Plan which focused on ‘narrowing the gap’ between the poorest and wealthiest parts of
Leeds.
Leeds City Council and its partners have also revised the structural arrangements of the
Leeds Initiative to ensure that the partnership is fit for purpose to deliver the ambitions laid
out in our Vision for Leeds and our outcomes and priorities in the Leeds Strategic Plan.
The council has produced its own Business Plan which will describe how the council will
organise itself to deliver what it has agreed to do in the Leeds Strategic Plan. Other partners
will also have their own business and action plans to deliver what is agreed in this plan and
integrate their other goals.
City wide plans will be translated into action at an area level and for particular services. Area
delivery plans (ADPs) will provide the local interpretation of the Leeds Strategic Plan
reflecting and shaping the partnership activities for each area. The Area Delivery Plans are
developed by each of the ten area committees. These committees are led by councillors
representing local citizens embedding democratic accountability into partnership activities at
an area level. Local councillors have extensive knowledge of local conditions and can
articulate priorities from different perspectives.
On a different scale, it is increasingly an accepted fact that the Leeds economy works on a
wider scale than the administrative boundaries of the city, and the success of Leeds also
brings greater prosperity to neighbouring towns and cities. Therefore, to complement the
targets in the Leeds Strategic Plan we have also agreed a Multi Area Agreement (MAA) for
Leeds and its neighbouring authorities.
We have also taken into account other local and regional plans, including the Local
Development Framework and the Regional Spatial Strategy and the Regional Economic
Strategy.

EFFECTIVE DELIVERY THROUGH PARTNERSHIP WORKING
Leeds has a good record of partnership working. Since 1990 Leeds Initiative has brought
together public agencies, private businesses and voluntary, community and faith groups to
develop a shared vision of a successful, prosperous and inclusive Leeds. Leeds Initiative
has also developed a ‘Compact for Leeds’ to support the work of the city’s voluntary,
community and faith groups. This recognises the role and value and community activity. It
encourages the effective use of resources and promotes equal partnerships through good
communication, consultation and sharing of information.

31
Page 101
79

Building on these foundations Leeds City Council and its partners have adopted a set of
partnership principles to make sure that our joint efforts really do achieve our common
ambition:
to bring the benefits of a prosperous, vibrant and attractive city to all the people of
Leeds
through:
•

focusing on the partners’ common purpose and community needs;

•

having clear responsibilities and arrangements for accountability;

•

good conduct and behaviour, treating all partners and stakeholders equally, fairly and
respectfully;

•

informed, transparent decision-making and managing risk;

•

developing skills and capacity individually and as a partnership to deliver the
outcomes and priorities in this plan; and

•

engaging stakeholders in drawing up our outcomes, priorities and targets and
keeping people informed on how well we are delivering.

The challenge for the Leeds Strategic Plan is to apply these principles to deliver real
improvements for local people. This requires new ways of partnership working in Leeds,
sharing information and pooling resources among partners where this brings benefits
through greater effectiveness and efficiency. The Local Government and Public Involvement
in Health Act 2007 creates a new duty for partners to cooperate in the delivery of targets in
this Plan and this sets a context for us to deepen partnership working. Closer partnerships
may be the right solution in many cases and the Council and its partners will explore the
potential of extending joint service delivery and joint commissioning to deliver services more
efficiently and effectively.

MEASURING AND MANAGING PERFORMANCE
Delivering on our targets is essential if the Leeds Strategic Plan is to achieve our ambitions
for Leeds and its residents. This will be a collective endeavour for all the partners to this
agreement. Senior council officers will have lead accountability for each of themes,
improvement priorities and targets in the Leeds Strategic Plan and will work with similar
senior officers in partner organisations. Every partner will have regard to all the targets in the
Plan when drawing up their own budgets and business plans. Partners will commit to
leading or contributing to the achievement of specific targets in the Plan and will then be held
to account for doing the things needed to meet those targets.
We have developed reliable measures for each target and have put in place robust
processes for regularly reporting performance. These processes will measure progress
against each target as well as the Plan’s impact on wider objectives like equality, community
cohesion and sustainability. For some targets, measures will be broken down by their
impact on particular areas of the city and on the basis of gender, ethnic origin, age, disability,
religion or belief and sexual orientation.

32
Page
Page102
80

The Council is ultimately accountable for working with its partners to draw up and deliver the
Plan.
The Executive Board (of senior councillors) will receive regular reports on
performance and recommend actions and changes to plans where performance is not on
target. The council’s Scrutiny Boards will also receive regular performance reports and have
an opportunity to discuss issues of concern, call-in council officers and partners to account
for their work to deliver targets in the plan and make recommendations to the council and its
partners to improve performance.
The Leeds Strategic Plan is a partnership plan and the Council will, through the Leeds
Initiative, agree its contents with and engage partners to monitor and manage the
performance of the plan. The Leeds Strategy Group will bring together the Council and its
partners to monitor performance against the targets in the plan, allocate resources, develop
new ways of delivering more effectively for Leeds and regularly review the contents of the
plan.
Other thematic groups in the Leeds Initiative will also be kept informed of progress in
relevant areas and contribute to the delivery of the Leeds Strategic Plan through developing
more in-depth strategies and action plans. Local business representatives and
representatives from voluntary, community and faith groups are involved alongside public
sector partners in the work of these groups.
The ten area committees across the city will also be reviewing progress towards achieving
targets identified at an area level. They will be particularly vigilant in assessing
improvements at a neighbourhood, as well as an area, level. The achievement of these
targets will make a fundamental contribution to achieving the overall city wide targets and
outcomes.
Local people will receive regular updates on performance through stories in About Leeds,
the Council newspaper, on the Council and Leeds Initiative websites and elsewhere. For
example, progress will be reported to the Leeds Youth Council. Everyone will have
opportunities to give their views on how well the Leeds Strategic Plan is being delivered.
Up to 35 targets in this plan have been negotiated and agreed with Government Office and
reflect shared priorities with national government. Progress against these targets must be
reported annually to the government who must agree to any changes to these targets. .

REVIEWING AND REVISING THE LEEDS STRATEGIC PLAN
Leeds’ priorities will inevitably change over time and the priorities and targets in the Leeds
Strategic Plan will be regularly reviewed and updated to ensure this plan is still relevant and
addresses the city’s real needs.
The council and its partners will collect and use information on social, economic and
environmental conditions and trends, including performance data against the targets in this
plan, to change priorities and set new targets as necessary. Already, the council and the
PCT are working jointly to assess current and future health needs in Leeds through a Joint
Strategic Needs Assessment. The findings from this assessment will inform future health
priorities in this plan.
Public opinion, gained through regular resident surveys will also feed into the setting of
priorities and targets in future versions of this plan. The views of council Scrutiny Boards,
Area Committees and other partners and stakeholders will also be taken into account before
the council and its partners agree any changes to the contents of the Plan.

33
Page 103
81

The Audit Commission will assess on an annual basis conditions and prospects for the city
through a new Comprehensive Area Assessment process. Achievement of the targets in the
Leeds strategic plan will form part of the Audit Commission’s annual assessment of how well
Leeds is improving. Further, more specific reviews on particular issues can be required
where the Comprehensive Area Assessment suggests there is a risk of underperformance.
Where the Audit Commission feels that performance in Leeds is unsatisfactory it will
recommend new priorities for the Leeds Strategic Plan and the council and its partners will
negotiate with the Government whether a target should be set to address that issue.
Government Office will monitor performance and initiate discussions where performance is
not on track and can intervene where performance is significantly below what is expected.
At every stage the Council will inform, consult and involve local people, representatives of
geographical communities and communities of interest, partners and stakeholders in the city
and beyond where relevant, and draw on expert analysis to ensure that the priorities and
targets in the plan have been rigorously challenged, are truly robust and are relevant to the
achievement of our ambitions for Leeds.

34
Page
Page104
82

DOCUMENT C

COUNCIL
BUSINESS PLAN
2008-11

1
Page 83

2
Page 84

Foreword
We are delighted to present the Council Business Plan which covers the period from
1 April 2008 until 31 March 2011. This is the sister plan to the Leeds Strategic Plan
2008-11 and its successful delivery is vital to the delivery of our shared outcomes
and priorities detailed in that plan. It may be helpful to think of the Council Business
Plan as the smarter working that helps us to achieve the better results in the
Leeds Strategic Plan.
There are a number of challenges ahead. Not only do our citizens expect us to
deliver excellent services that meet their needs and are good value for money; but
this is in the context of a tight financial settlement from Government. We will need to
be more efficient and to deliver more for less.
This plan is structured around a set of business outcomes and improvement
priorities which set the roadmap for our business transformation and organisational
change over the next three years. We feel our vision for the organisation is very well
expressed in our outcomes which are:
Ø We are a values led organisation and our people are motivated and
empowered.
Ø We are an intelligent organisation, using good quality information to deliver
better outcomes.
Ø Our resources are clearly prioritised to provide excellent services and value
for money.
The delivery of this plan will set us well on the way to realising our vision.
The plan also includes the principles underpinning our financial planning and
methodology we will use to allocate our resources to support the delivery of the
Leeds Strategic and Council Business Plans.
This plan has been prepared through a process of consultation and we are pleased
that many of you have already had the opportunity to input your ideas for
improvement. However, we know that the real challenge is in the translation of this
plan from paper into reality. This will require each and every one of our people, staff
and elected members alike, to take on these challenges and make the changes
happen on a day-to-day basis. We need everyone to play their part in putting our
values at the heart of what they do and in all their interactions with each other, our
customers and partners.
We would like to take this opportunity to thank everyone in advance for the hard
work and dedication that will go into making this plan a reality.
Cllr Andrew Carter, Leader of the Conservative Group
Cllr Richard Brett, Leader of the Liberal Democrat Group
Paul Rogerson, Chief Executive

3
Page 85

Contents
Contents..................................................................................................................... 4
SECTION 1 – Introduction and Context ..................................................................... 5
Introduction............................................................................................................. 5
Our Planning Framework........................................................................................ 5
The Challenges for Local Government ................................................................... 6
Section 2 – What we want to achieve......................................................................... 8
Our Vision for the Future ........................................................................................ 8
Our Outcomes, Improvement Priorities and Big Ideas............................................ 9
Section 3 – Resourcing our priorities........................................................................ 23
Context ................................................................................................................. 23
Development of the Plan ...................................................................................... 24
Overall Shape of the Plan..................................................................................... 25
Allocation of Resources ........................................................................................ 26
Service Implications.............................................................................................. 26
Financial Risk Assessment................................................................................... 27
Summary .............................................................................................................. 27
Section 4 – Making it happen ................................................................................... 29
Underlying principles and linkages ....................................................................... 29
Measuring and managing performance ................................................................ 30
Section 5 – Managing Our Risks.............................................................................. 32
Section 6 – Review and Revision ............................................................................. 33
Appendix 1 – Summary of all indicators, targets and accountable officers
Appendix 2 – Useful information Glossary, Where to find out more
About this publication – other languages, formats

4
Page 86

SECTION 1 – Introduction and Context
“Our Mission is to bring the benefits of a prosperous,
vibrant and attractive city to all the people of Leeds”
Introduction
Leeds City Council is already a high performing authority and has been consistently
judged in recent years as a high performer when compared against other local
authorities. However, we recognise that in order to continue to be a top performing
organisation we need to carry on changing and adapting. We must be flexible,
responsive and confident in order to rise effectively to the challenges provided by the
changing needs of our citizens and the public service landscape we work within. We
must make sure that our staff perform well, are constantly learning and that there is
effective leadership at all levels. This needs to happen whilst we also transform our
services so our customers receive excellent services which are efficient, effective
and meet their needs.

Our Planning Framework
This plan, the Council Business Plan 2008-11, forms a key part of our planning
framework which is illustrated in the diagram below:

5
Page 87

The Leeds Strategic Plan 2008-11 sets out the outcomes and improvement
priorities that Leeds City Council, either on its own or in partnership with others, has
agreed to achieve over the next three years to help deliver the longer term objectives
contained in the Vision for Leeds 2004 to 2020. Or put another way the Leeds
Strategic Plan is the delivery plan for the long term Vision for Leeds but also includes
within it our obligations to prepare and agree a Local Area Agreement1 (LAA).
This plan, the Council Business Plan 2008-11, plays a key role as it sets out our
business development, organisational change, business transformation and financial
planning activities for the next three years. The successful delivery of the Council
Business Plan will make sure that we, as an organisation, are in good shape to be
able to deliver on the Leeds Strategic Plan 2008-11.
Area delivery plans (ADPs) provide the local interpretation of the Leeds Strategic
Plan reflecting and shaping the partnership activities for each area. The ADPs are
developed by each of the ten area committees. These committees are led by
councillors representing local citizens embedding democratic accountability into
partnership activities at an area level.
In addition, individual service plans provide information on the specific tasks, actions
and resources required to achieve the high level priorities and targets set out in the
Leeds Strategic Plan and the Council Business Plan. They are developed annually
at service level and are monitored throughout the year. These plans provide the link
through to team and individual plans.

The Challenges for Local Government
There are many challenges facing local government, arising from the changing
needs of our citizens and communities, as well as from central government’s reform
agenda. We will have to be flexible and responsive in order to rise to these
challenges and deliver the improvements needed. Some of these key challenges
include:
Place shaping role – under new legislation the council’s role to provide strategic
leadership for the city is further enhanced. At the heart of this is the Local Area
Agreement (LAA) which includes a single set of improvement priorities to ensure that
we and our partners are all working closely together on the things that matter to local
people. In Leeds we have incorporated the requirements to prepare a Local Area
Agreement into the Leeds Strategic Plan 2008-11 and through this improvements will
be monitored and co-ordinated across the city.

1

The LAA is an agreement we sign with Government which sets out a limited number of improvement
areas that reflect national and local priorities.

6
Page 88

Choice and personalisation – “one size fits all” is no longer an acceptable
approach to delivering services. Citizens expect more choice, they expect services
to be tailored to their needs, joined up and delivered in convenient ways and at a
time that suits them. Clearly this is a two way process where we consult and engage
with local people and they are empowered to get involved. Also key to this is the
strengthening of the role of local councillors and local democratic arrangements.
Value for Money/Efficiency – the 2007 Comprehensive Spending Review presents
an important challenge as we are being asked to deliver high quality services within
a tight budget settlement. This will require us to be more efficient and innovative and
up the pace of improvement and transformation - making the most of a variety of
tools and techniques including:
Ø
Ø
Ø
Ø
Ø

Business process improvement to re-design services around customer needs;
Collaborative approaches to service delivery;
Smart procurement and use of competition;
Better use of technology; and
Improved asset management.

Comprehensive Area Assessment 2(CAA) – the CAA will focus on the outcomes
being delivered in the city, not only by us, but also jointly with our partners. It will be
based much more on the priorities which are important locally as set out in the Leeds
Strategic Plan 2008-11. This new regime has fewer indicators and targets through a
single National Indicator set of 198 indicators, supported by locally defined indicators
where appropriate, focusing much more on the outcomes delivered for local people.

2

The CAA is the new performance management regime being introduced by the Audit Commission to
assess the councils’ performance against the outcomes and improvement priorities it, along with its
partners, have agreed for Leeds.

7
Page 89

Section 2 – What we want to achieve
Our Vision for the Future
Ultimately we want to be an organisation that ensures the delivery of improved
outcomes for the city of Leeds and its people; has a strong culture of ‘One Council’
represented through the behaviours of our colleagues and forges effective
partnerships for the good of the city and its citizens. In order to achieve this we will
need to embrace new ways of working, make best use of technology, innovate and
collaborate, continuously improve and deliver real customer focus.
We have already started this journey of transformation - in 2006 the Council’s
Executive Board received a report outlining proposals in respect of the next phase of
the Council’s change programme. Branded Smarter Working: Better Results its
objectives are to:
§
§
§
§
§

Create an organisation that is flexible and responsive, clearly focused on
delivering improved outcomes for local people;
Increase organisational capacity to provide more effective strategic leadership
and direction for both the organisation and the city;
Maximise the contribution of senior and middle managers to increase capacity
and creativity within the organisation to better enable service improvement
and modernisation;
Organise Council services in the most appropriate and effective way having
regard to the outcomes being sought for the city and its people, and
Create an ethos of a one council approach.

This change programme has already delivered some significant pieces of work
including: the creation of four new thematic directorates and the alignment of the
new Leeds Strategic Plan with the Local Area Agreement. We recognise that it will
take some time to fully achieve some of these objectives, particularly those that
relate to changes in culture and behaviours which need time to become fully
embedded. Two of the most important strands of work already underway include:
Ø Our leadership challenge ‘From Good to Great’ which was launched in
September 2007. This sets out the behaviours and culture we are aspiring to
create and covers both Council and partner representatives recognising the need
to respond to the challenge of leadership across the city.
Ø We are developing a one council approach which ensures that our Chief Officers
and senior managers have greater accountability for service delivery and service
performance. This includes developing arrangements that ensures we work
effectively in partnership with others and establish mechanisms to ensure the
Council operates as a single, coherent whole.
We are aiming to create an organisation that is fit for purpose on an ongoing basis,
and is able to make continuing and sustainable improvements in service
performance and become recognised as an exemplar of modern Local Government.
Therefore, the transformation programmes initiated within Smarter Working: Better
Results form a key part, and are central to the delivery of, the Council Business
8
Page 90

Plan. Where there are key linkages these are highlighted in relation to each of the
business plan outcomes and improvement priorities set out below.

Our Outcomes, Improvement Priorities and Big Ideas
In an organisation as large and complex as ours there are a significant number of
changes and improvements which we will need to make over the next three years.
This detailed change agenda will touch the whole organisation and support us in the
achievement of the Leeds Strategic Plan 2008-11 and our long term vision for the
organisation.
These changes are structured around a set of business outcomes and improvement
priorities - where the outcomes state where we want to be and the priorities are the
high level business improvement activities which need to be delivered in order to
achieve the outcomes. In addition, for each of the three outcomes we have also
identified an overarching big idea which represents a major transformational activity.
These big ideas cut across several improvement priorities and encapsulate the
essence of what we are trying to achieve in each area. In effect they are some of
the really big changes that you will see delivered by March 2011.

Business Outcome 1
We are a values led organisation and our people are motivated and empowered

Context
Our most important asset is our people who are at the heart of what we do. We
recognise that a well led, capable, effective and empowered workforce are needed to
ensure we achieve our mission. In total, the council employs approximately 35,000
people, either directly or through arms length arrangements such as our Housing
Arms Length Management Organisations (ALMOs), Education Leeds and schools
These staff are organised under four thematic directorates, supported by a group of
central and corporate functions (as illustrated below):

9
Page 91

Our staff are employed in the following areas:
Area

No. Employed *

Leeds City Council
Schools
Education Leeds
ALMO's
TOTAL

17081
15287
1079
1106
34553
*Permanent and temporary staff employed as at 31 March 2008

In addition to these directly employed staff, we are also supported in delivering the
city’s priorities by significant capacity from the private sector, including for example,
design services, street lighting, grass cutting and property maintenance.
Without the right people, it is unlikely that even the most comprehensive of plans will
deliver the step change in performance being demanded of local government. We
have the potential to make huge improvements by ensuring we have the right people
with the right knowledge, skills and behaviours employed in the right place in the
organisation. Workforce planning can help us to achieve this and we acknowledge
that this is an important issue for us going forward. We need to improve our longer
term thinking about future service pressures and needs, and what we need to do
now to ensure we are fit for purpose in the future. Through this plan we are ensuring
that the links are made between the Leeds Strategic Plan 2008-11 and our plans for
recruitment and retention, staff development and training.
Effective employee engagement will continue to be a priority ensuring that the
council’s employees continue to be ambassadors for the city and the authority,
bringing tangible benefits to workforce recruitment and retention, morale and
productivity and, ultimately, organisational performance.
We are committed to increasing equality for, and valuing the diversity of, all
communities in the city. Irrespective of background everyone should experience
similar life chances, access to services and work opportunities in order to develop a
strong sense of an individual’s local rights and responsibilities. Equality, diversity
and cohesion and integration remains a key improvement issue for the council and
whilst we have made massive strides in the last few years, much more needs to be
done. Not only is there a complex legal framework for equality but understanding
our changing communities is a key challenge for our city. It is essential that equality
and diversity is embedded within the culture of the organisation. We also recognise
that balanced diversity within our own organisation serves the council and local
people well by providing a wider talent pool for recruitment; improving our knowledge
of different communities and supporting our social inclusion aspirations. Although
we have made good progress in this regard our workforce still does not fully reflect
the changing diversity of the city at all levels of our organisation.
Our Elected Members represent and provide a voice for the community across the
33 wards of the Leeds district. They contribute to policy and strategy and make key
decisions on behalf of the people of Leeds. They do this through a ‘Leader Cabinet’
model (known locally as the Executive Board) and this is the council’s principal
decision making body. The Board meets in public session approximately 12 times a

10
Page 92

year. These arrangements are supported by our Scrutiny Boards which examine the
decisions and policies of the council and act in a ‘watchdog’ role. Scrutiny makes
sure that the people of Leeds are getting the best out of their public services.
Good governance is key to the corporate health and success of the council and is
therefore high on the agenda. Our governance arrangements comprise the systems
and processes for the direction and control of the organisation. This brings together
our political and officer arrangements to ensure robust and transparent policy
development and decision-making. We set ourselves high standards and seek to
embed the principles of good corporate governance in both the culture and systems
of the council. The Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007
requires us to review our ‘Leader Cabinet’ operating model by December 2009. This
coupled with a white paper motion in June 2007 from Full Council has initiated a
review of our democratic arrangements, including officer delegations, going forward.
At the centre of this review is the issue of how councillors can be better involved in
decision making.
The climate change agenda will have a big impact on us all in the future and we
recognise that we need to act now to ensure effective mitigation and adaptation. Our
biggest contribution to this agenda is our ability to influence the city through our
policies and activities eg transport policies, planning policies and regeneration
investment to create sustainable communities. Our Climate Change Strategy and
the Leeds Strategic Plan 2008-11 set out our ambition to lead a city-wide solution.
However, our partners are clear that in order to lead we have to demonstrate that we
are reducing our own significant CO2 footprint. Whilst we already monitor our
environmental impact through the international EMAS standard we need to more
closely integrate this with our performance management system in order to deliver
the reductions in our CO2 emissions over the next three years and beyond.
Our Priorities for Improvement
The Big Idea

We will take significant steps to reduce
our carbon emissions

The vast majority of our CO2 emissions come from our buildings and we want to take
action now to shrink our carbon footprint far into the future. By doing this we will be
making our contribution to reducing the carbon footprint of the city and the region
and setting an example to encourage others to do the same. We recognise that
there is no one solution to achieve this but we are undertaking to:

11
Page 93

Ø
Ø
Ø
Ø

ensure all new and refurbished buildings commissioned by the council meet
Building Research Establishment Environmental Assessment Method
(BREEAM) “excellent” standards with maximum ‘energy credits’;
invest strategically in energy efficiency and renewable energy technologies to
reduce CO2 emissions from the existing estate;
reduce our overall office floorspace eg by the delivery of a corporate
document records facility; and
explore new ways of working that are more flexible and efficient to reduce CO2
emissions, particularly from travel.

Our Improvement Priorities

By 2011 we want to:
Organisational Design and Workforce Planning
§ Ensure we have the right staff, in the right place with the right skills at the
right time
§ Empower, support and develop our staff and members by embedding
core skills and behaviours with performance based appraisals
§ Improve understanding and transparency of our decision-making and
accountability processes
Leadership
§ Improve leadership at all levels including officers and elected members
§ Enhance our leadership of the city
§ Strengthen communication (skills and mechanisms) at all levels
Democratic engagement
§ Strengthen our democratic processes to improve governance and policy
making
§ Maximise member involvement in policy development, decision making
and accountability
Equality Diversity and Cohesion and Integration
§ Ensure colleagues reflect the diversity of our communities at all levels
§ Ensure fair access to all our services
§ Embed equality and diversity throughout the organisation
Sustainability
§ Reduce the carbon emissions arising from our buildings, vehicles and
operations
§ Increase the proportion of socially responsible goods and services that
we procure
§ Support the achievement of our strategic outcomes through our
corporate social responsibility programme

12
Page 94

Delivering the priorities
A variety of work is required in order to deliver these improvement priorities some of
which has already commenced and some of which are still to be scoped and agreed.
In particular there are a wide range of projects within the Smarter Working: Better
Results programme which support the delivery of this outcomes including:
Ø Implementation of One Council accountability, support and intervention
framework to include core competency framework, performance based appraisals
and personalised training and development
Ø Development of a one council approach to organisational design
Ø Delivery of “From Good to Great” leadership challenge
Ø Delivery of one council approach to equality and diversity
Ø Development and implementation of one council approach to cohesion and
integration
Ø Development and implementation of a one council approach to communication
Ø Development and Implementation of a clear and coherent officer governance
framework
Ø Development of a one council approach to commissioning
Other programmes of work are set out within other supporting strategies, action
plans and within service plans across the organisation. At the high level this
includes:

Supporting Delivery Strategies/Programmes:
Ø
Ø
Ø
Ø
Ø
Ø

People Strategy
Equality and Diversity Scheme
Climate Change Strategy
Member Development Strategy
Ethical Audit Action Plan
‘Leeds By Example’ programme

13
Page 95

Business Outcome 2
We are an intelligent organisation, using good quality information to deliver
better outcomes
Context
Local Government is being asked to define its role as a place shaper. In order to do
this effectively we need know about our population, their needs and wants and
understand how these are likely to change over time. This involves looking at the
data we gather from our customers and stakeholders and the way we manage this to
ensure we get the maximum value from this strategic asset. Evidence has identified
that whilst our services are being successfully integrated and brought together to
facilitate the delivery of positive outcomes to local people, the lack of joined-up and
integrated information and knowledge to support this change is becoming a barrier to
progress. It also does not support the One Council approach we are seeking
through the change programme. Given this, we have already established a strategic
Information and Knowledge Management (IKM) vision and the next three years will
see the delivery of some of its early milestones including many underlying systems
and processes.
Our customers and service users provide an important source of information and
intelligence for us. Whilst “Putting Customers First” is already one of our core
values, we recognise that we have more work to do to embed the wider customer
agenda - our challenge is to meet the rising expectations of our customers whilst
improving overall efficiency in the way services are designed and delivered. The
Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 pays particular
attention to public accountability, community engagement and customer satisfaction
in meeting local needs.
Research has demonstrated the strong connection between how informed people
feel about council services and how satisfied they are with those services. There is
a clear link between council communication and reputation, highlighting the value of
good communications in building a strong reputation for local authorities. In addition,
the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 has emphasised
the importance of community engagement and two-way communications. This
‘localism’ agenda requires greater levels of resident involvement and inevitably that
requires both more and different forms of communication with local stakeholders. All
this means we need to look carefully at out future communication and engagement
activity to ensure these are focused on local areas and communities, and to provide
co-ordinated information with opportunities for residents to get involved in ways
which meet their needs. Local people will need to have more of a say in the way in
which their services are delivered.
The media and the ways in which people get information are changing dramatically.
There is an increasing fragmentation of the mass media, with traditional channels
being less effective at reaching broad audiences. Traditional communications
channels, such as the news media and websites, are evolving and changing to meet
the demand for 24 hour information, local issues and quicker responses. New forms
of communication, many based on innovative technology, present us with

14
Page 96

opportunities to target different audiences with tailored information for relatively low
costs. Over the next few years we need to exploit new social media tools whilst
maintaining a focus on traditional written and face to face methods of
communication. We also need to ensure our communication channels and
messages take account of the diversity of our communities and ensure access for all
residents.
Leeds City Council branded communications will continue to be a fundamental part
of building relationships with residents and communities, as the council will only gain
credit if stakeholders recognise that the council is providing these services. Work to
ensure that the council brand is consistently linked to council services will continue to
be vital in building support, trust and reputation.
Our Priorities for Improvement
The Big Idea

We will have a one council understanding
of our customers

We currently do not have a single consistent view of our customers and this prevents
us from fully understanding our customers’ needs and wants. The problem is not a
lack of information, as we already have many council computer systems that have
customer information included on them. The issue is, we are not currently able to
bring this information together to analyse and share it, and to help us improve our
understanding of what our customers want and need. Over the next three years we
will start to manage our customer information in a way that allows us to deliver a one
council understanding of our customers.
This will mean staff who deal directly with customers will have access to this core
information and will be confident that it is up to date and correct. This will enable us
to provide better services and be a more customer focused organisation. We will be
able to plan, deliver and monitor our service provision more efficiently and
effectively. Our customers will benefit from all services having access to their
information leading to a simpler and more consistent experience when they contact
the council.

15
Page 97

Our Improvement Priorities

By 2011 we want to:
Information and knowledge management
§ Improve our systems and processes to enable us to use our information
effectively and efficiently
§ Use our information to shape service provision, provide constructive
challenge and improve our decision making at all levels
§ Ensure we have the right intelligence to inform our strategic planning
§ Develop arrangements to protect and share information in line with
legislative and regulatory requirements
Customer involvement, choice and satisfaction
§ Improve our understanding of our customers
§ Increase choice so customers can access services in more convenient
ways
§ Improve our services based on customer feedback
§ Manage customer expectation and deliver on our promises
§ Develop joined up and person centred services designed around the
needs of our customers
§ Enhance the links between front and back office services to deliver
excellent end-to-end services
Stakeholder Engagement
§ Increase involvement, engagement and participation of all communities
especially under-represented groups
§ Build trust with local communities to encourage greater engagement

Delivering the priorities
A variety of work is required in order to deliver these improvement priorities, some of
which has already commenced and others which are still to be scoped and agreed.
In particular there are a wide range of projects within the Smarter Working: Better
Results programme which support the delivery of this outcome including:
Ø Development and implementation of a one council approach to communication
Ø Develop a one council approach to community engagement and involvement
Ø Development of a one council approach to customer relations
Other programmes of work are set out within other supporting strategies, action
plans and within service plans across the organisation. At the high level this
includes:

16
Page 98

Supporting Delivery Strategies/Programmes:
Ø
Ø
Ø

Information and Knowledge Management
Strategy
ICT Strategy
Equality and Diversity Scheme

17
Page 99

Business Outcome 3
Our resources are clearly prioritised to provide excellent services and value for
money
Context
The Comprehensive Spending Review 2007 sets out the expenditure across the
public sector for the three years of this business plan. The rate of growth for local
government equates to 1% in real terms which represents a tight settlement in a
climate of increasing demands. Some specific grants are still available for areas like
housing, waste and planning and will be more generous. Fewer of our grants will be
ringfenced and there are new freedoms and flexibilities which can be used to raise
funding. However government has been clear that it expects Council Tax increases
to be below 5% and for local government to deliver 3% annual cashable efficiency
gains. In response to this the council has developed a new approach to the
allocation of resources - based on need, efficiencies and priorities which ensures our
budget setting is policy-led. Section 3 sets out the detailed financial plan which
underpins the delivery of the Leeds Strategic and Council Business Plans 2008-11
but in order to stay within this resource allocation we will need to deliver
improvements, efficiencies and value for money. Our aim is to do this at the same
time as delivering improvements in our services.
Of particular concern in terms of our internal efficiency is our high level of staff
sickness. This issue affects everyone, it puts more pressure on the staff who are at
work, means we have to call in agency staff to cover absence and can delay the
delivery of key services to the public. However, we recognise that people do get ill
and in particular we need to support those with long term illnesses and ensure that
they only return to work when they are fit to do so. We are aiming to address this
through our People Strategy and have set ourselves key targets to drive this
improvement.
All this must also be seen in the context of demographic changes which will increase
the demand on Council services, therefore, leading to greater financial pressures,
including an aging population and changes in migration patterns. Also, our service
user expectations are rising, they expect to receive excellent services in an efficient
and effective manner.
The delivery of value for money services in a tight budget situation requires us to
look again at the way we commission services. A robust and transparent
commissioning process requires us to understand the needs of our citizens. We also
need to ensure that we are both user and outcome focused, that we understand the
market and have the most effective provider arrangements in place. We have
recognised the need to develop a one council approach to commissioning but more
than that we also recognise the efficiency that working jointly with our partners may
bring. We also need to consider further opportunities for improvement and efficiency
through collaboration or provision of shared services. Delivery of this agenda will
enable us to not only deliver better services but also to maximise efficiencies.

18
Page 100

In order to ensure as much of our resource as possible goes into the provision of
frontline services we need to make sure our back office functions are as efficient and
effective as possible. We have an excellent record here with both our procurement
and asset management services having been awarded beacon status. Again we are
not resting on our laurels and want to do more - for example during 2007-8 we
procured about £550m worth of goods, works and services from the private,
voluntary and other public sector organisations and we are confident that this huge
buying power can be further harnessed. We are also well placed to deliver further
efficiencies by offering services to other organisations or by collaborating with others.
Similarly our large asset base can also be used to support our priorities eg the sale
of our stake in Leeds Bradford International Airport in 2007 generated income which
we have re-invested in the delivery of our priorities. In support of this we recently
brought together our corporate property management resources into one service and
over the next few years these economies of scale will deliver savings whilst also
allowing managers to focus on the delivery of their own services.
Technology has the potential to help us to deliver service improvement and value for
money by enabling the provision of services in new and innovative ways. We
recognise that ICT is a key enabler for improving current business processes,
reducing organisational costs and raising workforce performance. We have already
identified in outcome two a huge area where ICT can enable such improvements – in
our information knowledge management agenda - but it can also enable closer
working and collaboration across agencies and other partners at a local level. We
recognise that we need to focus on developing and using our ICT more proactively
over the next few years in order to support the delivery of our priorities.
Efficiency, improvement and service transformation go hand-in-hand and are allied
to our ambitions on value for money and service improvement. Service improvement
already occurs on an on-going basis at all levels across the organisation.
Improvements vary from small, incremental improvements carried out as part of the
day to day management processes through to major transformation programmes like
Smarter Working: Better Results. We recognise that as a large organisation we
have many major change processes occurring at the same time. These are not
always co-ordinated and prioritised in such a way that enables/supports services like
ICT to align their resources to corporate priorities. We need to take steps to manage
and co-ordinate this better. It is also important to understand that much change
happens within services and again as an organisation we need to support and
facilitate this better through the provision of specialist skills and support to managers.
Good service planning is essential to delivering excellent services and to ensuring
the delivery of the Leeds Strategic and Council Business Plans. They provide the
link between the corporate vision and values and the team and individual plans to
ensure there is a golden thread running through the organisation. Since 2002 we
have had a corporate service planning approach. This has resulted in huge
improvements in the quality and consistency of these key documents. However,
there is still room for further improvement and in particular we need to ensure that
better links are made within these documents to key corporate agendas like
workforce planning, risk, financial and performance management.

19
Page 101

Our Priorities for Improvement
The Big Idea

We will explore opportunities for
collaboration to support our business
transformation aspirations

The delivery of an ambitious efficiency and service improvement agenda is essential
for our long term financial security. More specifically we have set ourselves targets
for the delivery of 10% efficiency savings across our support services. However,
since we are starting from a relatively efficient baseline, having already delivered £1
m of savings, we know that we will not be able to deliver this target through
incremental change alone. We need to look at more radical solutions and, in
particular, to explore the opportunities for collaboration and shared service provision
with both the private sector and other public bodies. Whilst efficiency is a key driver
any collaboration would also need to deliver improvements in service delivery and fit
with our overall vision and values.
At this stage we are committing to explore these opportunities with an open mind in
order to identify and quantify where collaboration could add value, generate the
required efficiencies and drive business improvement, including the possibilities for
business growth through shared service provision.

20
Page 102

Our Improvement Priorities

By 2011 we want to:
Resource Prioritisation
§ Deliver our 5 year financial strategy to align resources to our strategic
priorities
§ Embed sustainability in our resource management processes
§ Consider all additional sources of funding available to support our
priorities
Efficiency/Value for Money
§ Improve the efficiency of our services including maximising savings
delivered through procurement, ICT and asset management.
§ Embed value for money at all levels
Commissioning
§ Implement a commissioning approach which is based on need, delivers
value for money and ensures the best provider.
Service Improvement and Transformation
§ Ensure strategic business transformation/improvement activity is
prioritised and co-ordinated
§ Enhance service improvement capacity to support business change at
directorate/service level
§ Embed a consistent approach to service planning which clearly links
workforce planning, risk, financial and performance management.
§ Explore opportunities for collaboration with private and public sector
bodies
Partnerships
§ Develop sustainable and effective partnership governance framework
Support services
§ Improve quality and efficiency of support services

21
Page 103

Delivering the priorities
A variety of work is required in order to deliver these improvement priorities some of
which has already commenced and others which are still to be scoped and agreed.
In particular there are a wide range of projects within the Smarter Working: Better
Results programme which support the delivery of this outcomes including:
Ø Development and Implementation of an officer governance framework
Ø Development of one council approach to commissioning
Other programmes of work are set out within other supporting strategies, action
plans and within service plans across the organisation. At the high level this
includes:

Supporting Delivery Strategies/Programmes:
Ø
Ø
Ø

ICT Strategy
Support Service Review Implementation
Programme
People Strategy

22
Page 104

Section 3 – Resourcing our priorities
Context
This section of the Council Business Plan sets out the principles underpinning our
methodology for allocating resources to the priorities we have agreed in the Leeds
Strategic Plan and Council Business Plan. The basis of the allocation of resources
to services was approved by Executive Board in December 2007. This plan outlines
the key issues and priorities over the planning period and provides an update to
resource allocations in light of the Comprehensive Spending Review 2007 (CSR 07)
and the three year Local Government Financial Settlement. These overarching
principles are supported by a more detailed Financial Plan which is published
separately and subject to annual review through the budget process.
The final Local Government Finance Settlement 2008/09 to 2010/11 was announced
on Thursday 24th January 2008. This is the first three year settlement (following a
two-year settlement for 2006/07 and 2007/08) and marks the Government’s move to
align Local Government’ funding announcements with the Comprehensive Spending
Review cycle. The increases in Revenue Support Grant (RSG) at the national and
local level are summarised below:Increase in Revenue Support Grant
Year
2008/09
2009/10
2010/11

National
%
3.5
2.8
2.6

Leeds
%
2.7
2.1
1.8

£m
7.6
6.2
5.4

Although there are significant variations between authorities, Leeds’ percentage
increases are substantially below the average of the Core Cities, the West Yorkshire
districts, the metropolitan districts and England as a whole:

Leeds
Average Core City
Average West Yorkshire
District
Average Metropolitan District
Average England

Increase
2008/09
2.7%

Increase
2009/10
2.1%

Increase
2010/11
1.8%

3.5%
4.3%

2.5%
3.1%

2.2%
2.7%

3.9%
3.5%

2.9%
2.8%

2.5%
2.6%

Taking account of the three year RSG settlement, the estimated level of additional
resources that will be available is likely to be less than £20m per annum over the life
of the plan.

23
Page 105

Development of our Financial Plan
A new approach to the allocation of revenue resources to services has been
developed and represents a substantial shift towards policy-led budget setting. This
new approach integrates corporate planning, accountability, financial and
performance management arrangements and applies to all that the Council delivers,
either on its own or in partnership with others. This policy led approach was an
explicit recommendation of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee review of the
2007/08 budget.
In developing a new approach to resource allocation, greater emphasis has been
placed on directing resources to Council priorities and divesting from areas that are
considered to be lower priority. The level of resources to be allocated to services has
been determined by considering three components;

Needs

Priorities

Efficiencies

Analysis of these three areas has shaped the overall resource planning framework
which not only takes into account the relative importance of services but ensures that
they are deliverable within the overall level of resources available to the Council.

Needs
The first aspect of the new methodology has been to consider how the allocation of
resources could best reflect the needs of services. To help achieve this, the Relative
Needs Formulae (RNF) used by government in distributing funding to local
government through the Formula Grant has been used as a basis. To put this into
context approximately 54% of the Council’s net expenditure is funded by Formula
Grant with the remaining 46% coming from our own Council Tax revenues.
Around 70% of Formula Grant is driven by relative needs. Whilst there can be no
absolute determination of need, this is considered to be a comprehensive and robust
analysis which determines the relative needs between services and between
authorities. The indicators of need are complex and varied but typically are made up
of a basic amount driven by population data which is then adjusted for a number of
factors which reflect deprivation or other measures of specific pressures on services.
Detailed analysis of the RNF shows that for some services the Council spends more
than its needs would imply, whereas for other services it would appear to be
spending too little. It is difficult to be too precise with the value of these variations
given the nature of the analysis, however it would suggest that, in some instances,
significant realignment between services is required.

24
Page 106

Local Priorities
The national comparative needs analysis should, however, be balanced against local
priorities as it would be inappropriate for the Council’s plans to be solely driven by
the national needs agenda. The local prioritisation element is, therefore, a further
significant contribution to setting our Financial Plan.
Whilst individual Directors, Chief Officers and, where appropriate, partners, will need
to prioritise their existing resources in support of delivering agreed improvement
priorities, it is important that future strategic decisions regarding resource allocation
also take account of the Council’s overall stated priorities.
The Council is currently in a period of transition in developing a robust
commissioning based approach to support the delivery of strategic outcomes and
improvement priorities. The new Financial Plan provides stability over this
transitional phase by setting out a framework for resource allocation over the next
five years which is sufficiently flexible to support a policy led approach to outcomes.
It will be supported by the new Area Based Grant and will allow the development of
more comprehensive and consistent methodologies across the Council and, where
appropriate, its partners, with regard to commissioning and strategic investment
planning.

Efficiency Agenda
The third component of the new approach is to establish appropriate bases for
assessing the relative efficiencies of services. The Government has placed
significant emphasis on efficiency in its financial settlements for Local Government in
the last few years. For the period 2004/05 to 2007/08 Local Government was
required to deliver efficiencies equivalent to 2½% per annum; the CSR 07 assumes
that local authorities should be able to achieve a further 3% per annum saving over
the next three years whilst at the same time delivering service growth.
In the past, Leeds City Council savings targets have taken little account of the
relative efficiency of each service. A different approach has been adopted which
uses an analysis of the unit cost of services and how they compare to other
authorities (mainly Core Cities). In this way it is possible to target efficiencies at
specific services where comparisons imply lower value for money.

Overall Shape of the Financial Plan
This new methodology has been used to determine the overall shape of our financial
plan and indicative resource allocations to services over a five year period were
approved by Executive Board in December 2007.
Initially the 2007/08 Relative Needs Formulae data was used to achieve a full
realignment of resources by 2012/13, reflecting needs, local priorities and
efficiencies. The Government has subsequently provided details of formula grant for
the three years 2008/09 to 2010/11 through the local government finance settlement.
Using this information, the initial five year resource allocation will be updated in order
to achieve a full realignment over the next five years, but this time based on the most
up to date information.

25
Page 107

It is acknowledged that the delivery of the Financial Plan will require a significant
review of some of the Council’s services and activities and achievement of the
planned shape will not be an easy task. The plan therefore assumes a phased
implementation of the realignment in order to minimise the impact on services during
the transitional period.

Allocation of Resources
Based on the new methodology the adapted allocation of resources reflects the
following:
Ø

Ø
Ø

Ø

Ø

Ø
Ø

2% per annum targeted savings in Support Services, rising to a
cumulative10% by 2012/13. This applies to all central and local provision of
administrative and support activities. Efficiencies will be generated through a
variety of means including investment in Information Technology and through
the rationalisation of office accommodation.
Cash standstill over the life of the plan for Central and Corporate Functions in
order to maximise resources available to front line services.
Additional capital investment of £100m, above the approved programme, over
the period of the plan enabling investment in priority projects and providing
funding for invest to save projects, income generating projects, investment in
technology and physical infrastructure to deliver efficiencies and
improvements in services over the period of the plan.
Funding for significant areas of need which include addressing base budget
pressures, and directing resources to key local service priorities such as the
Integrated Waste Strategy, and increasing the number of Direct Payments in
Adult Social Care.
Efficiency savings targeted at areas of the Council’s services which appear
relatively high compared to other authorities, primarily Children’s Services
including the Local Education Authority and Youth and Community. Pricing
policies and service provision will be reviewed where appropriate.
A sustainable funding solution to meet the ongoing cost of the Council’s pay
and grading review will be identified over the life of the plan.
General reserves will be maintained at or above the minimum level in
accordance with the risk based reserves strategy.

These assumptions combined with an estimate of available resources over the life of
the plan will underpin the annual review of our Financial Plan.

Service Implications
Over the remaining life of the plan, it is estimated that pay and price inflation alone
could be in excess of £85m with significant service pressures over and above this. It
is therefore clear from the above that substantial efficiencies will need to be achieved
over the life of the plan which will require a detailed review of the Council’s services
and activities. These reviews are key to achieving value for money in service delivery
thereby helping the achievement of better outcomes for all services.
In carrying out this work a number of principles have been agreed as follows:
Ø

The Council will aim to achieve best in class in respect of cost, quality and
performance;
26
Page 108

Ø
Ø
Ø
Ø
Ø
Ø

The Council will commission services according to need and taking account of
fairness and equity;
The Council will aim to maximize its potential to gain from its purchasing
power;
The Council will make best use of technology to deliver efficiency and
customer focus in the delivery of services;
Income opportunities will be maximized and where income levels are set
below the optimal rate, this should be identified as a transparent subsidy;
Opportunities will be explored to rationalise physical assets in order to achieve
value for money and better outcomes for service users;
The Council’s role as a provider will be challenged and alternative means of
provision should be considered where this will generate better value for money
and/or better outcomes;

Financial Risk Assessment
In developing this methodology we have had to make a number of assumptions and
therefore it is important that we highlight the principal risks that are relevant to the
delivery of our Financial Plan. These have been identified as follows:
Ø
Ø
Ø
Ø
Ø
Ø

Additional resources will not be as great as assumed;
Pay awards and inflation vary from the levels assumed in the plan;
Legislative changes are not anticipated;
Forecasts of demographic trends vary from those assumed;
Income targets are not achieved; and
Savings from service reviews will not be sufficient

The Financial Plan is reviewed annually as part of the preparation of the annual
budget. There are a number of controls embedded in this process to ensure that the
principal risks are mitigated and the approved budget in any given year is robust.
These controls include:
Ø A risk based reserves strategy which ensures that reserves are maintained at an
appropriate level to secure long term financial stability
Ø Budget action plans in place for each directorate which set out key actions to
deliver the budget and how variations will be addressed during any given year up
to 2% of budget
Ø Rigorous budget monitoring mechanisms to ensure early identification of
emerging issues
Ø A central contingency for items not foreseen and for items where there is a risk of
variation during the year
Ø A risk assessment of key budgets documented in the form of formal budget risk
registers

Summary
It is recognised that the funding available to the Council over the planning period will
be severely restricted, and clearly not sufficient to meet all the spending pressure
that the Council will face. Given this, a strategy which places resource allocation in a
strong policy framework based on an analysis of needs, both nationally and locally
determined, and focuses on delivering efficiencies and an understanding of local
priorities has been developed.
27
Page 109

It is however clear that delivering a realignment of resources to focus on Council
priorities, within the current financial context, will be challenging and require difficult
decisions.
The analysis which underpins this approach is based on the latest information
available, but we will continuously review needs, efficiency and local priorities
throughout the life of our Financial Plan to reflect more up to date information as it
becomes available.

28
Page 110

Section 4 – Making it happen
Underlying principles and linkages
So far we have covered what we want to achieve but equally important to the
delivery of the Business Plan is how we will approach this over next three years.
There are a number of core themes or key principles which run all the way through
this implementation process.

Interconnectivity and a ‘One Council’ Approach
We recognise that getting to the ‘root’ of many of our challenges as an organisation
requires an awareness of the ‘interconnection’ between our different business
outcomes and improvement priorities. For example, in order to improve leadership
we need to ensure our leaders have good leadership skills, value diversity, are
supported by the right performance framework, have insight into the needs of their
customers, have good HR policies and procedures etc. Through our Smarter
Working: Better Results programme we are developing and implementing a
number of one council approaches where we feel it is important to have a common
approach. Our officer governance framework also ensures that all the right people
are involved in developing the policy and making the key decisions about how to
implement this plan, linking into our well established political governance
arrangements.

Our Values
Our values illustrate how we operate and what we represent - fairness, equality and
commitment to our customers. Our values are drawn from the ideas and beliefs of
people throughout our organisation. They define us by saying clearly who we are,
what we do and how we do it. These values influence every aspect of our business
and show staff and customers what we believe in and how we choose to operate.

Our values are reflected in both the Leeds Strategic Plan and Council Business Plan
but are really brought to life through the behaviours of our staff and the way we
design and deliver services. We will work hard over the next three years to make
sure that the implementation of our strategic and business ‘improvement priorities’
supports and embeds our values even further.

29
Page 111

Measuring and managing performance
Effective performance management requires co-ordinated planning and review
systems that enable key decision makers, at both political and officer level, to take
appropriate action based on reliable and timely performance information. A key part
of the development of this plan has been the identification of a set of suitable
Performance Indicators (PIs) for which robust and challenging targets have been set.
This allows us to measure progress towards achieving the business outcomes and
improvement priorities and thus to drive improvement across the organisation.
An individual accountable officer has been assigned for each of the business
improvement priorities, however, many other officers will be responsible for
contributing to the delivery of each of these priorities. Arrangements are in place for
the performance indicators to be regularly reviewed in order to assess whether
progress against our targets is adequate. These arrangements also include
independent and robust challenge by our elected members to ensure the public are
getting the best out of their public services. Where progress is not sufficient we have
developed a support and intervention framework which will be used to bring progress
back on track. The business plan performance indicators and targets are shown in
appendix 1
Some of the indicators in the business plan will also be measured on a directorate
and/or service basis to ensure that all parts of the organisation are making sufficient
contribution to the overall delivery of the Council Business Plan. Where appropriate,
and if possible, we will also analyse our performance results by gender, ethnic origin,
age, disability, religion or belief and sexual orientation. Full detail of these
arrangements are set out in our performance management framework which is
available on the intranet. We will be publishing regular performance reports and our
balanced scorecard on the intranet and internet and annually we will publish a
performance update for the public in the city’s newspaper ‘About Leeds’.
In addition to our own internal performance management arrangements we are also
independently assessed by the Audit Commission through the Comprehensive
Performance Assessment which is due to be replaced by the Comprehensive Area
Assessment in 2009. Within this framework is a Use of Resources assessment
which is particularly relevant to the improvement and transformation agenda within
this plan. The Use of Resources is an annual assessment which looks at how well
we manage our money, our business and our other resources. We are required to
provide evidence that we are managing our finances effectively to deliver value for
money; that we have good corporate governance, internal control and risk
management; have good leadership and commission our services to deliver better
outcomes and manage our natural resources, physical assets, people and
technology to meet current and future need. It provides an independent judgement
across all these areas with an overall scoring from 1 – 4 (where 1 is poor and 4 is
excellent). The outcomes from these assessments are available to the public.

30
Page 112

Integration with Leeds Strategic Plan – Our Balanced Scorecard
Together the Leeds Strategic Plan and Council Business Plan represent our high
level strategy for the period 2008 -11. These plans are closely linked and indeed the
successful delivery of the Leeds Strategic Plan is dependent upon the delivery of the
Council Business Plan. It is important that we are able to track the progress against
both these plans and we intend to do this using our corporate balanced scorecard.
This provides a high level traffic lighted summary of progress and signposts any
problem areas for further investigation. Our corporate balanced scorecard is shown
below and again we will publish regular updates through the intranet and internet.
Citizen / Strategic Outcomes
LAA (35 +16) & LSP local PIs eg
NI 132 Timeliness of social care assessment
NI 154 Net additional homes provided
NI 16 Serious acquisitive crime rate
Customer
Resources
KPI’s drawn from Business Plan eg
KPI’s drawn from Business Plan eg
NI 140 - Fair treatment by local
services
NI 14 Avoidable customer contact
etc

Excellence (Internal Processes)
KPI’s drawn from Business Plan
BP 4 Direction of travel score
BP 6 Delivery of Intelligent
Organisation programme

NI 179 efficiency savings
BP 3 Variance of overall budget
BP 7 Maintain EMAS acreditation
People & Learning & Growth
KPI’s drawn from Business Plan eg
BP 1 Number of working days lost
to the authority due to sickness
absence
BP 2 Maintain our IIP accreditation
across whole organisation
BP 5 Increase % staff who feel
valued as an employee etc

Need to add in proper graphic here

31
Page 113

Section 5 – Managing Our Risks
Good risk management will support us in fulfilling our strategic objectives. Risk
management already forms a key part of our policy-making, governance, internal
control, decision-making and budget-setting arrangements.
These detailed
arrangements are set out in our Risk Management Policy, Strategy and Toolkit which
have been developed to reflect current industry standards and good practice. In line
with this, risk management is applied across directorates/services and for significant
business change with risk registers in place at the corporate and directorate level, as
well as for many significant projects, which are monitored and reviewed on a regular
basis. Through this formal process our key strategic and operational risks are
identified and managed.
This risk-based approach will be implemented to support the Leeds Strategic Plan
2008 - 11 and the Council Business Plan 2008 -11. Through this process the key
cross-cutting threats and opportunities relevant to the achievement of these plans
will be identified and evaluated. These risks will form part of the Corporate Risk
Register. Similarly all projects, as defined under the Council’s Delivering Successful
Change (DSC) Framework also identify risks both prior to the start of the project, as
part of the options appraisal, and throughout the lifecycle of the project. The level
and rigour that is applied will depend on how critical the risk is and its potential
impact.
We recognise that increasingly our services and projects are being delivered through
partnerships and good risk management across our partnerships is integral. We will
apply, where appropriate, our robust risk management approach to our partnerships.
It is our intention to ensure our corporate risk register includes any key partnership
risks which have a council wide impact.
We recognise that one of our key risk relates to our financial plan and therefore an
overarching financial risk assessment is included in this document in section 3.

32
Page 114

Section 6 – Review and Revision
Our priorities will inevitably change over time and the outcomes, improvement
priorities and targets in the Council Business Plan 2008-11 will be regularly reviewed
and updated to ensure this plan is still relevant and continues to address our needs.
In doing this we will use performance data, both relating to the targets in this plan
and supporting indicators, to monitor priorities and where necessary to set new
targets. The views of elected members and Scrutiny Boards and feedback from our
external auditors and the Audit Commission will also be taken into account before we
make any changes to the contents of the Plan. Any updates or changes will be
published alongside our performance information on our intranet and internet sites

33
Page 115

Appendix 1 Business Plan Indicators and Targets

Indicator

Page 116

Value for Money/Resources

NI 185

CO2 emissions from Local Authority
operations

EMAS

Maintain our external EMAS accreditation

New

Delivery of Financial Plan

CAA

Use of Resources Score

New

Variation to overall council budget

New

NI 179

CPP51

Income Collection: income collected by
authority in year through:
a) % Council Tax collected in year (BV 9)
b) % Non-domestic rates collected in year
(BV 10)
c) % housing rents collected in year (BV 66a)
d) % Sundry Debtors income collected within
30 days of invoice issued
Value for money total net value of on-going
cash releasing value for money gains that
have impacted since the start of the 2008-9
financial year
Assess and increase % of our total budget
spent through corporate framework
agreements and corporate contracts –
indicator to be amended to include
departmental and one off contracts
th
awaiting revised version due before 30
May

Baseline Info
2006/7
2007/08
Year End
Result
New indicator - no historical
information. Guidance states to use
2008 (Jan - Dec) as a baseline and set
targets after this
Yes
Yes
New indicator - no historical
information
3
(2006)

3
(2007)

New indicator - no historical
information

Targets
2008/09

2009/10

2010/11

Baseline
to be set

tbc

tbc

Yes

Yes

Yes

95%

95%

95%

3
(2008 - old
framework))

3
(2009 new
framework)

4
(2010 new
framework)

100%

100%

100%

96.38%

96.41%

96.65%

96.70%

96.75%

98.58%

98.72%

96.60%

98.65%

98.70%

96.69%

96.53%

97.00%

97.50%

98.00%

97.00%

97.50%

97.75%

£28,759 k
(3%)

£58,476 k
(6.1%)

£89,152 k
(9.3%)

3.86%

4.00%

4.17%

97.00%
New indicator - no historical
information

3.73%

34

Indicator
NI 14

Avoidable customer contact - the proportion of customer
contact that is of low or no value to the customer

Annual
Survey

Overall Resident Satisfaction levels

Page 117

Customers First

NI 140
CP-AS54
LKICUS15a
LKICUS17a
LKICUS17b
CP-AS51
Annual
Survey

Annual
Survey
Annual
Survey

% people who say that they have been treated with
respect and consideration by local public services –
gathered through new Place Survey
Increase the volume of total transactions delivered
through customer self service
Increase % complaints responded to within 15 days
% letters from the public that are responded to within 10
working days
% emails from the public that are responded to within 10
working days
% calls answered as a proportion of calls offered
% those making a complaint who are satisfied with the
handling of their complaint
Accessibility of council buildings – replacement
indicator for BV156 still being discussed and agreed
% people who are satisfied that they think LCC allows
residents a say in what it does
% people who think the council keeps them well
informed about services and benefits it supplies

Baseline Info
2006/7
Year End

Targets
2007/08
Result

New indicator - no
historical information
55%
(2005)

61%
(2007)

New indicator - no
historical information

2008/09

2009/10

2010/11

Baseline
to be set

tbc

National target is
for 50% reduction
by Mar 2011

No survey

65%

No survey

Baseline
to be set

n/a

tbc once baseline
established

317,954

467,054

513,759

565,135

621,649

46%

69%

76%

86%

95%

Incomplete baseline data

75%

85%

95%

Incomplete baseline data

75%

85%

95%

80%

85%

90%

No survey

65%

No survey

tbc

tbc

tbc

No survey

50%

No survey

No survey

55%

No survey

85%
Q not asked
in 2005
BV 156
49.56%
36%
(2005)
48%
(2005)

78%
62%
(2007)
Result
tbc
43%
(2007)
51%
(2007)

35

Indicator
BV 12

Page 118

Valuing our Colleagues

LKI PE2

Number of working days lost to the authority due to sickness
absence (average per FTE)
Voluntary leavers as a percentage of staff in post

CPES51

Increase % staff who feel valued as an employee

CP –
PE59

% staff who have had an appraisal

CPPE54

Increase % staff who feel they are involved in contribution to the
direction of the organisation

CP-ES
54

% of staff who feel that the council communicates well with them

BV 17a
BV 16a
BV11 ac
IIP

% local authority staff from BME communities – compared to local
community
% local authority staff with disability – compared to local
community
% of top earners who are:
a) women
b) From BME communities
c) Disabled (excluding maintained schools)
Level of IIP accreditation across whole organisation

Baseline Info
2006/7
2007/08
Year End
Result
12.00
12.18
days
days
9.61%
8.90%
61%
(from 2007 staff
survey)
70%
(from 2007 staff
survey)
70%
(from 2007 staff
survey)
59%
(from 2007 staff
survey)

Targets
2008/09

2009/10

2010/11

11.5 days

11 days

10 days

9%

9%

9%

No survey

63%

65%

No survey

72%

74%

No survey

74%

76%

No survey

64%

69%

7.0%

7.7%

8.0%

8.5%

9.0%

3.2%

3.2%

3.6%

3.7%

3.8%

36.47%
5.75%
3.60%
N/A

36.83%
5.96%
4.05%
N/A

39%
6.25%
4.2%
Level 1

40%
6.5%
4.4%
Level 1

41%
6.75%
4.6%
Level 1

36

Indicator

Page 119

Business Improvement/Excellence

BV2a
CPEO50

Equality standard level

New

Implementation of Equality and Diversity Scheme

CP-LE50

Voter turn out in local elections
% of projects independently assured by the Project
Assurance Unit where there are significant concerns with the
effectiveness of overall project management

New

CAA

New
New

New

New

New

Direction of Travel Score
Delivery of IO programme through % project milestones
achieved vs those planned
% of colleagues who have an understanding of the Council’s
approach to the management, use and sharing of its
information and knowledge
% of service areas audited where Information Governance
Arrangements are assessed as being 'compliant' with
corporate policy.
Data Quality measured by:
a) number of key systems using a corporately agreed
monitoring framework and defined metrics to measure data
quality
b) % strategic indicator set (LSP, CBP & NI) where we have
"no concerns" on data quality
% key decisions which did not appear in the forward plan

Baseline Info
2006/7
Year End
Level 3

Targets
2007/08
Result
Level 3

New indicator - no historical
information
37.52%
35.76%
2%
(Q4 2007/8)
Improving
Adequately
(2006)

Improving
Well
(2007)

New indicator - no historical
information

2008/09

2009/10

2010/11

Level 4

Level 4

Level 5

Baseline
tbc
tbc
to be set
Targets to be confirmed shortly
0%

0%

0%

Improving
Well (or
better)
(2008)
Baseline
to be set

Improving
Well (or
better)
(2009)

Improving
Well (or
better)
(2010)

tbc

tbc

New indicator - no historical
information

No survey

Baseline
to be set

tbc

New indicator - no historical
information

Baseline
to be set

tbc

tbc

New indicator - no historical
information

Baseline
to be set

tbc

tbc

New indicator - no historical
information
n/a
33%

Baseline
to be set
15%

tbc

tbc

10%

5%

37

38
Page 120

Page 121

Ambition
No clear measurable
outcomes relating to
ambition of becoming a
successful European city.

Issue

Vision for Leeds, Leeds
Strategic Plan 2008-11
supported by Leeds
Economic Development
Strategy

Plan within which
action sits

The Board and its members will
champion this agenda and in driving the
city's approach to going up a league and
becoming a successful European city. It
will provide challenge and support to the
council and other partners in achieving
measurable outcomes

We have set up a new Leeds Initiative
Going up a League Board whose remit
is to drive forward outcomes which meet
our aim to become a successful
European city. The Board met for the
first time in March 2008 chaired by
Councillor Andrew Carter, Leader,
Leeds City Council. It has on it
representation from all three main
political parties; the Chief Executive and
Director of the council's City
Development Directorate;
representatives of the private sector;
and the Vice Chancellors of both
universities.

Current Position April 08

Scrutiny Board (City & Regional Partnerships)

Corporate Assessment Actions 2008

Kathy Kudelnitzky

RAG
CO
Responsibility status

DOCUMENT D

Page 122

Plan within which
action sits
New Senior Manager appraisal scheme
based on core competencies and
greater accountability piloted with
Directors now being rolled out to Chief
Officers. Middle Manager scheme being
developed for Autumn 2008.
Corporate Service Planning workshops
held Feb/March 08. Quality assurance
review in May 08 with report to CLT

Current Position April 08

Steve Clough

Lorraine Hallam

CO
RAG
Responsibility status

There remains a
recognised need to
develop the public
transport strategy further.

Leeds Strategic Plan
2008-11 supported by
West Yorkshire Local
Transport Plan 2006-11

• Improve physical accessibility by
making public transport more
accessible.
• Maintain and develop public
transport networks through our
bus and rail strategies.

The following core strategy approaches
are identified in the West Yorkshire LTP
in relation to public transport.

Steve Speak

Achievement in Sustainable Communities and Transport
Not yet made significant
Leeds Strategic Plan
City partnership group on worklessness Stephen Boyle
impact on our target to
2008-11 supported by
established. Targets to reduce
reduce worklessness.
Leeds Economic
worklessness included in LAA. Strategy
Development Strategy*
and action plan being developed
through partnership group to deliver LAA
targets

Presentation of service
Council Business Plan
plans was inconsistent up 2008-11
until this year, therefore
embedding of
performance management
culture is yet to happen.

Performance Management
Lack of consistency for Council Business Plan
review and setting of
2008-11
individual targets and
objectives.

Issue

Page 123

Plan within which
action sits

Achievement in Safer and Stronger Communities
Crime, and fear of crime,
Leeds Strategic Plan
remains high when
2008-11 supported by
compared nationally.
Safer Leeds Partnership
Plan 2008-11

Issue

CO
RAG
Responsibility status

Safer Leeds has developed its
Richard Jackson
partnership plan 2008/11 with specific
improvement priorities for 2008/9. These
include delivery activity to
reduce serious acquisitive crime and
violent crime whilst improving
community confidence and public

Rail measures are led by Metro and
involve partnership working with the rail
industry. Bids are made to the Regional
Transport Board for funding to support
selected rail improvements.

Measures to address the issues related
to buses are taken forward in
partnership with Metro and the bus
operators and coordinated by the Leeds
Bus Partnership Group. A programme
of interventions has been identified
through to the end of LTP2 in March
2011 and this is monitored by the
partnership group.

• Raise awareness of public
transport and improve and target
information and marketing.
• Encourage modal switch to public
transport by encouraging more
travel by bus and rail and
improving ticketing and
information.

Current Position April 08

Page 124

Plan within which
action sits

Leeds Strategic Plan
2008-11 supported by
Health and Well Being
Plan*, Children and
Young People’s Plan
2006-09 and PCT
Strategic Plan 2008-11

Leeds Strategic Plan
2008-11 supported by
Health and Well Being
Plan*, Children and
Young People’s Plan
2006-09 and PCT

Partnership working at a
strategic level is underdeveloped.

Services not provided
consistently across city

Achievement in Healthier Communities
Inconsistent approach
Leeds Strategic Plan
to reducing health
2008-11 supported by
inequalities across the
Health and Well Being
city.
Plan*, Children and
Young People’s Plan
2006-09 and PCT
Strategic Plan 2008-11

Issue

The agreement to establish the Joint
Strategic Commissioning Board, and
associated sub-groups covering the
span of health and social care
commissioning, reflects partner’s prior
assessment of this need. The first
meeting of the board is scheduled for
June 2008, whilst several preparatory
workshops have been held and a Board
constitution developed.
The Programme Management
arrangements for the JSNA also reflect
significant progress towards
strengthened strategic partnership
arrangements.
The agreement to establish the Joint
Strategic Commissioning Board, and
associated sub-groups covering the
span of health and social care
commissioning, reflects partner’s prior
assessment of this need. The first

The Strategic Plan sets out clear
improvement priorities for reducing
health inequalities in the city. Targets for
key priorities have been set to reflect
improvements in the worst 10% SOA’s.
New strategic leadership and
performance management
arrangements are built into the Healthy
Leeds Strategic Commissioning Board.

satisfaction.

Current Position April 08

Ian Cameron
Sandie Keene
Rosemary Archer

Ian Cameron
Sandie Keene
Rosemary Archer

Ian Cameron
Sandie Keene
Rosemary Archer

CO
RAG
Responsibility status

Page 125

Strategic Plan 2008-11

Plan within which
action sits

Achievement in Older People
No strategic approach
Leeds Strategic Plan
to people over 50.
2008-11 supported by
Cohesion and Integration
priorities and delivery
plan 2008 – 2011*

Issue

CO
RAG
Responsibility status

The Dignity in Care campaign is being
extended to those under 65

The Intermediate Tier Strategy is aiming
to eradicate the 65+ existing age barrier
for many services and will make these
available to all adults Inc. 50+
Work on Falls Prevention has been
extended to those under 65

'The Work streams within Older Better;
Tackling Poverty, Access to Information,
Tackling Social Isolation, are being
examine in relation to their impact on
50+ and action plans developed
accordingly.

“The Time of Our Lives” - the draft Sandie Keene
Strategy for Older People's in Leeds - to
be published July 08 - recognises this
issue
and
focuses
on
greater
engagement and action for this group

meeting of the board is scheduled for
June 2008, whilst several preparatory
workshops have been held and a Board
constitution developed.
The Programme Management
arrangements for the JSNA also reflect
significant progress towards
strengthened strategic partnership
arrangements.

Current Position April 08

Page 126

Leeds Strategic Plan
2008-11 supported by
Children and Young
People’s Plan 2006-09
and Cohesion and
Integration priorities and
delivery plan 2008 –
2011*

Council has not yet
evaluated the cover
provided by the voluntary
sector and other partners
and therefore we do not
know if provision is
consistent across the city.

* Plans in development

Plan within which
action sits

Issue

CO
RAG
Responsibility status

Our objective is to establish clear
ASC/PCT
joint
voluntary
sector
commissioning
practice
and
mechanisms and have new joint
contracts in place by April 09, to deliver
improved consistency across the city in
terms of funding levels and services
provided as well as an improved
evidence base to demonstrate the
effectiveness of these preventative
services.

A joint ASC & PCT engagement with the Dennis Holmes
42 voluntary sector Neighbourhood
Network Schemes (NNS) for OP began
in February. All stakeholders are
involved
in
a
comprehensive
consultation programme to agree future
outcomes & models for more equitable
and
transparent
joint
funding
arrangements.

Emerging consultation structures in
Leeds:
LINks, and the Councils
equalities Assembly will specifically take
account of the views of those 50 and
over

Current Position April 08

DOCUMENT E
Originator: Liz Davenport /
Lucy Stratford
Tel: X78408
Report of the Assistant Chief Executive (Corporate Governance)
Corporate Governance and Audit Committee
Date: 28 November 2007
Subject: Governance arrangements for significant partnerships
Electoral Wards Affected:

Specific Implications For:

Equality and Diversity
Community Cohesion
Ward Members consulted
(referred to in report)

Narrowing the Gap

Executive Summary
1. This report informs Members that the council has now identified its significant
partnerships. A list of these partnerships is attached as appendix one to this
report.
2. Lead officers have now been identified for each of these significant partnerships.
They will be responsible for ensuring that partnerships comply with the council’s
governance framework for its significant partnerships.
3. The Assistant Chief Executive (ACE) (Corporate Governance) has also carried out
a base-line assessment of the governance arrangements for the council’s
significant partnerships.

Page 127

1.0

Purpose Of This Report

1.1

To inform Members about progress made in relation to the governance
arrangements of the council’s significant partnerships.

2.0

Background Information

2.1

There is a greater focus on partnership arrangements under the “harder test” CPA
framework.

2.2

This report focuses on progress in relation to Key Line of Enquiry (KLOE) 4.2
(arrangements in place to maintain a sound system of internal control) – specifically
the requirement that the council identify its significant partnerships and have
appropriate governance arrangements in place for each of them. The report also
outlines actions being taken to address additional KLOEs 2.2 and 4.1 which relate to
the financial performance and risk management of partnerships.

2.3

At their meeting on 29 June 2007, Corporate Governance and Audit (CGA)
Committee approved a governance framework for significant partnerships, and
noted a proposal to develop a toolkit to supplement the framework.

2.4

The framework sets out:
• the processes for deciding when and how to enter a partnership;
• the minimum governance arrangements the council requires each partnership to
have;
• how the council will support the governance of each partnership; and
• how the council monitors and reviews its involvement with each partnership.

2.5

The framework defines a partnership, and sets out criteria for identifying whether a
partnership is significant. The framework is attached as appendix two to this report.

3.0

Main Issues
Significant partnerships

3.1

The Assistant Chief Executive (Corporate Governance) has now conducted a
survey of directors to identify the council’s significant partnerships. Appendix one
sets out the partnerships which have now been identified as significant, using the
definition and criteria set out in the framework.
Lead officers

3.2

A lead officer has also been identified for each significant partnership whose
responsibility is to make sure that:
•

the council’s responsibilities under the framework are carried out; and

•

the partnership complies with the minimum standards set out under the
framework.

Review of governing documents
3.3

A base-line review of the governance arrangements of these significant partnerships
has also now been carried out. This review focused on the governing documents
for each partnership, as these should be an integral part of their governance
arrangements.
Page 128

3.4

Paragraph 4.2 of the framework requires each partnership to agree a governing
document which sets out:
• its functions;
• its role;
• its decision-making framework;
• the respective roles and responsibilities of individual partners, including in
relation to finance and audit functions;
• a dispute resolution procedure; and
• exit provisions.

3.5

The Assistant Chief Executive (Corporate Governance) co-ordinated the review,
through the lead officer for each partnership. Each lead officer had to review
whether its governing documents comply with these requirements, and confirm the
position to the Assistant Chief Executive. They were required to provide:
•

details of any failures to comply with a requirement; and

•

a proposed time-scale for any follow-up actions to ensure compliance.

Outcome of the review
3.6

Of the council’s 43 significant partnerships, 39 have confirmed that they have
governing documents in place. Of the remaining four Governance Services has not
yet received the relevant information for one, and three have indicated that they do
not have a governing document in place.

3.7

Of the three partnerships without governing documents all are currently planning or
undertaking wider reviews and consultation regarding their structures and purpose.
In all of these any new governing documents will need to take account of the
requirements of the framework and lead officers are aware of this.
.
Of the 39 partnerships that do have governing documents in place 14 fully complied
with the requirements of the framework. The most notable trend for those that didn’t
was a lack of provision for dealing with dispute resolution and exit arrangements
(which is consistent with the findings of the KPMG report on Children’s Services
partnership working – item 10 on this agenda). A number of the partnerships have
indicated that they will review their governing documents to ensure full compliance
and the ACE (Corporate Governance) will monitor whether the follow-up actions are
carried out within an appropriate time-scale. Where partnerships have indicated
that they are not fully compliant, but have not provided any details regarding followup actions the ACE (Corporate Governance) will pursue this with the lead officers.

3.8

3.9

Details of a further four significant partnerships that are currently being established
have also been provided. In all cases the lead officer is aware of the requirement
that any governance arrangements comply with the framework.

3.10

The ACE (Corporate Governance) will carry out a more detailed review of the
governance arrangements in place for each significant partnership, once the toolkit
is available.
Toolkit

3.11

Since the committee meeting on 29 June, resources have been focused on
identifying significant partnerships, and carrying out the base-line governance
assessment. A detailed structure for the toolkit has been developed, and key
Page 129

officers identified to contribute to it. It is planned to consult with Members on the
draft toolkit.
3.12

Attached for information as appendix three to this report, is guidance which will form
an important part of the toolkit. This was circulated to directors to help them identify
significant partnerships.
Compliance with other relevant KLOEs

3.13

There are additional KLOEs which relate to the governance of partnerships. The
Council will have to comply with these KLOEs by 31st March 2008.
KLOE 2.2 – Financial Performance

3.14

KLOE 2.2 requires that ’the financial performance of significant partnerships is
regularly reviewed, linked to outputs, and the results shared with partners and acted
upon”.

3.15

A number of factors were considered by Directors in deciding whether a partnership
is significant. The resources the council commits to each partnership was only one
of these factors.1 In order to address KLOE 2.2, therefore, the Chief Officer
(Financial Management) is currently assessing the list of significant partnerships, to
identify those with which the council has a significant financial relationship (i.e. to
which the council contributes a significant amount of finance and / or is the
Accountable Body). This will enable the Chief Officer (Financial Management) to
focus efforts on reviewing the financial performance of those partnerships that are
financially significant.

3.16

In addition the partnerships toolkit which is currently being developed will provide
guidance on the financial management of all significant partnerships.
KLOE 4.1 – Risk Management

3.17

KLOE 4.1 requires that ‘the risk management process specifically considers risks in
relation to significant partnerships and provides for assurances to be obtained about
the management of those risks.’

3.18

The Risk Management Unit has reviewed the Risk Management Policy and Strategy
and placed partnership risk as a key area for development in its strategy 2008-11.
These documents are on this agenda for review by Corporate Governance and
Audit Committee and will then be presented to Executive Board for comment and
approval. The ‘Governance Framework for Significant Partnerships’ adopted by
Council also includes specific requirements in relation to risk (including undertaking
risk assessments, identifying and recording risks).

4.0

Implications For Council Policy And Governance

4.1

Identifying the council’s significant partnerships and conducting the base-line
assessment is a major step forward in terms of compliance with the KLOE 4.2
requirement to ensure that there are appropriate governance arrangements in place
for each significant partnership..

1

The other factors were: the partnership’s contribution to the achievement of priorities in the Corporate Plan;
the nature of the consequences if the partnership were to fail; the type of decisions the partnership makes;
whether the partnership is required by law or to secure funding; and the extent to which the partnership helps
the council to manage risk.

Page 130

5.0

Legal And Resource Implications

5.1

The further implementation of the framework, the development of the toolkit and
developing processes to provide monitoring of the governance arrangements of
significant partnerships will have additional resource implications. Currently these
are expected to be contained within existing budgets.

6.0

Conclusions

6.1

The framework has allowed the council to identify its significant partnerships, using
a clear and consistent approach.

6.2

The allocation of lead officers for each partnership provided additional capacity to
ensure compliance with the framework.

6.3

The base-line assessment of the governance arrangements of the council’s
significant partnerships:

6.4

•

provides assurance that some form of governance arrangements are already in
place for the majority of these partnerships; specifically in relation to their
governing documents; and

•

has identified areas for improvement in relation to those partnerships which do
not already comply with the requirements of the framework.

There is, however, further work to be done, in relation to:
•

the production of the tool-kit;

•

the implementation and monitoring of the framework as a whole;

•

progressing compliance with other KLOEs relating to significant partnerships.

7.0

Recommendations

7.1

Members are asked to note:
•

that the council has now identified its significant partnerships as set out in
appendix one to this report;

•

the results of the base-line assessment of the governance arrangements for
those partnerships; and

•

the guidance circulated to directors (appendix three).

Page 131

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 132

OUTSIDE BODY APPOINTMENTS RESERVED TO COUNCIL

Outside Body

West Yorkshire Fire
And Rescue
Authority

West Yorkshire
Joint Services
Committee

West Yorkshire
Passenger
Transport Authority

West Yorkshire
Pension Fund
Investment Panel

West Yorkshire
Pension Fund Joint
Advisory Group

West Yorkshire
Police Authority

No of Review
Places Date

No. of
Appointees
Vacancie

Cllr Revie Group
Y/N w

8

May-08

S Armitage

Y

AnnualLab

4

May-08
May-08
May-08
May-08
May-08
May-08
May-08
May-08

M Coulson
A Harrison
D Hollingsworth
G Kirkland
G wilkinson
P Harrand
A Ogilvie
G Driver

Y
Y
Y
Y
Y
Y
Y
Y

AnnualLab
AnnualLab
AnnualLib Dem
AnnualLib Dem
AnnualCon
AnnualCon
AnnualLab
AnnualLab

8

May-08
May-08
May-08
May-08

N Taggart
A Carter
R Brett
M Lyons

Y
Y
Y
Y

AnnualLab
AnnualCon
AnnualLib Dem
AnnualLab

2

May-08
May-08
May-08
May-08
May-08
May-08
May-08
May-08

J Jarosz
D Congreve
C Campbell
R Downes
A Carter
B Jennings
T Leadley
David Congreve

Y
Y
Y
Y
Y
Y
Y
Y

AnnualLab
AnnualLab
AnnualLib Dem
AnnualLib Dem
AnnualCon
AnnualCon
AnnualMBI
AnnualLab

May-08

Clive Fox

Y

AnnualCon

3

May-08

David Congreve Y

AnnualLab

3

May-08
May-08
May-08

Whips nominee
Clive Fox
R Lewis

Y
Y
Y

AnnualLib Dem
AnnualCon
AnnualLab

May-08
May-08

Les Carter
B Lancaster

Y
Y

AnnualCon
AnnualLib Dem

Appointments to Outside Bodies: Party Allocation
Summary
Number of places
Number of filled places
Number of Vacancies

Party

%

Labour
43%
Liberal Democrat
24%
Conservative
22%
Greens
3%
Morley Independents 5%
Total

97%

#REF!
28
0

Place
Number Number to
Allocatio Allocate Allocate
n
d

11.20
7.28
6.72
0.84
1.68

12
7
8
0
1

28

28

0

Page 133

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 134

SIGNIFICANT
PARTNERSHIPS
APPENDIX ONE
Partnership
West Yorkshire Local Resilience
Forum
Leeds Local Education Partnership
(LEP)
Healthy Leeds
Learning Disability Partnership
Joint Equipment Service

Joint Care Management
Children Leeds
Integrated Strategic Commissioning
Board
Leeds Safeguarding Children Board
Children Leeds Learning
Partnership
Leeds Youth Work Partnership
Sure Start Partnership
Parish and Town Council Forum
Strategic Design Alliance
Engineering Services / Mouchel
Parkman
Leeds Enterprise Growth Initiative
Board
Renaissance Leeds
Chamber of Commerce
Holbeck Urban Village
Safer Leeds
Leeds Construction Partnership
Strategic Housing Partnership
Board
Leeds Housing Partnership
Leeds Supporting People
Commissioning Body
West Yorkshire Housing
Partnership Board
Yorkshire and Humberside Housing
Partnership Board
Regional Asylum Partnership
WEST District Partnership
(example of all DPs)
Strategic Partnership Board LIFT
West Leeds Gateway
Aire Valley Partnership Board
(Regen Board)
Impact (Chapeltown / Harehills)
Beeston Hill / Holbeck
Regeneration Board
Abandoned Vehicles (LCC / Police)
Groundwork (between env serv and
Groundwork Leeds
Cleanest City Task Group (LCC / LI
/ ENCAMS)
Association of West Yorks
Authorities
Leeds City Region
Core Cities
Local Government Yorkshire and
Humber
Yorkshire and Humber Assembly
Yorkshire Cities
Local Area Agreement

Director
Alan Gay

Lead Officer
Tim Pouncey

Alan Gay

Doug Meeson

Sandie Keene
Sandie Keene
Sandie Keene

John England
Dennis Holmes
Mike Evans

Sandie Keene
Rosemary Archer
Rosemary Archer

Mike Evans
Mariana Pexton
Keith Burton

Rosemary Archer

Bryan Gocke

Rosemary Archer

Clive Robinson

Rosemary Archer
Rosemary Archer
Nicole Jackson
Jean Dent
Jean Dent

John Paxton
Anne Kearsley
Nick de la Taste
Steve Kilburn
Roy Coello

Jean Dent

Paul Stephens

Jean Dent
Jean Dent
Jean Dent
Neil Evans
Neil Evans
Neil Evans

Paul Stephens
Paul Stephens
Paul Stephens
Richard Jackson
Marie Milner
Paul Langford

Neil Evans
Neil Evans

Paul Langford
Paul Langford

Neil Evans

Paul Langford

Neil Evans

Paul Langford

Neil Evans
Neil Evans

Paul Langford
Area Managers

Neil Evans
Neil Evans
Neil Evans

Stephen Boyle
Steve Crocker
Marie Lynch

Neil Evans
Neil Evans

Rory Barke
Dave Richmond

Randall Brown

Graham Wilson

Randall Brown

Steve Smith

Randall Brown

Steve Smith

James Rogers

Nicole Brock

James Rogers
James Rogers
James Rogers

Nicole Brock
Nicole Brock
Nicole Brock

James Rogers
James Rogers
James Rogers

Nicole Brock
Matt Brunt
Steve Clough

Page 135

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 136

DOCUMENT F

Scrutiny Board(City &
Regional Partnerships)
Terms of Reference

Page 137

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 138

Council Committees’ Terms of Reference

Appendix 14

Scrutiny Board (City and Regional Partnerships)

1.

2.

In relation to city and regional partnerships,1 to exercise the
functions of a Scrutiny Board including the following:
(a)

to review or scrutinise the exercise of any council or executive function
or any other related matter;

(b)

to review how any partnership contributes to the outcomes, targets and
priorities within the Leeds Strategic Plan;

(c)

to receive and review external audit and inspection reports;

(d)

to make reports or recommendations to the Council, the Executive or a
relevant partnership in connection with the partnership’s performance
and functions, and the authority’s engagement with the partnership;

(e)

to act as the appropriate Scrutiny Board2 in relation to the Executive’s
initial proposals for a plan or strategy within the Budget and Policy
Framework; and

(f)

to review or scrutinise executive decisions made but not implemented.3

To receive and monitor formal responses to any reports or recommendations
made by the Board.

1

These include:
strategic and key partnerships identified as such under the Appointment to Outside Bodies
Procedure Rules; and
• significant partnerships identified as such under the Council’s Governance Framework.
2
under the Budget and Policy Framework Procedure Rules
3
which have been called-in under Rule 22 of the Scrutiny Board Procedure Rules.
Part 3 Section 2B
Page 1 of 1
Issue 1 – May 2008
•

Page 59
139

This page is intentionally left blank

Page
Page140
60

Agenda Item 8

AGENDA ITEM NO 7(b)
Originator: Richard Mills
Tel: 247 4557
Report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development
Scrutiny Board: City and Regional Partnerships
Date:

21st July 2008

Subject: Determine Work Programme 2008/09
Electoral Wards Affected: All

Specific Implications For:

Equality and Diversity
Community Cohesion
Ward Members consulted
(referred to in report)

Narrowing the Gap

1.0

Purpose of Report

1.1

The purpose of this report is to determine the Board’s work programme for 2008/09.

2.0

Introduction

2.1

The previous agenda item provided inputs to the development of the Board’s work
programme concerning development and regeneration. Having considered the
written information and having discussed relevant issues with the Chief Executive,
and the Executive Board Member with portfolio responsibility for Development and
Regeneration, the Board is now asked to consider further its work programme for
2008/09.

2.2

Members are reminded that if additional information is required in order to
determine the programme this can be obtained via the use of informal meetings of
the Scrutiny Board.

2.3

In formulating work programme the Scrutiny Board shall determine;
•
•

how the proposed inquiry meets criteria approved from time to time by the
Scrutiny Advisor Group (Attached as Appendix 1)
whether the programme can be adequately resourced and timetabled.

3.0

Current Work Programme

3.1

The Board’s current work programme is provided under agenda item no 10 with
details of the latest forward plan of key decisions and Executive Board minutes.

4.0

Recommendations

4.1

Members are requested to consider further the Board’s work programme for
2008/09 with regard to development
and141
regeneration.
Page

Appendix 1
SCRUTINY BOARD PROCEDURE RULES GUIDANCE NOTE 7
INQUIRY SELECTION CRITERIA
1.0
1.1

INTRODUCTION
The Scrutiny Board Procedure Rules require Scrutiny Boards, before deciding to undertake
an Inquiry, to:
Consider how a proposed Inquiry meets criteria approved from time to time; and
Consult with any relevant Director and Executive Member

1.2

This is to ensure that Scrutiny Boards, when agreeing to undertake an Inquiry, have
considered carefully the reasons for that Inquiry, its objectives, whether it can be
adequately resourced in terms of Member and Officer time and have sought the views of
the relevant Director and Executive Member.

1.3

The decision whether to undertake an Inquiry or not rests with the Scrutiny Board.

2.0

INQUIRY SELECTION CRITERIA

2.1

At the time of deciding to undertake an Inquiry, the Scrutiny Board will refer to the Inquiry
Selection Criteria within this Guidance Note and formally identify which of the agreed
criteria the proposed Inquiry meets. The Board will also record the comments of the
relevant Director and Executive Member. This process will be recorded in the Scrutiny
Board minutes.

Page 142

INQUIRY SELECTION CRITERIA
Scrutiny Board

______________________________

Inquiry Title

______________________________

Anticipated Start Date

______________________________

Anticipated Finish Date

______________________________

The Inquiry meets the following criteria
●

●

It addresses the Council’s agreed Strategic outcomes by
reviewing the effectiveness of policy to achieve strategic outcomes
as defined by the Leeds Strategic Plan
Shaping and developing policy through influencing pre-policy
discussion

It fulfils a performance management function by
●

Reviewing performance of significant parts of service

●

Addressing a poor performing service

●

Addressing a high level of user dissatisfaction with the service

●

Addressing a pattern of budgetary overspends

●

Addressing matters raised by external auditors and inspectors

●

Addresses an issue of high public interest

●

Reviews a Major or Key Officer decision

●

Reviews an Executive Board decision

●

Reviews a series of decisions which have a significant impact

●

Has been requested by the Executive Board/Full Council/Scrutiny
Advisory Group

●

looks at innovative change

Comments of relevant Director and Executive Member (Attach additional sheet if necessary)

Date

Page 143

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 144

Agenda Item 9
Originator: Richard Mills
Tel: 247 4557
Report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development
Scrutiny Board (City and Regional Partnerships)
Date: 21st July 2008
Subject: Request for Scrutiny Regarding University Fees
Electoral Wards Affected: All

Specific Implications For:
Equality and Diversity
Community Cohesion
Narrowing the Gap

1.0

Introduction

1.1

A request for scrutiny has been made by Leeds University Union concerning their fees
campaign. The University Union wants the Scrutiny Board to investigate what impact
the current funding model has had on applications to their local institutions from local
students, but also what wider impacts the city could face if an increase of fees was
introduced following the 2009 review. Details of the request are attached.

1.2

This matter was discussed at the last meeting of the Board when considering the
development of its work programme for 2008/09. Members considered that this matter
was not a priority within the Leeds Strategic Plan and there would clearly be a need to
secure the active participation of the two Universities. However, despite these
reservations the Board agreed to invite representatives from the University Unions to
present their case to the Board today.

1.3

The following representaives from the Leeds University Union have been invited to
attend today’s meeting to detail to the Board the exact nature of their request for
scrutiny:
Mr Danial Adilypour Education Officer, Leeds University Union
Mr Rob Damiao Community Officer, Leeds University Union

1.4

The Leeds University Union has submitted the attached information in support of their
request as follows:
•

Report from the Leeds University Union

Page 145

•

Details of Liverpool City Council’s submission

2.0

Options for Investigations and Inquiries

2.1

When considering the request for Scrutiny, the Scrutiny Board (City Development)
shall determine:
•
•
•
•

what further information the Board needs before considering whether an inquiry
should be undertaken
how the proposed inquiry meets criteria approved from time to time by the
Scrutiny Advisory Group
whether the Inquiry can be adequately resourced
whether an Inquiry should be undertaken

3.0

Recommendations

3.1

The Scrutiny Board is asked to consider;
(i)

The request for Scrutiny from the University Unions.

(ii)

What further information, if any, the Scrutiny Board requires before it can
determine if it wishes to undertaken an inquiry on this matter.

Page 146

Leeds University Union
Leeds City Council Scrutiny Panel on Fees
Susan Nash
Education Officer

1

Page 147

Leeds University Union
Submission to Local Council on Funding Scrutiny Panel

As part of our fees campaign LUU is keen to create a inquiry/ scrutiny panel
on Leeds City Council which would be tasked with investigating what impact
the current funding model has had on applications to our local institutions
from local students, but also what wider impacts the city could face if a
increase of fees was introduced following the 2009 review.

We want a scrutiny board to examine these key areas:
•

If there is any evidence to suggest fees and financial concerns are
currently preventing residents from accessing higher education.

•

Undergo an examination of the range of information, advice and
guidance prospective students receive, with a mind to streamlining the
information in order to make advice more accessible.

•

Identifying any new funding streams that could go to supporting more
underprivileged children progressing to higher education.

•

Assessing what potential impact changes to the fees structure could
have on the aspirations of young people in Leeds, and identifying
whether the Council needs to adjust services and information, or take
action to ensure access is not denied.

•

To discuss the issue of funding, looking from a perspective of access
and examining what conditions the council may wish to recommend
to the Government in the 2009 review.

•

To inquire whether the ‘Most popular destination for students’ section
of the Vision for Leeds strategy takes account of the possible impact of
any changes to future funding models.

A similar scrutiny panel was adopted by Liverpool City Council last yr.
Liverpool City Council requested submissions from local unions, institutions,
community groups and other stakeholders. Their inquiry examined the impact
of the forthcoming review of higher education funding on the City’s
economic development with a view to making a submission to the

2

Page 148

Government’s review. More information on the Liverpool example can be
provided if required.

What have we done so far?
Sara Gill our community officer has attended the City Development Scrutiny
Board where they are examining the economic impact of students in Leeds.
She reported that the issue of top up fees and possible changes to the fees
structure was reported.

We have spoken to the Liverpool councillor who was leading the work in
Liverpool and gained his advice on how to approach this issue in Leeds.

We have spoken to some councillors about the issue, many of whom were
keen to see this issue reach the scrutiny panels agenda.

Timescale

LUU is keen for this issue to progress rapidly. We believe there is an immediacy
with this scrutiny work as the Government is currently undertaking several
reviews within Higher Education, with a particular review examining access
and widening participation. It would be ideal for the council to undertake a
scrutiny examination in time to report to this body but also to feed into
national discussions about higher education funding which are due to begin
in 2009.

The Higher Education sector has already begun lobbying for increases in
student fees before a full examination of the current structure has begun. This
means the 2009 review could be very narrow and the outcome
predetermined from day one. We therefore believe it is even more crucial to
undergo local scrutiny work to ensure the concerns of the student population,
and concerns around access are examined, scrutinised and if found
presented to national decision makers.

3

Page 149

From a LUU perspective our cycles are slightly different to the council. Our
sabbatical officers run from July to June and it can be difficult to handover
projects to new teams, so for continuity sake we would ideally wish to see a
board set up as early as possible so it can report and we can take action in
the same academic year. In terms of the national NUS perspective we are
keen to see scrutiny panels set up and reporting in this academic year
because of the pending 2009 fees review, but also importantly because NUS
is undertaking a significant amount of work on access and admissions and
would wish to assist Councils like Leeds in providing support and suggestions
for improvements.

There is urgency at a local level. We believe the council can play an
important role in improving the information that prospective students see, but
also the scrutiny board could assist the access agenda, by feeding in
recommendations to service providers and local institutions.

We would recommend an investigation begin early with an aim to publish a
report by the December meeting.

We would recommend that this scrutiny investigation be sent to the City and
Regional partnerships scrutiny panel.

Questions for Richard:

How do we take it forward?

What is the timescale?

Where should it go?

How do we make a formal request?

This request for a scrutiny panel comes from LUU, Leeds Met Students Union, Leeds
College of Technology, Leeds College of Art and Design, Leeds College of Music
Students Union and Park Lane College.

4

Page 150

Liverpool City Council
Higher Education Funding Scrutiny Panel
Student Submission
November 2007

Liverpool Guild of Students
160 Mount Pleasant Liverpool L3 5TR
lgos.org

Page 151

Liverpool Guild of Students

Submission to the Liverpool City Council Higher Education Funding Scrutiny Panel

Page 2 of 18

Page 152

Submission to the Liverpool City Council Higher Education Funding Scrutiny Panel

Liverpool Guild of Students

Contents
Introduction ........................................................................................................................................ 5
The size and nature of Liverpool’s population ................................................................................ 7
Financial contribution ...................................................................................................................... 11
Housing ......................................................................................................................................... 11
Cultural contribution ........................................................................................................................ 13
Conclusion ........................................................................................................................................ 15

Page 3 of 18

Page 153

Liverpool Guild of Students

Submission to the Liverpool City Council Higher Education Funding Scrutiny Panel

Page 4 of 18

Page 154

Submission to the Liverpool City Council Higher Education Funding Scrutiny Panel

Liverpool Guild of Students

This submission is made on behalf of the students of Liverpool Hope University, Liverpool John
Moores University and the University of Liverpool.

Introduction
The students of Liverpool, as in any other part of the UK and the world, are not a distinct or separate
element of the community. They are tenants, employees, volunteers, family members, constituents
and customers with skills, experience and time to offer.
In the past five years there has been much attention paid to the phenomenon of ‘studentification’,
much of it negative. Media headlines have included ‘You can’t live here, students told’1, ‘Rowdy
students must be tackled’2, and ‘Student take over alarms cities’3. The latter article even refers to a
study that called students “the new scourge of Britain's towns and cities”.
The definition of ‘studentification’ offered by the Macmillan English dictionary is “the social and
environmental changes caused by very large numbers of students living in particular areas of a town
or city”4, like many definitions, leaving aside the question of whether or not these changes are
positive or negative.
Whilst a great (and often not properly planned for) influx of students to an area is bound to cause
some friction, as does any sudden population change, it brings with it many more positive
developments. Little attention has been paid to the regenerative function that a student population
performs, supplying workers and customers for high street shops and introducing enhanced cultural
and ethnic diversity. Universities UK has identified various positive social, cultural, physical and
economic effects that student populations bring5. Indeed, universities are the economic and cultural
powerhouses of the cities and regions of which they are a part.
It is recognition of this very fact, that universities increase the success and competitiveness of those
communities of which they are a part, that led to both employers and government calling for a
significant expansion in the number of people attending university, with the then Conservative
government in 1988 pledging to double the number of students in higher education by 2000, the CBI
suggesting in 1996 that 40% of school leavers should proceed to higher education6, and the Labour
government setting a target of 50% in 19997. Yet, strangely, students are increasingly left to fend for
themselves, having to pay significant sums of money for their tuition and navigate various private
markets, in housing and childcare, at a distinct financial disadvantage.
A government, and indeed tax payers, cannot, in good faith, at one and the same time argue that
increased education is necessary for our country’s global competitiveness and success, and that
those availing themselves of the opportunities must pay for the privilege as they may personally
benefit financially from them.
If the country as a whole benefits from graduates, then students are being forced to pay to benefit the
society of which they are a part, and to which they have every likelihood of contributing more than a
comparable person without a university education.
1

http://education.guardian.co.uk/students/housing/story/0,,1697549,00.html
http://news.bbc.co.uk/1/hi/education/4640168.stm
3
http://www.guardian.co.uk/society/2002/jul/21/urbandesign.highereducation
4
http://www.macmillandictionary.com/New-Words/040124-studentification.htm
5
‘Studentification: a guide to opportunities, challenges and practice’, January 2006
6
‘Degrees of poverty’ The Economist, 3 February 1996, pp49-50
7
Tony Blair, Labour Party Conference, Bournemouth, September 1999
2

Page 5 of 18

Page 155

Liverpool Guild of Students

Submission to the Liverpool City Council Higher Education Funding Scrutiny Panel

Page 6 of 18

Page 156

Submission to the Liverpool City Council Higher Education Funding Scrutiny Panel

Liverpool Guild of Students

The size and nature of Liverpool’s population
The population of Liverpool has been in almost constant decline since the Second World War and the
loss of traditional industry. With the end of the City’s status as a centre of trade and shipping from the
mid-1970s, the middle class business owners and entrepreneurs deserted it, leaving behind them a
population for the most part either unskilled or possessing skills that could no longer be employed.
From a 1931 Census peak of 855,688, the population had fallen to almost half that, 439,476, by
2001. Recent figures do indicate that this decline may be reversing, with a 0.6% increase to 444,000
in 2004 the first since the 1930s8, albeit slowly.
Figure 1 shows that from 1995-2004 the population of Liverpool declined by another 3.1%, placing it
53rd for population growth among England’s largest 56 cities, yet there was an increase of 19.4% in
employment, placing the City in 14th place. However, this still led in 2005 to an unemployment rate of
7% (50th), and the lowest employment rate of the 56 largest cities.
Figure 1: population growth and employment growth in 20 of England’s cities

As Figure 2 shows, Liverpool not only found itself in bottom place for the percentage of the working
age population claiming work related benefits (16.5%) and adults with no qualifications (28.6%), but
its (under)performance relative to similar cities is striking.
This is a stark representation of the difficulties that Liverpool faces. Far more than any other large city
in the UK its population harbours a high proportion of unskilled, unemployed people, and it is easy to
suspect a relationship between this and its declining population. ‘Two-track cities: the challenge of
sustaining growth and building opportunity’9, argues that “the most economically successful cities
8
9

http://www.liverpool.gov.uk/News/newsdetail_1352.asp
Athey, Lucci & Webber, IPPR Centre for Cities, Discussion paper no.11, July 2007
Page 7 of 18

Page 157

Liverpool Guild of Students

Submission to the Liverpool City Council Higher Education Funding Scrutiny Panel

tend to have lower rates of unemployment and higher rates of employment, associated with better
educational attainment and lower rates of benefit claims”. If a large swathe of the population are
neither working nor trained to work, the economy as a whole will suffer, and this will lead to people
leaving the area.
Figure 2: Unemployment-related benefit claimants and the proportion of working age
residents with no qualifications in 20 English cities (2004)

In contrast, the student population has been growing steadily. Between the academic years 1995-6
and 2000-1 the total number of students studying at Liverpool Hope, John Moores University and the
University of Liverpool increased by 18.5%, from 41,783 to 49,53010. This from approximately 19,000
in 1986-7.
But it is not simply the numbers Liverpool needs; the inspiration and innovation that a university and
its graduates supply are necessary for a successful future. Widening participation programmes, with
students visiting schools in the local community to help raise aspirations, have the potential to alter
the character of the population forever. Graduate retention strategies, operated by the universities
and their local partners, will provide workers for health and other public services, and will be integral
to the development of a knowledge economy – IT, business and research.
For example, the Graduate into Employment Unit (GIEU) of the University of Liverpool is responsible
for Europe’s largest regional initiative linking graduate employability and life long learning with
business competitiveness and regional economic development. It has helped more than 5,000
unemployed graduates to secure graduate level employment, creating over 1,250 new jobs in the
process, and assisted more than 2,000 local organisations to improve their business practices. Since
2002 it has assisted 368 local companies with graduate placements, and of these, 63% have retained
the graduates at the end of their placements.

10

http://www.hesa.ac.uk/index.php?option=com_content&task=view&id=801&Itemid=250

Page 8 of 18

Page 158

Submission to the Liverpool City Council Higher Education Funding Scrutiny Panel

Liverpool Guild of Students

Figures from the University of Liverpool Careers & Employability Service show that almost a third of
the University’s graduates remain working in the Merseyside region six months after completing their
courses of study, and that almost 70% of University of Liverpool graduates that were employed in
Merseyside after graduation were working in ‘graduate-level’ occupations. Retention across all the
universities was approximately 40% in 2005-6 according to the Higher Education Statistics Authority,
as opposed to 30% in 1999. This is due mainly to many local students remaining in the area after
graduation, but, for example, about 3% of those coming to the University of Liverpool from beyond
Merseyside also choose to remain.
It has to be recognised that higher education tuition fees and the prospect of significant debt at an
early age are likely to be barriers to the achievement of these changes. It is one thing to raise the
aspiration of a child and its family, but quite another to convince a family living in poverty that the cost
of attending university in the short term will be outweighed by the benefits in the long term. And if the
character of Liverpool’s population does not change, if aspiration continues to be stifled by the failure
of the system to help people out of a cycle of depravation and underachievement, then it is less likely
that graduates will be retained.

Page 9 of 18

Page 159

Liverpool Guild of Students

Submission to the Liverpool City Council Higher Education Funding Scrutiny Panel

Page 10 of 18

Page 160

Submission to the Liverpool City Council Higher Education Funding Scrutiny Panel

Liverpool Guild of Students

Financial contribution
Today approximately 11% (50,000) of the population of Liverpool consists of higher education
students. According to the UNITE Student Experience Report 200711, on average those students will
spend 41% of their time in paid work, earning themselves an average £108.70 a week. The same
report shows that they spend on average £180 a week on non-course related expenses. Leaving
aside the contribution to the growth of the economy that student workers make, that they make as
consumers is clear. Taking these figures, we can estimate that higher education students at these
three institutions are spending £113 million more than they earn over a 32 week period.
The advent of large numbers of international students, paying much higher fees than UK or EU
students, is also having a significant effect on the UK economy. The recent Universities UK report,
‘The economic impact of UK higher education institutions’, found that the “expenditure of international
students attending UK HEIs in 2003-4 was estimated to be £1.5 billion… equivalent to 9% of all UK
receipts from overseas visitors to the UK for the year 2004”12.
It is fair to argue that without students, and the constant increase in their number, Liverpool would
today be a very different place. Through their spending they have sustained and created jobs, making
a significant contribution to the regeneration of what was a city in decline.

Housing
‘Liverpool’s Housing Market Research programme 1999/2001: a review of the main findings and
policy recommendations’13 states that “the owner occupied sector has experienced decline in some
areas with a corresponding increase in private renting. In other areas the growing weakness of the
owner occupied sector has been masked by the demand generated by the student market for homes
to rent”.14 In addition “areas of student housing close to the city centre and the universities are
expanding through investment in new purpose built student accommodation”15.
Nevin et al state that “the preferences of the student population and where they choose to live have a
significant effect on the local housing market and most particularly on the private rented sector”16,
estimating that “the demand for student accommodation in the private rented sector has grown by
about 50% over the decade [1990-2000]”17.
The purpose built accommodation, by affecting preferences, therefore had a significant effect on the
private rented sector as a whole by reducing demand for “the older terraced stock, and the postcodes
of L6, L13, L19 and L4 [had] already experienced declines”18. The local economy also suffered, “with
a significant withdrawal of spending”, demonstrating very clearly the regenerative power of the
student population.

11

http://www.unite-group.co.uk/data/Reports/Student%20Experience%20Report%202007.pdf
http://bookshop.universitiesuk.ac.uk/downloads/economicimpact3.pdf, p9
13
Nevin, Lee, Goodson, Groves, Hall, Murie & Phillimore, Centre for Urban and Regional Studies, University of
Birmingham, May 2001
14
Ibid. p12
15
Ibid.
16
Ibid. p13
17
Ibid.
18
Ibid.
12

Page 11 of 18

Page 161

Liverpool Guild of Students

Submission to the Liverpool City Council Higher Education Funding Scrutiny Panel

In ‘New models of student housing and their impact on local communities’19, Macintyre and Clement
argue that “when student accommodation is more diverse and is spread through the adjoining
community rather than based on campus, other consequences are apparent. One of the most
obvious of these is the stimulation of the local economy. As well as the direct investment and
employment that come from the process of construction and maintenance of housing, there is a
broader impact on the economy produced by the increase in the local population”20. That is, wherever
the students are, the money will be. Therefore it is unsurprising that the growth in City Centre
purpose built accommodation has had an effect on outlying areas.
This all serves to highlight the impact that the placement of the student population has, to both
demonstrate its regenerative effect and to urge careful planning. Using an example from the United
States, Macintyre and Clement tell us how “universities in several regions have worked in concert
with local communities and local authorities to sponsor ‘neighbourhood revival programmes’ in which
sums up to US$50 million have been spent. The outcomes have seen better standards of
accommodation for students, refreshed housing stock for local inhabitants and a range of social
improvements that have come with this improved physical environment”21. That is, when managed
correctly, such programmes emphasise the positive effects of ‘studentification’ rather than the
negative.
Macintyre and Clement are very clear on this point: “If student housing is thought of as little more
than an option for the letting of existing degraded property, then there should be little surprise if this
exacerbates social problems rather than relieves them. On the other hand, if the need for student
housing is seen as an opportunity for developing and applying models of investment in new or
refurbished housing, then there is every reason to suppose that the whole of the community can
benefit”22.
Students are often characterised now as a burden, both social and economic, but even this cursory
examination of the effects of a student population on an urban area reveals that it is in truth a great
opportunity to drive forward renewal. Where this has not happened it is both unfair and disingenuous
to lay the blame solely at the feet of students when community planning, or the lack of it, must surely
shoulder the substantial share of the blame.

19

Macintyre, Clement (2003), Journal of Higher Education Policy and management, 25:2, pp109-118
Ibid. p111
21
Ibid. p112
22
Ibid. p114
20

Page 12 of 18

Page 162

Submission to the Liverpool City Council Higher Education Funding Scrutiny Panel

Liverpool Guild of Students

Cultural contribution
The contribution that the student population has made to Liverpool has not been merely financial.
This year the City is caught up in a fervour of activity, preparing for its role as European Capital of
Culture in 2008, and students have a significant role to play. Projects such as ‘Culture Campus’23 are
creating new opportunities, and the ongoing activity of student societies in the areas of music, dance
and drama will demonstrate what can be done with little resource but an abundance of enthusiasm
and talent. The music scene that erupted in Liverpool in the 1960s and continues to this day would
not have been as vibrant and lasting if it were not for students both performing themselves and
supporting local performers.
After the loss of traditional industry in Liverpool, nothing immediately took its place. Generally, and in
comparison to Manchester, the City has a weak financial sector, and has yet to develop jobs in the
knowledge economy, although positive moves are being made in this direction. Where there has
been significant growth it has been in the public sector, which tends not to suggest vibrancy and
dynamism, and much of this employment is related to deprivation, for example in healthcare, or has
resulted from government drives to lower costs by moving operations from the south.
The most significant growth, however, has clearly been in the retail and service sectors, but shops
and bars alone cannot grow an economy, at least not a sustainable one. Where similar regeneration
has occurred, such as in Manchester, the growth of the cultural industry has followed that of the
service industry, so it is pertinent to ask from whence in Liverpool the same developments will come.
Macintyre and Clement argue that the potential contribution of a student population “can be readily
seen in relation to cultural expression, in that the quite specific demographic and economic profile
that is represented by most student populations will have a significant impact upon the cultural and
social dynamic of a community”24.
Citing Bianchini25, they argue that “such economic activities as ‘leisure, tourism, the media and other
“cultural industries” including fashion and design’ can ‘compensate for jobs lost in traditional industrial
sectors”26. These activities are often introduced and developed either in direct response to the
student population, or indeed by it. Where this has been experienced in a range of European cities,
they tell us, “such activities also act to integrate disparate groups and so provide an important means
of building a more cohesive social fabric”27.
Between 1994-5 and 1999-2000 Merseyside saw an increase in racist incidents of over 500%. If we
recognise that such a large increase could in part be due to changes in reporting and police practice
we may wish to look at the most recent figures; between 1998-9 and 1999-2000 that increase was
153%. It is therefore clear that the area is dealing with significant problems of hate crime, and that
new and innovative solutions are required.
A large, diverse student population, when properly integrated into the community, can serve to
introduce it to a wider range of ethnic and cultural backgrounds, and an increasingly tolerant attitude.
It has been made abundantly clear by past world events – in Germany, South Africa and Bosnia to
23

http://www.culturecampus.co.uk/
Macintyre, Clement (2003), Journal of Higher Education Policy and management, 25:2, p112
25
‘Remaking European Cities: the role of cultural policies’ in F Bianchini & M Parkinson (Eds), Cultural Policy and Urban
Regeneration, The West European experience, p1-20, MUP, 1993
26
Macintyre, Clement (2003), Journal of Higher Education Policy and management, 25:2, p112
27
Ibid.
24

Page 13 of 18

Page 163

Liverpool Guild of Students

Submission to the Liverpool City Council Higher Education Funding Scrutiny Panel

name but a few – that ignorance breeds fear, intolerance and prejudice. Extending one’s education
serves both to introduce one to new people and new ideas that are likely to eradicate the idea that
one group is either better or worse, more or less valued, than another.
Again, if seen as an integral element of the community, and if planned for, students can be not only
productive and valued members of that community, but collectively a driver of positive social change.
The student population is increasingly diverse in terms of age, ethnicity, and cultural background,
introducing elements to an area that were previously entirely lacking, in addition to bringing with it an
abundance of energy, enthusiasm and ideas.

Page 14 of 18

Page 164

Submission to the Liverpool City Council Higher Education Funding Scrutiny Panel

Liverpool Guild of Students

Conclusion
As mentioned briefly above, Universities UK has identified various positive social, cultural, physical
and economic effects that well managed student populations bring28, most of which have been
mentioned in this submission. The social include the student contribution to volunteering; student
housing preventing depopulation; an increase in the range of goods, services and attractions;
improved transport links; and better social services, such as nurseries and multi faith centres. In
terms of culture they can create demand for a diverse range of cultural events, enhance the
reputation of an area as vibrant and dynamic, and help to create a cosmopolitan outlook. The
physical environment can be transformed due to demand for quality housing, the attraction of a
student population for various businesses, and a shift in the type and scale of retail and
entertainment services. Finally, economically, the demand for housing stimulates private investment
and raises house prices, students as workers and consumers contribute heavily to the local
economy, businesses that may not otherwise have been viable are able to flourish, and a graduate
workforce is there for the taking.
However, the debate surrounding higher education tuition fees has centred solely on the fact that
graduates on average earn more than those who do not attend higher education, that being a
graduate affords one access to top jobs with top salaries. But how many graduates work in our public
services? Are doctors, nurses, social workers, and civil servants?
To argue about how much money an individual is likely to earn as a result of this or that is to do the
debate about higher education a gross disservice. For what is at stake is a much higher prize: the
place afforded education and the sharing and development of knowledge in our society, and the
subsequent positive benefits.
In his Labour party conference speech in 1999, in which he announced the party’s target of 50% of
young adults entering higher education, the then Prime Minister Tony Blair referred to education as
“the greatest liberator of human potential there is”29, echoing Nelson Mandela when he said that
“education is the most powerful weapon which you can use to change the world”. He then went on to
argue that “if we are to succeed in the knowledge economy, we need - as parents, as teachers, as a
country - to get a whole new attitude to learning”30.
In December 2005, the then higher education minister, Bill Rammell, responded to the finding of the
British Social Attitudes survey that 77% of the British population think that students should contribute
to the cost of their university education by saying that "whatever people's background, there is
agreement on the need for fees. This shows that our message on the benefits of higher education
and the government's policy on student finance is getting through and that people agree that we are
heading in the right direction”31.
Is it something to be proud of when the people of a supposedly advanced democracy ‘get the
message’ that graduates are the sole beneficiaries of their education? That there is a price on
liberating one’s potential? Was this what Tony Blair meant by a whole new attitude to learning?
This submission has attempted to demonstrate that charging higher education students for their
tuition ignores the myriad economic and social benefits that they afford areas badly in need of
28

‘Studentification: a guide to opportunities, challenges and practice’, January 2006
http://www.guardian.co.uk/lab99/Story/0,,202189,00.html
30
Ibid.
31
http://education.guardian.co.uk/students/tuitionfees/story/0,,1665563,00.html
29

Page 15 of 18

Page 165

Liverpool Guild of Students

Submission to the Liverpool City Council Higher Education Funding Scrutiny Panel

regeneration, yet the real argument on the lips of students is that education is central to the
development of a good society. This argument has not been its focus because advancing a
philosophical position has lost currency in our current political climate, a fact that is itself evidence
that education and the pursuit of knowledge are no longer valued as they once were.
A recent debate held at the University of Liverpool as part of BBC Radio 3’s ‘Free Thinking’ festival
was entitled ‘What’s the point of a university?’. It was clear that the producers hoped for a polarised
discussion, with instrumentalist arguments going head to head with idealist ones – skills vs.
knowledge for its own sake. But the arguments that curried favour with the audience were those that
balanced the two. Of course our society needs people to be equipped with skills that will benefit it,
that will prove themselves ‘useful’, but can education not also furnish us with an understanding of our
world so that we can appreciate it in all its wonder and diversity? Does an ability to analyse and
understand not benefit everyone, in all walks of life?
John Dewey, an educational reformer and a founder of the school of pragmatism, believed “that
education is the fundamental method of social progress and reform. All reforms which rest simply
upon the law, or the threatening of certain penalties, or upon changes in mechanical or outward
arrangements, are transitory and futile... But through education society can formulate its own
purposes, can organize its own means and resources, and thus shape itself with definiteness and
economy in the direction in which it wishes to move... Education thus conceived marks the most
perfect and intimate union of science and art conceivable in human experience”.
Pragmatism holds that theory and practice are bound together, that without theory we cannot truly
understand practice and therefore cannot implement it successfully. That is, although it is important
that we act, that we possess skills, we must understand in order to act intelligently, and to understand
we must reflect.
Higher education affords everyone who partakes of it the time to come to better know one’s world, to
understand the role that one can play, and to appreciate the origin and development of the skills that
we pass down through the generations. It is in this way that higher education most, and most
importantly, benefits our entire society. By asking people to pay for their higher education tuition we
make the knowledge and understanding it delivers a product to be owned and jealously guarded, as
opposed to a gift to be entrusted with and shared benevolently.

Page 16 of 18

Page 166

Submission to the Liverpool City Council Higher Education Funding Scrutiny Panel

Liverpool Guild of Students

Page 17 of 18

Page 167

Liverpool Guild of Students
160 Mount Pleasant Liverpool L3 5TR
lgos.org

Page 168

Higher Education Funding Scrutiny Panel
1 Introduction
The Scrutiny Panel was established in June 2007 with the following terms of reference:
“To examine the impact of the forthcoming government review of higher education funding
on the city’s economic development.”
The Panel was chaired by Councillor Nick Small, the Opposition Spokesperson for
Regeneration, and comprised:
Councillors John Coyne, Phil Moffat, Stuart Monkcom, Bob Ousby and Ben Williams, the Chair
of the Regeneration and Economic Development Select Committee Councillor Eddie Clein and
the Executive Member for Economic Development and Europe Councillor Flo Clucas.
The Panel was serviced by Mark Kitts, the Interim Assistant Executive Director for
Regeneration and Joan Leonard from Committee Services.
The Panel met on five occasions and interviewed a wide range of parties from universities,
student organisations, the voluntary sector, Liverpool City Council and its regeneration
partners.
All meetings were open to the public. A list of those interviewed is detailed in Annex 1 and
minutes of each meeting held are attached in Annex 2.
2 Recommendations
The Scrutiny Panel makes the following recommendations:
2.1 The current cap on tuition fees should not be substantially raised.
Liverpool’s higher education institutions complement each other. Collectively they are crucial
drivers of economic prosperity and growth. Evidence from the city’s higher education
institutions strongly indicates that lifting the cap on tuition fees from the current £3,070 level
and the resultant inevitable marketisation of higher education, which some commentators
have called for, would impinge on the complementary model of Liverpool’s higher education
offering and would impact negatively on the city’s future economic prospects.
2.2 Maintenance grants should be improved and maintenance loans targeted at
students from lower income families.
Maintenance grants for lower income students should be increased and taxpayer support for
maintenance loans in the form of interest subsidies and write-offs should be targeted at lower
income students.
As an illustration of this, means-tested maintenance grants could be increased from £2,875 a
year to £3,750 a year for students with parental incomes lower than £25,000. Grants could
be tapered for students with parental incomes between £25,001 and £60,000, as in the
current system. In a reversal from the current system students with the lowest parental
incomes should be given access to the biggest loans. The maximum annual maintenance
loan could be set at £3,750 (reduced from the current level of £4,330 to take account of
increased grants), with 75% of the loan means-tested, so every student would be guaranteed
a minimum loan of £937 a year, regardless of parental income.

Page 169

2.3 Education Maintenance Allowances (“EMA”) should be extended and take-up
rates encouraged.
EMA has been shown to increase staying-on rates in post-compulsory education and many of
those benefiting from EMA subsequently enter higher education. Government should
increase EMA payments and widen eligibility to increase further opportunities for young
people from lower income backgrounds. The City Council should also look at ways it can
encourage wider take-up of EMA.
2.4 Regulation of the widening participation agenda should be strengthened and
periodically reviewed.
Government should continue to regulate the widening participation agenda, but the current
arrangements for financing and regulating higher education are complex and do not give
enough weight to increasing the access to and retention in higher education of those from
lower income and other excluded backgrounds.
Government should consider establishing in legislation the minimum amount of additional fee
income higher education institutions should spend on means tested bursaries and outreach
work to widen participation. This should be around a third of additional fee income.
The roles and responsibilities of the Higher Education Funding Council for England (“HEFCE”),
which is the primary channel of public funding to universities, the Quality Assurance Agency
for Higher Education (“QAAHE”), which safeguards academic standards and the Office for Fair
Access (“OFFA”), which regulates access agreements should be merged so that widening
participation is at the heart of the financing and regulation of higher education in England.
Government should also give the new regulator additional powers to sanction those higher
education institutions failing to meet statutory minimum targets for widening participation
and additional targets set out in access agreements.
The regulator should require all higher education institutions to align their entitlement
thresholds for means tested bursaries with the thresholds for maintenance grants to simplify
the system.
Arrangements for funding higher education and regulating widening participation should be
periodically reviewed by government.
2.5 Widening participation data should be more prominently disclosed by the
city’s higher education institutions.
Liverpool’s higher education institutions have a strong record in supporting and improving
widening participation. This is demonstrated by the fact that all higher education institutions
in the city (with the exception of Liverpool Institute for Performing Arts (“LIPA”)) spend more
of their additional fee income on financial support for lower income students than the
national average for 2006/07 of 21.37%. (It should be noted that the Panel did not interview
a representative from LIPA.)
In 2006/07 only Liverpool John Moores University (“LJMU”) of the city’s four higher education
institutions met its target for the level of additional fee income spent on financial support for
lower income students.
The institutions themselves should communicate better the nature of the widening
participation work they undertake and intend to undertake in the future and its outcomes
more prominently.

Page 170

2.6 The City Council should do more to co-ordinate, promote and support the
widening participation agenda.
There is an unmet need across the city for promoting access to and retention in higher
education on an cross-institutional basis.
The City Council should look at ways of augmenting work already done by organisations such
as Merseyside Network for Change, Aimhigher and Partnerships for Progression.
This could take the form of non-institution based bursaries targeted at specific areas with low
levels of higher education participation in return for supporting the city’s community
infrastructure, along the lines of the Kensington Community Bursary Project.
This could also take the form of supporting non-institution based, area focused outreach for
financial advice to students and potential students from lower income backgrounds in the city
to remove barriers to access and improve retention.
Government funding from the new Working Neighbourhoods Fund, which is a dedicated fund
for community-led regeneration in the most deprived parts of England, could be used to pay
for such projects.
The City Council should examine how it could use its existing resources to make students,
potential students and their parents aware of financial support available.
The City Council should look at ways it can work with higher education institutions and others
to facilitate the better promotion of financial help available to students from lower income
households before students apply to university.
2.7 The City Council should work more closely with the city’s higher education
institutions to make areas students live, work and study more liveable.
It is crucial that the City Council does more to improve the physical regeneration, community
safety and public realm of those parts of the city in which higher education institutions are
located and in which students live and work. This principle should be enshrined in the City
Council’s Local Development Framework, which will outline how planning is managed in local
areas and in Neighbourhood Area Agreements, which will set out local priorities at
neighbourhood level.
The City Council should look at the community-forum model adopted in Marybone and
supported by City and North Neighbourhood Management Services to micro-manage the
interaction between students, higher education institutions, accommodation providers and
the wider community and to promote the integration of students within the communities in
which they live, work and study.
2.8 The City Council should make a formal submission to the 2009 funding review
based on the findings of this report.
The City Council should make a submission to the forthcoming funding review, given the
potential negative impacts on the city’s economy that may result. The City Council’s
submission should be based on the findings of the Panel and made on a cross-party basis.

Page 171

3 Relevant background information

3.1 The context of higher education funding in the UK
The UK higher education system has gradually evolved over a generation from a system
characterised by low participation levels principally funded by the taxpayer to the current
cost-sharing, higher participation model.
In 1990 the then Conservative Government partially replaced student grants with
government-guaranteed low interest student loans administered by the Student Loans
Company. Two years later the Higher Education Act 1992 rapidly expanded student numbers
by giving 48 polytechnics university status.
In 1998 the Labour Government introduced tuition fees for the first time and fully replaced
student grants with maintenance loans following the Dearing Report. Tuition fees were at a
level of £1,000 a year and were payable by all full-time undergraduate students, although
students from low income households were given fee remissions.
The following year the government announced the aspiration that half of 18–30 year olds
should have the opportunity to benefit from higher education by 2010.
Further radical change came about with the Higher Education Act 2004, which replaced upfront fixed fees with deferred variable fees at a level capped by the government, reintroduced
grants and extended maintenance loans. Tuition fees are capped at a maximum of £3,070 a
year for 2007/08 and have been payable by students starting their degree in 2006/07 and
subsequent years. Repayment of fees under the current system is deferred until a student is
earning £15,000 a year.
Although tuition fees can be set at a variable level, subject to the £3,070 cap, all higher
education institutions in England, with only two exceptions (Thames Valley University and
Leeds Metropolitan University), charge fees at the maximum level. Therefore, no market
based on the level of tuition fees exists in practice.
In 2007/08 the maximum maintenance grant is £2,700 and is available to students from
households earning £17,500 or less. Partial grants are available at a tapered rate until
parental income reaches £38,330.
From 2008/09 maintenance grants of a maximum of £2,825 a year will be available to
students from lower income households from 2008/09 (now defined as those with parental
incomes of £25,000 or less). Grants will then reduced proportionately until parental income
reaches £60,000.
Government-guaranteed low interest maintenance loans are also available. Such loans are at
their minimum for those students qualifying for maximum grants, with loans increased pound
for pound with the corresponding reduction in grants until parental incomes of £60,000 where
the loan reaches its maximum of £4,330.
The National Union of Students calculates the total cost to the UK taxpayer of the current
funding arrangements to be £1,962m a year. This amount consists of fee loan subsidies (in
low interest and projected write-offs) of £600m a year, maintenance loan subsidies of £451m
(assuming a take-up rate of 80%) and maintenance grants of £911m.
The 2004 Act also required higher education institutions to enter into binding access
agreements with a newly established body OFFA. These agreements stipulated targets for
levels of fee income institutions were required to set aside for targeted bursaries and
measures institutions were required to undertake to widen participation.

Page 172

Under the 2004 Act OFFA has the power to prevent higher education institutions from
charging fees of more than £1,200 a year, if an institution’s access arrangements are
insufficient. OFFA is also able to impose financial sanctions of up to £500,000 on higher
education institutions which do not meet agreed requirements on bursaries and outreach
work.
During the passage of the 2004 Act through parliament, the government announced that a
review of the 2004 funding arrangements would take place during 2009 with any changes
resulting from the review likely to be implemented in 2010/11.

3.2 The regulation of higher education by government
Since last year the Department for Innovation, Universities and Skills (“DIUS”) has been
responsible for post-19 education policy (including higher education) at a ministerial level.
Together with OFFA, the role and responsibilities of which are discussed in 3.1, various
independent bodies are responsible for funding, regulating and promoting higher education
and the government’s higher education policy priorities in England. The roles of the principal
bodies are dealt with below.

3.2.1 HEFCE
HEFCE distributes public money for teaching and research to higher education institutions in
England. It also has the remit to promote high quality education and research within a
financially healthy sector.

3.2.2 QAAHE
QAAHE safeguards and helps improve academic standards and the quality of higher education
in the UK.

3.2.3 Office of the Independent Adjudicator for Higher Education (“OIAHE”)
OIAHE is responsible for resolving complaints from students about higher education
institutions. OIAHE also publishes recommendations to higher education institutions about
good practice in handling complaints.

3.3 The context of higher education in Liverpool
Liverpool’s student population has grown rapidly throughout the 1990s and 2000s. In
1986/87 Liverpool’s student population was approximately 19,000. Today the number of
higher education students living in Liverpool is approximately 50,000, which equates to 11%
of the city’s population. The majority of higher education students living in the city are
studying at University of Liverpool (“UoL”), LJMU, Liverpool Hope University (“Hope”) and
LIPA, although a small number are studying at other nearby higher education institutions
(such as Edge Hill University, University of Chester, University of Salford and University of
Manchester).
It is estimated that around half of the city’s student population are from the Greater Liverpool
area and half are from outside the city. The direct contribution made by students to
Liverpool’s economy in non-course related expenditure is £252m per year. As well as this,
students living in Liverpool spend an average of 41% of their time in paid work, further
contributing to the local economy.
Figures from UoL’s Careers and Employability Service show that almost one third of students
remain working in Greater Liverpool six months after graduation.
There are four higher education institutions in Liverpool.

Page 173

3.3.1 UoL
UoL, founded in 1881 as one of the country’s first civic universities, is a member of the
Russell Group, an association of twenty leading research-intensive UK universities, with a
world class reputation in biological sciences, veterinary sciences, engineering and medicine.
UoL charges the maximum tuition fees permitted to UK and EU students (£3,070 in 2007/08).
UoL provides those students from households with incomes of £17,910 or less a bursary of
£1,300 a year and those from households with incomes of between £17,911 and £38,330 a
bursary of £1,000 a year. UoL do not plan to raise these income thresholds to align them
with the new thresholds for maintenance grants.
UoL provides non-means tested attainment scholarships of £1,500 a year to students
attaining outstanding entry qualifications in specified degree programmes.
Further
scholarships offered are Alumni Awards (£2,000 per year based on academic excellence),
John Lennon Memorial Scholarships (£1,200 a year based on financial need and merit with
priority given to Merseyside residents) and Hillsborough Trust Memorial Bursaries (£600 a
year based on financial need, merit and career intentions with priority given to Merseyside
residents). The Access to Learning Fund provides up to £3,000 a year based on financial
hardship.
In 2006/07 UoL projected that 30.00% of additional fee income would be spent on financial
support for lower income students. The actual percentage spent was 26.80%.
A copy of UoL’s Access Agreement with the Office For Fair Access (“OFFA”) is enclosed in
Annex 3.

3.3.2 LJMU
LJMU is a post-1992 institution with strong links to the business community and a focus on
real-world experience. LJMU has a world class reputation for space science research, is the
UK’s top university for teaching and research in sports and exercise sciences and for teaching
in applied social work, health studies, hospitality, leisure, recreation, sport and tourism,
physics and astronomy.
LJMU charges the maximum tuition fees permitted to UK and EU students (£3,070 in
2007/08).
LJMU provides those students from households with incomes of £17,910 or less a bursary of
£1,025 a year and those from households with incomes of between £17,911 and £38,330 a
bursary of £410 a year. From 2008/09 those students from households with incomes of
£25,000 or less will be entitled to bursaries of £1,050 a year, while those from households
with incomes between £25,001 and £50,000 will be entitled to bursaries of £420 a year. This
is to align the LJMU bursary scheme with the same income levels as the new maintenance
grant scheme.
LJMU provides various non-means tested scholarships – DPAs Scholarships (£1,000 a year for
students achieving 3 A-Levels at grade “A”), Achievers Scholarships (£1,000 a year for
students demonstrating an area of excellence above their peers) and Vice Chancellor’s Award
(a maximum of six scholarships of up to £10,000 a year to outstanding, academically gifted
students). LJMU also provides Childcare Bursaries of up to £2,000 a year per child. The
Access to Learning Fund provides up to £3,000 a year based on financial hardship.
In 2006/07 LJMU projected that 28.50% of additional fee income would be spent on financial
support for lower income students. The actual percentage spent was 29.10%.

Page 174

A copy of LJMU’s Access Agreement with OFFA is enclosed in Annex 4.

3.3.3 Hope
Hope is one of the country’s newest universities, but its history goes back over a century and
a half. During the 1980s the original three constituent teacher training colleges (two Roman
Catholic and one Church of England) were joined together in an ecumenical federation. Hope
gained degree awarding powers in 2002 and became a university in 2005. Hope offers
degree subjects in arts and humanities, education, business and computing and social
sciences.
Hope charges the maximum tuition fees permitted to UK and EU students (£3,070 in
2007/08).
Hope provides bursaries of £1,000 a year to students from households with income of
£17,500 or less, of £700 to students from households with income £17,501-£37,425 and
£400 to students from households with income of more than £37,425. Hope does not plan to
raise these income thresholds to align them with the new thresholds for maintenance grants.
Hope provides the following non-means tested scholarships: Excellence Scholarships (£2,000
per year based on academic excellence), Achievement Scholarships (£1,000 per year based
on academic excellence), Foundation Scholarships (£600 per year to students from
partnership schools on Merseyside) and variable Dean’s List Scholarships (based on academic
excellence and leadership potential). The Access to Learning Fund provides up to £3,000 a
year based on financial hardship.
In 2006/07 Hope projected that 34.40% of additional fee income would be spent on financial
support for lower income students. The actual percentage spent was 22.90%.
A copy of Hope’s Access Agreement with OFFA is enclosed in Annex 5.

3.3.4 LIPA
LIPA was founded in 1996 and is the only higher education institution in the UK devoted to
providing higher education programmes across the performing arts skills. LIPA offers nine
undergraduate degree programmes for those wanting to pursue a career in arts and
entertainment economy. LIPA is a small higher education institution with around 600
registered students.
LIPA charges the maximum tuition fees permitted to UK and EU students (£3,070 in
2007/08).
LIPA provides those students eligible for full government maintenance grants a bursary of
£500 a year and those eligible for a partial maintenance grant a bursary of £250 a year.
In 2006/07 LIPA projected that 10.40% of additional fee income would be spent on financial
support for lower income students. The actual percentage spent was 7.70%.
A copy of LIPA’s Access Agreement with OFFA is enclosed in Annex 6.

3.4 The widening participation agenda in Liverpool
3.4.1 Outreach programmes undertaken by higher education institutions in Liverpool

Page 175

Liverpool’s higher education institutions have a good record on widening participation, with
targeted outreach work to raise aspiration levels and to recruit from underrepresented
groups, summer schools, mentoring, campus visits and revision classes.
Hope has entered into agreements with 25 local schools to identify individuals meeting
Hope’s widening participation criteria. These individuals benefit from study support and a
guaranteed interview and conditional offer at Hope.

3.4.2 Kensington Community Bursary Project
The Kensington Community Bursary Project is a groundbreaking community-led project
funded by Kensington Regeneration, the New Deal for Communities scheme in Liverpool 6
and Liverpool 7.
The project provides bursaries of £1,250 a year to students who have been resident in the
Kensington Regeneration area for a minimum of two years prior to entry to higher education.
In return participating students are required to undertake 40 hours of voluntary work per
year. Awards are approved and compliance monitored by a community-led board. The
project is administered by Merseyside Network for Change, a voluntary organisation.
Since the project was set up in October 2003, bursaries have been awarded to 122 students
who have undertaken voluntary placements with 26 community groups. There have been
high retention and completion rates, with only two bursary recipients completely dropping out
of higher education and only three bursaries offers being withdrawn for failure to comply with
the voluntary placement requirement.
The project has been successful in increasing retention rates for students from a nontraditional background in a defined area of Liverpool and in supporting local community
infrastructure.

3.4.3 Money Matters booklet
Merseyside Network for Change has produced a booklet advising current and prospective
students of financial support available aimed at students from backgrounds underrepresented
in higher education.
A copy of the booklet is attached in Annex 7.

3.4.4 National and regional outreach programmes in Liverpool
Aimhigher aims to widen participation in higher education by raising the awareness,
aspirations and attainment of young people from disadvantaged social and economic
backgrounds, some minority ethnic groups and people with disabilities. Aimhigher is funded
jointly by HEFCE and DIUS. UoL, LJMU and Hope all play an active role in the Aimhigher
Greater Merseyside Partnership.
Partnerships for Progression is an organisation which undertakes national and regional
outreach programmes and is jointly funded by the Learning and Skills Council and HEFCE.

3.4.5 EMA
EMA is administered by the Department for Children, Schools and Families and provides cash
payments to students aged 16, 17 and 18 undertaking a full-time further education course at
school or college, an Entry to Employment programme or a course leading to an
apprenticeship. Payments of £30 a week are awarded to those with household annual
incomes of up to £20,817; £20 a week to those with household annual incomes between

Page 176

£20,818 and £25,521; and £10 a week to those with household incomes between £25,522
and £30,817. In addition, bonus payments of up to £500 are awarded at various milestones.
EMA has had a positive impact on higher education participation rates by encouraging those
from low income backgrounds to stay on in education after the age of 16 by providing a cash
incentive and reducing barriers to post-compulsory education.

3.5 Socio-economic participation in higher education in the UK
The impact of the various changes to the UK higher education system cannot be judged
against household income levels as historic evidence does not exist. UCAS, the central
admissions body for UK higher education institutions and its predecessor bodies have,
however, maintained details of the parental occupation of students. The table in Annex 8
details the socio-economic profile of UK students in 1980, 2000 and 2007.
The table suggests that the introduction of student loans in 1990, the Higher Education Act
1992 and the 1998 Dearing changes had a marginal effect on the socio-economic profile of
the UK student population. Fewer students were from professional/managerial households in
2000 than in 1980 and more students were from a skilled non-manual/intermediate
background, but the level of students from skilled manual/own account worker, lower
supervisory/technical and semi-routine/routine households remained constant.
The effect of the 2004 reforms is perhaps more significant – a continued decrease in the
proportion of students from professional/managerial households and a marked increase in
students from semi-routine/routine households. However, there also appears to be a
decrease in the proportion of students from both skilled manual/own account worker and
lower supervisory/technical backgrounds.
The conclusions drawn from the table in Annex 8 are as follows:
x

There has been a marked relative decrease in the number of students from
professional/managerial households, although the number of students from such
backgrounds in actual terms has continued to increase.

x

There has been a marked increase both actually and relatively in the number of
students from semi-routine/routine households.

x

Despite the above welcome developments, there remains too large a disparity
between the proportion of students from professional/managerial backgrounds and
from semi-routine/routine backgrounds.

x

There has been a decrease certainly in relative terms of the proportion of students
from both skilled manual/own account worker and lower supervisory/technical
backgrounds. While this can partly be explained by the changing demographic
profile of the UK working population between 1980 and 2004 which has seen a
dramatic reduction in the number of jobs in manufacturing, it would also appear
that the widening participation agenda has not delivered to the same extent in
relation to those from “intermediate” socio-economic backgrounds as it has to those
from more deprived socio-economic backgrounds.

4 Key questions considered by the Panel

4.1 What benefits do Liverpool’s higher education institutions bring to the city?
Liverpool’s higher education institutions are crucial to Liverpool’s economic well-being.
Liverpool’s universities are amongst the city’s largest employers, directly and indirectly
creating and sustaining jobs and prosperity.

Page 177

Liverpool’s large student population makes a significant contribution to the city’s economy
directly by spending money on local goods and services and indirectly by student workers
contributing to the city’s growth.
Liverpool graduates remaining in the city create a critical mass of highly skilled, highly
motivated workers, allowing the city to benefit economically from inward investment and new
business starts-ups.

4.2 What are the characteristics of Liverpool’s economy?
Liverpool’s economy was in turmoil between the 1960s and late 1990s with a dramatically
falling population (from a high of 855,688 in 1931 to 439,476 in 2001) and poor economic
performance following the rapid decline of the docks and industry.
Since the late 1990s Liverpool’s economy has been improving. The city has had a strong
record on increasing employment, albeit from a very low level, with a 19.40% increase in
employment between 1995 and 2004. This makes Liverpool the 14th strongest performer in
increasing employment of England’s 56 largest cities. Despite this, Liverpool still faces
massive challenges, with the highest unemployment rate and the lowest employment rate of
the 56 largest cities; high levels of the working age population claiming work related benefits;
and high numbers of adults with no qualifications.
Within this context Liverpool’s universities are highly important in terms of improving the
future economic performance of the city and maintaining its population base. Ongoing
collaborative initiatives sponsored by the city’s universities, its public sector regeneration
partners like the North West Development Agency and Liverpool Vision and the private
sector, such as the LJMU Design Academy, Liverpool Science Park, Hope Street Quarter and
the University District Action Area, are especially important.

4.3 What are the likely issues on the agenda of the 2009 funding review?
When the 2004 funding arrangements were put in place, they were vociferously opposed by
the National Union of Students, student unions and many others. Although the question of
whether tuition fees should continue to be charged or whether tuition costs should met
directly by the taxpayer is something that will be discussed during the review, there is an
emerging, if perhaps, in some quarters, reluctant, consensus that tuition costs cannot be met
fully and directly by the taxpayer if current levels of participation in higher education are to
be increased in the future. The annual cost to the taxpayer of the current system is £1,962m
(see 3.1 for a detailed breakdown). The annual net cost of abolishing fees would be
£1,650m, which is arrived at as university fee income received of £2,250m less the cost to
the taxpayer of interest subsidies and projected write-offs of £600m. Therefore, the total
cost of abolishing fees, but retaining means-tested grants and loans at their current level
would be £3,012m compared with a cost of £1,962m for the current system – an increase of
53.52%. These costs would increase disproportionately with any significant increase in
participation in higher education. Moreover, there is widespread and legitimate concern that
the university sector would be unable to compete adequately with other education spending
demands, most notably primary and secondary education, which was a historic inadequacy of
the pre-2004 funding arrangements.
Many within the higher education community have called for the cap on tuition fees to be
significantly lifted or even removed completely, thereby creating a market in higher education
based on the level of tuition fees charged. It is highly unlikely that government, whatever its
political colours, would remove the cap on tuition fees completely, as the cap is currently the
principal mechanism by which central government is able to control the mix of public and
private funding in universities. However, the lifting of the cap to a level of around £10,000 a
year remains firmly on the agenda of many within the higher education community. The

Page 178

impact of this would be to do something the Higher Education Act 2004 did not do in practice
– to create a market between higher education institutions based on the level of tuition fees.
A third which is likely to be discussed during the 2009 review is the future role of OFFA. At
the time the Higher Education Act 2004 was being debated, there was significant political
opposition to the widening participation agenda being regulated by government. Since then
there has been increased criticism of the principle and practice of government regulation of
widening participation from certain elements of the media and other. The future role of OFFA
will be, for these reasons, something discussed during the 2009 review.

Page 179

5 Documents attached
Annex 1

Schedule of meetings and attendees

Annex 2

Minutes from each Scrutiny Panel meeting

Annex 3

University of Liverpool Access Agreement

Annex 4

Liverpool John Moores University Access Agreement

Annex 5

Liverpool Hope University Access Agreement

Annex 6

Liverpool Institute for the Performing Arts Access Agreement

Annex 7

Money Matter booklet

Annex 8

Table illustrating socio-economic profile of UK student population

Annex 9

Slides from presentation by Mark Kitts, Interim Assistant Executive Director
Regeneration, Liverpool City Council, at meeting on 1st October 2007

Annex 10

Joint written submission from Liverpool Guild of Students, Liverpool Students’
Union & Liverpool Hope Students’ Union

Annex 11

Slides from presentation by Edward Murphy of Merseyside Network for
Change and Keith Black and Paul Harris of Kensington Community Bursary
Project at meeting on 14th January 2008

Annex 12

Slides from presentation by Professor Michael Brown, Vice Chancellor of
Liverpool John Moores University, at meeting on 28th January 2008

Page 180

Annex 1 Schedule of meetings and attendees

Monday 1st October 2007, 10am
- Mark Kitts, Interim Assistant Executive Director Regeneration, Liverpool City Council
- Louise Ellman MP, Labour and Co-operative MP for Liverpool Riverside

Monday 19th November 2007, 3.30pm
- Darran Martin, Liverpool Guild of Students (jointly with Liverpool Students’ Union &
Liverpool Hope Students’ Union)
- Dan Sumners, Liverpool Guild of Students (jointly with Liverpool Students’ Union &
Liverpool Hope Students’ Union)

Thursday 13th December 2007, 4.30pm
- Professor John Belcham, Pro Vice Chancellor, University of Liverpool

Monday 14th January 2008, 4.30pm
- Edward Murphy, Director, Merseyside Network for Change
- Keith Black, Bursary Officer, Kensington Community Bursary Project
- Paul Harris, Bursary Assistant, Kensington Community Bursary Project
- Professor Gerard Pillay, Vice Chancellor, Liverpool Hope University

Monday 28th January 2008, 4.30pm
- Professor Michael Brown, Vice Chancellor, Liverpool John Moores University
- John Kelly, Executive Director Regeneration, Liverpool City Council
- Jim Gill, Chief Executive, Liverpool Vision

Page 181

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 182

Agenda Item 10
Originator:

Richard Mills

Tel:

247 4557

Report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development
Scrutiny Board (City and Regional Partnerships)
Date: 21st July 2008
Subject: Inquiry on Voluntary Community Faith Sector – Draft Terms of Reference
Electoral Wards Affected: All

Specific Implications For:

Equality and Diversity
Community Cohesion
Ward Members consulted
(referred to in report)

Narrowing the Gap

1.0 Introduction
1.1 The Board at its last meeting agreed to carry out an inquiry on the Voluntary
Community Faith Sector and asked for draft terms of reference to be submitted to
today’s meeting.
1.2 A copy of the draft terms of reference is attached.
2.0 Views of the Director and Executive Member
2.1 The Scrutiny Board Procedure Rules require that, before embarking on an inquiry, the
Board seeks and considers the views of the relevant Director and Executive Member.
These views will need to be taken into account in finalising the terms of reference.
2.2 This particular inquiry will involve a number of departments and partners but principally
the Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods and the Executive Member with
portfolio responsibility for Neighbourhoods and Housing. The relevant Director and
Executive Member have been invited to comment on these terms of reference before
the meeting today.
2.3 Any comments received will be reported to the Board today.
3.0

Recommendation

3.1

The Board is requested to agree the terms of reference for the inquiry having regard
to any comments that may be received from the Director of Environment and
Neighbourhoods or the Executive Member with portfolio responsibility for
Neighbourhoods and Housing.

Page 183

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 184

Scrutiny Board (City and Regional Partnerships)
Inquiry into the role of the voluntary, community and faith sectors (VCFS)
in council led community engagement
Draft Terms of Reference
1.0

Introduction

1.1

At the first meeting of this new Scrutiny Board, members agreed to carry out an
inquiry into the role of the voluntary, community and faith sector in community
engagement.

1.2

In particular Members were keen to establish what opportunities exist to improve
voluntary, community and faith sector (VCFS) participation and influence, including:
•
•

1.3

exploring what opportunities exist to strengthen the voluntary, community and
faith sector infrastructure which supports engagement, and
exploring what, if any, changes are necessary in the Council’s culture, policy
and practice to strengthen voluntary, community and faith sector engagement.

The context of and drivers for the inquiry are complex:
•

•

•

•

•
•

•
•

•

Members have their own experiences of voluntary, community and faith sector
participation and views about strengths and weaknesses and the potential for
improvement.
There is a Central Government agenda promoting greater levels of engagement,
including the recent publication of the Community Empowerment White Paper,
‘Communities in Control’, which will increase requirements for Councils to
promote, facilitate and deliver a wider range of engagement activity, with
demonstrable impacts on services and other decisions.
The Leeds Strategic Plan 2008-2011 includes an improvement priority and a
national indicator on increasing the number of people who feel they can
influence decisions in their locality.
The Council has legal obligations it must meet in respect of Equality legislation.
It is required to evidence appropriate arrangements for engaging with all
communities.
The Council is a signatory to the Compact for Leeds, where community
participation and equal partnerships are key areas of focus.
Area Committees are about to significantly strengthen their community
engagement responsibilities, including a brief to agree Area Community
Engagement Plans with the goal of delivering better outcomes from local
services.
Other partners and partnerships across Leeds have their own drivers and
arrangements for engagement and many of these are also in transition.
Within the VCFS there are some well established and some newly emerging
networks and structures facilitating effective engagement, but as the Council
and other partners undergo transition to new structures and systems, so the
VCFS sector is required to adapt to meet changing needs as well as respond to
changing resourcing opportunities.
Finally, the recent wave of new accession state migration that Leeds has
experienced has highlighted the need to engage with new communities as they

Page 185

move to the City, to enable them to establish themselves and to ensure that
services are aware of and can respond to changing demands. In reality we need
to identify routes to engage with all of the communities in Leeds for the same
reasons. The VCF sector may have a key role to play in delivering on this goal.
•

2.0

The drivers and context exemplify the challenges and opportunities of the
engagement agenda for Leeds at this time. The scrutiny focus is timely and
provides an opportunity to draw together a number of issue, whilst spotlighting
some specific areas of focus.

The Scope of this Inquiry
The scope of this inquiry is to identify:
a the opportunities and barriers for engagement that exist for the VCFS and wider
community as the Council and others work towards achieving the LAA targets
set for Leeds.
b what good practice exists in Leeds and beyond that can be used and developed.
c

what resources and other support is required by the VCFS in order to play a full
role in delivering on the engagement and other targets for Leeds.

d

some of the changes that may be necessary in the Council’s policy, practice
and culture to deliver improved engagement outcomes for Leeds.

3.0

Comments of the relevant Director and Executive Board Member

3.1

The Director of Environment & Neighbourhoods, and the relevant Executive Board
Members have been requested to comment on these terms of reference.

4.0

Timetable for the Inquiry

4.1

The inquiry will take place over three sessions with a view to issuing a final report in
XXXXXXXXX.

5.0

Submission of evidence

5.1

The following formal evidence gathering sessions have been scheduled:

5.2

Session One – date
The purpose of this session is to hear evidence about:
•
current and emerging consultation obligations;
•
the arrangements in place within the Council for community engagement at
strategic, service and area level; and
•
the strengths and weaknesses of the current approaches and opportunities
and barriers to improve practice.
In particular the Board will consider:
•
An overview of Council community consultation obligations, performance
requirements and commitments;

Page 186

•

•
•

•

•

5.3

An overview of current Corporate Consultation Policy and processes,
including: Place Survey; Citizens Panel and Corporate arrangements to
facilitate more effective community consultation across services and in
neighbourhoods, e.g. the Corporate Consultation Portal, emerging Equalities
Forum and Hubs;
An overview of Service based engagement practice, including examples of
good practice;
An overview of Area based engagement and the emerging role of Area
Committees in respect of community engagement as a tool for shaping Area
Delivery Plans, local services and activity;
An overview of the opportunities for and practice of engaging with the VCFS
at a strategic level e.g. on the development of key strategies like the
LAA/LSP or in key Leeds Initiative Partnerships;
Consideration of issues relating to reach, impact and opportunities for
coordination and improvement in practice.

Session Two – date
The purpose of this session is to:
•
hear evidence of examples of good practice in Leeds and other areas.
•
hear a VCFS perspective on the opportunities and barriers to participation
with the Council and others.
•
hear evidence from the VCFS and others about the capacity and
infrastructure for engagement within the VCFS
In particular the board will consider:
•
information requested from the last session;
•
a VCFS perspective on the opportunities for and barriers to, effective
participation at strategic, service and area level;
•
a VCFS perspective on the effectiveness and impact of engagement activity
at a strategic, service and area level;
•
views from VCFS and others on the strengths and weaknesses of the
capacity / infrastructure within the VCFS to support effective engagement.
•
evidence of examples of good practice from Leeds and other local authority
areas;
•
the changes that may be necessary in Council policy, practice, culture and
elsewhere to deliver the desired improved engagement outcomes.
The Board is asked to consider at this session any emerging recommendations
from the inquiry to date.

5.4

Session Three – date
The purpose of this session is to consider:
• Any information requested from the last session.
• The Board’s draft inquiry report and recommendations.

6.0

Witnesses

6.1

The following witnesses have been identified as possible contributors to the Inquiry:
• Leeds Voice

Page 187

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Faith Community organisation
Connecting Communities/Leeds BME Network
Volition, the Advocacy Network for people with Mental Health issues
Individual resident/s who have participated in community engagement activity
Leeds City Council’s Corporate Consultation Manager
Environment and Neighbourhoods Officers, including: Area Management and
Chief Regeneration Officer
Director of Adult Social Care
Assistant Chief Executive (Policy, Planning and Improvement) Performance
/Equalities/ LAA development etc
Director of Children’s Services / Partnerships Manager

7.0

Monitoring Arrangements

7.1

Following the completion of the scrutiny inquiry and the publication of the final
inquiry report and recommendations, the implementation of the agreed
recommendations will be monitored.

7.2

The final inquiry report will include information on the detailed arrangements for
monitoring the implementation of the Board’s recommendations.

8.0

Measures of success

8.1

It is important to consider how the Board will deem whether its inquiry has been
successful in making a difference to local people. Some measures of success may
be obvious at the initial stages of an inquiry and can be included in these terms of
reference. Other measures of success may become apparent as the inquiry
progresses and discussions take place.

8.2

The Board will look to publish practical recommendations.

Page 188

Agenda Item 11
Originator:

Richard Mills

Tel:247 4557

Report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development
Scrutiny Board (City and Regional Partnerships)
Date: 21st July 2008
Subject: Progress Reports of the Board’s Working Groups
Electoral Wards Affected: All

Specific Implications For:

Equality and Diversity
Community Cohesion
Narrowing the Gap

Ward Members consulted
(referred to in report)

1.0

Introduction

1.1

The Scrutiny Board on 23rd June 2008 established a Skills Working Group and a
Small Businesses Working Group to draft suitable terms of reference for consideration
by the Board with a view to undertaking inquiries on these issues.

2.0

Skills Working Group

2.1

The Skills Working Group comprising of Councillors Bentley, Driver and Yeadon met
on the 3rd July and a note of that meeting is attached for consideration by the Board.

2.2

Draft terms of reference will be submitted to the Working Group for further discussion
shortly and their recommendations for an inquiry on skills will be submitted to the
Board meeting on 25th September 2008 for approval.

2.3

Councillor J Lewis expressed an interest to be a Member of the Working Group and
he has had discussions with the Principal Scrutiny Advisor. Councillor Lewis will be
invited to attend the next meeting of the working group when it considers the draft
terms of reference.

3.0

Small Businesses Working Group

3.1

Arrangements have been made for the Small Business Working Group to meet on the
18th July 2008 and a note of that meeting will be circulated to Members of the Board
for consideration today.

4.0

Recommendations

4.1

The Board is asked to receive and comment upon the meetings of the Working
Group and to note progress to date.
Page 189

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 190

Scrutiny Board (City & Regional Partnerships)
Skills Working Group
Meeting held on 3rd July 2008
Present:
Councillor Sue Bentley (Chair)
Councillor Geoff Driver
Councillor Lucinda Yeadon
Others in Attendance:
Robert Norreys, Head of Regional Policy, Executive Support
Melanie Taylor, Projects Officer, Executive Support
Dylan Griffiths, Project Manager (Policy), Executive Support
Martin Dean, Deputy Chief Executive, Leeds Initiative
Richard Mills, Principal Scrutiny Adviser, Democratic Services
1.0

Introduction

1.1

It was reported that Scrutiny Board (City & Regional Partnerships) at its meeting on
23rd June 2008 had agreed to establish a Skills Working Group to look at establishing
an inquiry on skills and to draw up suitable terms of reference for consideration by the
Board.

1.2

The Board wanted to undertake an inquiry that would add value to the work being
carried out by a range of agencies and partners to improve the skills of our working
population.

1.3

The Working Group consisted of Councillors Bentley, Driver and Yeadon.
Councillor James Lewis had also expressed an interest in being a member of this
Working Group at the June Board meeting.

2.0

Issues Discussed

2.1

It was reported that MAAs (multi area agreements) are being developed at a
city regional and / or sub-regional level but not regionally and will bring together key
partners in flexible arrangements to tackle issues that are best addressed in
partnership, such as skills deficits, housing market imbalances, transport links and
other infrastructure projects. The MAA is also about agreeing a new relationship with
government departments.

2.2

Leeds City Region MAA is around skills and transport and officers reported that the
agreement is due to be signed shortly and was designed to give teeth to the city
regional and place-shaping agenda, by providing the framework for more effective
leadership across sectors and geographic and organisational boundaries.

2.3

A number of skills issues were discussed and commented upon including:
• the role of the Learning and Skills Council as the lead agency.
• the fact that the Council is a relatively minor partner.
• the organisations responsible for children up to 19 years and beyond
• the fact that often investment in skills is almost invisible.
• how to improve our links at a city, area and regional level and the current
sensitivity around the skills agenda at this time.
• role of colleges and employers in delivering improved skills to the labour
market.
• 8,000 young people leave school
and colleges in Leeds each year and join
Page 191

•
•

•
•
•
•
•
•

•
3.0

its workforce of some 450,000. It required a great deal of effort to improve
skill levels by 1% as students leaving with level 2 & 3 qualifications.
except as an employer the Council is far removed from improving skills.
the various agencies involved in this matter including the Learning and
Skills Council, Sector Skills Council, Chamber of Commerce, different
colleges, private providers, national brokers and the Government’s choice
agenda “Train to Gain”.
issues around worklessness and skills.
migrant workers.
overlap of the Council’s role and the 3rd age.
end of the Learning and Skills Council in 2011.
future responsibility for 16 -19year olds and Every Child Matters.
the likely establishment of a government quango and the likelihood of
Leeds obtaining a contract that would contribute to the making of a more
coherent skills plan.
the agenda for improved economic performance.

Issues Raised by Members
After further discussion Members identified the following specific areas of concern,
any one of which, could be suitable for a Scrutiny Board inquiry:
•

the need to identify who are making the key decisions on skills and training,
where is the democratic input, what threatens our ability to make choices as
to where the funding comes from, are we narrowing the gap or is it getting
wider, the future of FE in Leeds and why are 3 colleges merging not 5 and
who decided this? how successful has this process been and what are the
measures in place to determine whether we are succeeding or not given our
limited involvement?

•

the need to consider the responsibilities employers have in identifying the
skills it requires in the short, medium and long term. Members commented
that with some notable exceptions employers had not been very successful
in this area and wanted to explore what the Government’s “Train To Gain”
agenda would contribute to this and the role the organisations like the
Chamber of Commerce play, if any, in making a positive contribution to the
skills agenda?

•

the fact that transport is a major and fundamental issue to the successful
delivery of improving the skills of its workforce.

•

the Multi Area Agreement (MAA) for transport and skills in the Leeds City
Region.

4.0

Recommendations of the Member Working Group

4.1

The Working Group asked that:
(i)
suitable terms of reference be prepared for an inquiry that looks at the Multi
Area Agreement (MAA) for transport and skills in the Leeds City Region and
also the future of FE in Leeds.
(ii)
that the draft terms of reference be submitted to the Working Group prior to
them being considered by Scrutiny Board (City and Regional Partnerships).
(iii)
a note of today’s meeting be submitted to Scrutiny Board (City and Regional
Partnerships) on 21st July 2008.

Page 192

Agenda Item 12
Originator:

Richard Mills

Tel:247 4557
Report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development
Scrutiny Board (City and Regional Partnerships)
Date: 21st July 2008
Subject: Current Work Programme
Electoral Wards Affected: All

Specific Implications For:

Equality and Diversity
Community Cohesion
Ward Members consulted
(referred to in report)

Narrowing the Gap

1.0

Introduction

1.1

Appendix 1 to this report provides Members with a copy of the Board’s current
Work Programme.

1.2

Appendix 2 is the current Forward Plan of Key Decisions for the period 1st July to
31st October 2008.

1.3

Appendix 3 provides Members of the Board with the latest Executive Board minutes

2.0

Recommendations

2.1

The Board is requested to:
(i)

Determine from these documents whether there are any additional items the
Board would wish to add to its Work Programme.

(ii)

Receive and make any changes to the attached Work Programme following
decisions made at today’s meeting.

Page 193

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 194

Page 195
To consider draft terms of reference
for an inquiry on the VCFS

Key:
CCFA / RFS – Community call for action / request for scrutiny
RP – Review of existing policy
DP – Development of new policy
MSR – Monitoring scrutiny recommendations
PM – Performance management
B – Briefings (Including potential areas for scrutiny)
SC – Statutory consultation
CI – Call in

Skills and Small Businesses Working To report on progress of the Skills
Groups
Working Group and Small
Businesses Working Group

Inquiry Voluntary Community and
Faith Sector

The Board in June 2008 established
these working groups to consider
and identify possible areas for
scrutiny and develop suitable terms
of reference.

The Board in June 2008 requested
that draft terms of reference be
submitted to the Board meeting
today for consideration.

RP / DP

RP / DP

RFS

B

Type of
item

APPENDIX 1

This request was referred at the
Board meeting in June under
consideration of its work programme.
It was agreed to invite them to the
meeting today.

To consider a request for Scrutiny
from Leeds University Union
concerning University Fees

Request for Scrutiny

Notes

Deadline for receipt of Reports10th July 2008
To hear from the Chief Executive
This is a further session in order to
and the Executive Member with
develop the Board’s work
portfolio responsibility for
programme for 2008/09
Development & Regeneration and
the Chief Executive

Description

Meeting date – 21st July 2008
Input to Work Programme

Item

SCRUTINY BOARD (CITY AND REGIONAL PARTNERSHIPS) OUTLINE WORK PROGRAMME (JULY) 2008

Page 196

Description

Notes

Key:
CCFA / RFS – Community call for action / request for scrutiny
RP – Review of existing policy
DP – Development of new policy
MSR – Monitoring scrutiny recommendations
PM – Performance management
B – Briefings (Including potential areas for scrutiny)
SC – Statutory consultation
CI – Call in

MSR

MSR

PM

RP / DP

Type of
item

APPENDIX 1

Meeting date – 20th November 2008
Deadline for receipt of Reports 11th November 2008
Invitation to the Chief Executive and To hear from the Chief Executive on The Board in June 2008 took the
Chair of the Leeds Initiative
work being undertaken to Narrow the view that it would be appropriate to
Narrowing the Gap Executive
Gap through our partner
monitor progress through the
organisations
submission of a quarterly or half
yearly report to this Board and from
our partners their concerns &
successes
th
Meeting date – 17 December 2008
Deadline for receipt of Reports 8th December 2008
Tracking Recommendations
To consider a report on progress in
implementing the Board’s
recommendations to date.
th
Meeting date – 15 January 2009
Deadline for receipt of Reports 6th January 2009
Annual Report on Performance
To receive an Annual Report on
At the Board meeting in June 2008
against the Leeds Strategic Plan
Performance against the Leeds
officers recommended that this
Strategic Plan
Board was appropriately placed to
take an overview of this document

Meeting date – 25th September 2008
Deadline for receipt of Reports 16th September 2008
Session 1 Voluntary Community
To consider a report
The Board included this in its work
Faith Sector
programme at the June meeting
Meeting date – 23rd October 2008
Deadline for receipt of Reports 14th October 2008

Item

SCRUTINY BOARD (CITY AND REGIONAL PARTNERSHIPS) OUTLINE WORK PROGRAMME (JULY) 2008

Page 197
Councillors Bentley, Driver and
Yeadon

Skills

Key:
CCFA / RFS – Community call for action / request for scrutiny
RP – Review of existing policy
DP – Development of new policy
MSR – Monitoring scrutiny recommendations
PM – Performance management
B – Briefings (Including potential areas for scrutiny)
SC – Statutory consultation
CI – Call in

Councillors Bentley, Atha, Kendal

Membership

Working Groups

To approve the Board’s contribution
to the Scrutiny Boards Annual
Report 2008/09.

Small Businesses

Working group

Meeting date – April 2009
Annual Report

Meeting held on 3rd July 2008.
RP/ DP
Discussed with officers and Leeds
Initiative possible areas for an
inquiry and agreed that draft terms of
reference be drawn up on the MAA

Dates of
meetings
RP / DP

Type of
item

APPENDIX 1

Meeting arranged to be held on 18th
July to discuss developing terms of
reference for an inquiry on small
businesses

Progress update

Deadline for receipt of Reports February 2009

Meeting date – 26th March 2009

Notes

Deadline for receipt of Reports 17th February 2009

Description

Meeting date – 26th February 2009

Item

SCRUTINY BOARD (CITY AND REGIONAL PARTNERSHIPS) OUTLINE WORK PROGRAMME (JULY) 2008

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 198

Page 199

FORWARD PLAN OF KEY DECISIONS

1 July 2008 – 31 October 2008

What is the Forward Plan?
The Forward Plan is a list of the key decisions the Authority intends to take during the period 1 July 2008 – 31 October
2008. The Plan is updated monthly and is available to the public 14 days before the beginning of each month.
What is a Key Decision?
A Key decision, as defined in the Council’s Constitution is an executive decision which is likely to:
• result in the Authority incurring expenditure or making savings over £250,000 per annum, or
• have a significant effect on communities living or working in an area comprising 2 or more wards
Page 200

What does the Forward Plan tell me?
The Plan gives information about:
Ø
Ø
Ø
Ø
Ø

what key decisions are coming forward in the next four months
when those key decisions are likely to be made
who will make those decisions
what consultation will be undertaken
who you can make representations to

Who takes key decisions?
Under the Authority’s Constitution, key decisions are taken by the Executive Board or Officers acting under delegated
powers.
Who can I contact?
Each entry in the Plan indicates the names of all the relevant people to contact about that particular item. In addition,
the last page of the Forward Plan gives a complete list of all Executive Board members.
How do I make contact?

Page 201

Wherever possible, full contact details are listed in the individual entries in the Forward Plan. If you are unsure how to
make contact, please ring Leeds City Council and staff there will be able to assist you:
Leeds City Council - Telephone: 0113 2474357
How do I get copies of agenda papers?
The agenda papers for Executive Board meetings are available five working days before the meeting from:
Ian Walton, Governance Services, Civic Hall, Portland Crescent, Leeds, LS1 1UR
Telephone: 0113 2474350
Fax: 0113 3951599
Email: cxd.councilandexec@leeds.gov.uk

On occasions, the papers you request may contain exempt or confidential information. If this is the case, it will be
explained why it will not be possible to make copies available.
Where can I get copies of the Plan?
Copies of the Plan are available free of charge upon request to Leeds City Council. The Plan is regularly updated and
for legal reasons is formally published on a monthly basis on the following dates:
2008 2009

Page 202

17th July 2008
15th August 2008
16th September 2008
17th October 2008
14th November 2008

17th December 2008
16th January 2009
13th February 2009
17th March 2009
16th April 2009

About this publication
For enquiries about the Forward Plan of Key Decisions please:
E-mail: cxd.councilandexec@leeds.gov.uk or telephone: 0113 247 4357
Visit our website www.leeds.gov.uk for more information on council services, departments, plans and reports.
This publication can also be made available in Braille or audio cassette. Please call: 0113 247 4357
If you do not speak English and need help in understanding this document, please phone: 0113 247 4357 and state the
name of your language.

We will then make arrangements for an interpreter to contact you.
charge for interpretation.
(Bengali):-

(Chinese):-

Page 203

(Hindi):-

(Punjabi):-

(Urdu):-

We can assist with any language and there is no

LEEDS CITY COUNCIL
FORWARD PLAN OF KEY DECISIONS
For the period 1 July 2008 to 31 October 2008
Key Decisions

Decision Maker

Expected
Date of
Decision

Proposed
Consultation

Documents to be
Considered by Decision
Maker

Lead Officer
(To whom
representations should
be made)

Page 204

School Devolved Formula
Capital Budgets 2008/09
To seek approval to carry
out capital works and incur
expenditure at Leeds
schools, to be funded by
Devolved Formula Capital
grant.

Director of
Children's Services

1/7/08

Design and Cost report

Director of Children's
Services

Major Refurbishment and
General Building Works
2008/09
To authorise the incurring
of £2,000,000 of
expenditure in respect of
Major Refurbishment and
General Building Works
Programme.

Director of
Children's Services

1/7/08

Design and Cost report

Director of Children's
Services

Key Decisions

Decision Maker

Expected
Date of
Decision

Proposed
Consultation

Documents to be
Considered by Decision
Maker

Lead Officer
(To whom
representations should
be made)

Page 205

Big Lottery Funding for
Construction of Fixed Play
Areas - Capital Scheme
14769
Approval of the fully funded
injection of £820k from the
Big Lottery Fund into the
2008/09 Capital
Programme for the design
and construction of eight
play areas throughout the
City. The play areas are
Cragside Recreation Area,
Deepdale Park, Harehills
Park, Hesketh Lane Park,
Meanwood Park, Middleton
Park, Rookwood Park and
Tyresal Park.

Director of
Resources

1/7/08

Ward Members / Local
Schools and Local
Community

Design and Cost Report

Director of Resources

Care of Looked after
Children - Independent
Fostering Agencies
Award of a framework
contract to various
Independent Fostering
Agencies

Chief Officer Children and Young
People's Care

1/7/08

Full tender exercise
involving looked after
young people

Panel Report

Director of Children's
Services

Key Decisions

Decision Maker

Expected
Date of
Decision

Proposed
Consultation

Documents to be
Considered by Decision
Maker

Page 206

Lower Wortley Road
Improvements
Authority to Spend from
DOR

Director of
Resources

1/7/08

None

Transforming Social Care
In response to the
government agenda
“Transforming Social Care”
(DoH LA Circular (DH)
(2008)1) there will need to
be a variety of changes to
staffing arrangements
predominantly within Adult
Social Care.

Director of Adult
Social Services

1/7/08

As a minimum the
Local Government Circular
Executive Board
LAC (DH) (2008)
member, Staff and
Trade Unions.
However a
consultation plan will
be developed to
ensure all
stakeholders are
consulted and
informed appropriately.

At this stage it is not
determined what these are
but as action plans are
progressed it is expected
that there will be a range of
changes to resourcing to
ensure achievement of
targets. There will be a
series of reports as this is
developed.

Design and Cost Report
and Delegated Decision
Notice

Lead Officer
(To whom
representations should
be made)
Director of Resources

Director of Adult Social
Services

Page 207

Key Decisions

Decision Maker

Expected
Date of
Decision

Proposed
Consultation

Documents to be
Considered by Decision
Maker

Lead Officer
(To whom
representations should
be made)

Funding for the
Development of New
Childcare Places and
Extended Services
To inject £11.4 million over
3 years into the Children’s
Services Capital
Programme and give
authority to incur this
expenditure.

Executive Board
(Portfolio: Children's
Services)

16/7/08

Education Leeds,
Children’s Services,
Providers and
Stakeholders citywide.

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

Director of Children's
Services

Otley - Heavy Goods
Vehicle Traffic
To seek approval for
proposals for HGV
Management in the Otley
area.

Executive Board
(Portfolio:
Development and
Regeneration)

16/7/08

Ward Members,
Neighbouring Local
Authorities

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

Director of City
Development

Personalised Day Support
for Older People
To agree service
improvement plan to
deliver increased choice
and more personalised day
activities for older people.

Executive Board
(Portfolio: Adult
Health and Social
Care)

16/7/08

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

Director of Adult Social
Services

Key Decisions

Decision Maker

Expected
Date of
Decision

Proposed
Consultation

Documents to be
Considered by Decision
Maker

Lead Officer
(To whom
representations should
be made)

Executive Board
(Portfolio:
Development and
Regeneration)

16/7/08

Key stakeholders have
been involved in the
development of the
scheme and have
backed the proposals.
Ward members will be
consulted as part of
preliminary design. A
publicity campaign will
be carried out prior to
the scheme being
brought online.

The document to be issued
to the decision maker with
the agenda for the meeting

Director of City
Development

Independent Living PFI
Project
Approval of the revised
scope and affordability of
the Independent Living
Project for Children’s
Services.

Executive Board
(Portfolio: Children's
Services)

16/7/08

To seek approval to
proceed to implement
the Children’s
Independent Livnig
Project as a City
Council Change to the
wider Independent
Living Project, with a
revised scope and
affordability position to
that previously
considered by
Executive Board.

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

Director of Children's
Services

Page 208

Camera Enforcement of
Bus Lanes
Approval to the imposition
of penalty charges and
undertake civil enforcement
in respect of bus lane
contraventions.

Page 209

Key Decisions

Decision Maker

Managing Pupil Numbers
at Swallow Hill Community
College
Approval of the strategy
proposed to manage the
excess in pupil numbers in
the existing Wortley High
School building, and
approval of the capital
injection of £1.19m to meet
the cost of required
refurbishment and ICT
works.

Executive Board
(Portfolio: Children's
Services)

Expected
Date of
Decision
16/7/08

Proposed
Consultation

School & Temporary
Governing Body

Documents to be
Considered by Decision
Maker
The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

Lead Officer
(To whom
representations should
be made)
Chief Executive of
Education Leeds

Key Decisions

Decision Maker

Expected
Date of
Decision

Proposed
Consultation

Documents to be
Considered by Decision
Maker

Lead Officer
(To whom
representations should
be made)

Page 210

Bankside- Provision of
Executive Board
Newly Built School
(Portfolio: Children's
• To note the content Services)
of
the
report
detailing
the
proposed scheme to
provide new build
school at Bankside
Primary School.
• Give in principle
approval to proceed
with the scheme and
develop the design.

16/7/08

Consultation already
undertaken includes
public meeting with
Governors, parents,
school users and
community in
attendance. Future
consultations include
full ward councillor
briefing, full
consultation with
governing body,
school users including
parents, pupils and
community users, and
other Council
Services.

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

Chief Executive of
Education Leeds

Increased admission limit
at Harehills Primary School
To permanently increase
the admission limit from 60
to 90 pupils per year.

16/7/08

Public consultation
took place during
2007. Report will
consider any
representations
following publication of
statutory notice.

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

Chief Executive of
Education Leeds

Executive Board
(Portfolio: Children's
Services)

Key Decisions

Decision Maker

Page 211

New Leaf Leisure Centres - Executive Board
Approval of Final Business (Portfolio: Leisure)
Case, Affordability and off
site Capital Works
Approval to submit the final
business case to the
Department of Culture
Media and Sport for
approval. Approval to an
injection into the Capital
programme and authority
to spend in respect of off
site highway works at
Morley and Armley leisure
centres and a multi use
games area at Armley.
Notification of the securing
of third party funding to part
off set the highway costs.

Expected
Date of
Decision
16/7/08

Proposed
Consultation

Documents to be
Considered by Decision
Maker

Ward members,
Leisure centre users,
Executive Member for
Learning and Leisure.

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

Lead Officer
(To whom
representations should
be made)
Director of City
Development

Key Decisions

Decision Maker

Expected
Date of
Decision

Proposed
Consultation

Documents to be
Considered by Decision
Maker

Lead Officer
(To whom
representations should
be made)

Page 212

Design & Cost Report
Yeadon High StreetCapital scheme no:
12151/YEA/000
Approval is sought to
spend £260K of Town and
District Centre
Regeneration Fund monies
to contribute to the highway
improvement in Yeadon
Town Street.

Executive Board
(Portfolio:
Development and
Regeneration)

16/7/08

Ward Members,
The report to be issued to
Members of the Public, the decision maker with the
Project Yeadon,
agenda for the meeting
DREAM and LEDA.

Director of City
Development

Options appraisalReprovision of East Moor
Secure Children's Home
Agreement to capital
expenditure for building
new secure children’s
home on a different site

Executive Board
(Portfolio: Children's
Services)

16/7/08

Asset Management
Board

Director of Children's
Services

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

Key Decisions

Page 213

Affordable housing targets,
housing mix and student
housing
Adopt informal planning
policy to broaded housing
mix and increase the
affordable housing targets
and clarify that student
housing developments will
be considered for
affordable housing and
existing policy concerning
affordable housing will be
applied. Apply the changes
to applications received on
or after Monday 28th July
2008.

Decision Maker

Executive Board
(Portfolio: City
Development)

Expected
Date of
Decision
16/7/08

Proposed
Consultation

Documents to be
Considered by Decision
Maker

Consultation has taken
place with lead
members and also
with a range of
housing developers,
land owners and
agents (details within
the report)

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

Lead Officer
(To whom
representations should
be made)
Director of City
Development

Key Decisions

Decision Maker

Expected
Date of
Decision

Proposed
Consultation

Documents to be
Considered by Decision
Maker

Lead Officer
(To whom
representations should
be made)

Page 214

Leeds Sports Trust
Approval not to proceed
with the development of a
Trust to manage the
Council’s Sports and Active
Recreation Service and
that further work be
undertaken and reports
brought back as to future
options to address the
challenges faced by the
service.

Executive Board
(Portfolio: Leisure)

16/7/08

Considerable
consultation
already
undertaken and
ongoing with key
stakeholder
groups including Service staff;
Service users; the
Unions; the
general public;
various LCC
Members/
officers.

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

Director of City
Development

Leeds Future Transport
Strategy
Approve the capital
contribution to the
development costs to be
funded from the Integrated
Transport Scheme 99609
within the approved Capital
Programme eligible for
100% Government funding.

Executive Board
(Portfolio:
Development and
Regeneration)

16/7/08

To be carried out as
part of the Transport
Strategy development.

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

Director of City
Development

Key Decisions

Decision Maker

Expected
Date of
Decision

Proposed
Consultation

Documents to be
Considered by Decision
Maker

Page 215

New Generation Transport
(NGT) Update
Fully funded capital
injection to cover LCC
contribution to the
development of the NGT
Major scheme Business
Case.

Executive Board
(Portfolio:
Development and
Regeneration)

16/7/08

Public and
Stakeholder
consultation will take
place from Autumn
2008 as part of the
development of the
Major Scheme
Business Case.

The document to be issued
to the decision maker with
the agenda for the meeting

Leeds International Pool
Lisbon Street Leeds 1
To consider terms relating
to the sale of the Leeds
International Pool.

Executive Board
(Portfolio:
Development and
Regeneration)

16/7/08

Members of the
Council

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

Lead Officer
(To whom
representations should
be made)

Director of City
Development

Key Decisions

Decision Maker

Expected
Date of
Decision

Proposed
Consultation

Documents to be
Considered by Decision
Maker

Lead Officer
(To whom
representations should
be made)

Page 216

Request to waiver contract
procedure rule 12 and
enter into a Supporting
People contract with Leeds
Partnership Foundation
Trust for the Specialised
Supported Living Service 1
(multiple disability) and
Specialised Supported
Living Service 2 (complex
Authorisation to waiver
contract procedure rule 12
and enter into a Supporting
People contract with Leeds
Partnership Foundation
Trust for the Specialised
Supported Living Service 1
(multiple disability) and
Specialised Supported
Living Service 2 (complex
behaviour).

Director of
Environment and
Neighbourhoods

31/7/08

N/A

Report to be presented to
the Delegated Decision
Panel

Director of
Environment and
Neighbourhoods

Financial Management
Restructure
Approval of the Restructure
of the Authority wide
Financial Management
function.

Director of
Resources

1/8/08

Extensive consultation
with Unions and other
stakeholders including
staff planned from late
June 2008.

Chief Officer Delegated
Decision report

Director of Resources

Key Decisions

Decision Maker

Expected
Date of
Decision

Proposed
Consultation

Documents to be
Considered by Decision
Maker

Lead Officer
(To whom
representations should
be made)

Page 217

Staff Structure for
Corporate Property
Management
Approval of a staffing
structure for the new
Corporate Property
Management Services
within the Resources
Directorate.

Director of
Resources

1/8/08

Consultation with staff
and Unions to take
place over June and
July

Delegated Decision Report

Director of Resources

Contract for Intensive 7
Day Family Support
Award of Contract

Chief Officer - Early
Years and Youth
Service

1/9/08

Client Department

Contract Award Report

Director of Children's
Services

Parks and Green Space
Strategy
To seek approval for the
publication of the Parks
and Green Space Strategy.

Executive Board
(Portfolio: Leisure)

2/9/08

Extensive consultation
has taken place
throughout the
development of the
strategy with a range
of stakeholders and
members.

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

Director of City
Development

Key Decisions

Decision Maker

Expected
Date of
Decision

Proposed
Consultation

Documents to be
Considered by Decision
Maker

Lead Officer
(To whom
representations should
be made)

Page 218

A653 Dewsbury Road Bus
Priority Measures, Ring
Roard Beeston Park Bus
Land
Permission to construct the
scheme, subject to
satisfactory funding
arrangements being in
place on return of tenders.
The works are required to
provide a quality bus
corridor identified in the
LTP and are an intrinsic
part of the Yorkshire Bus
Initiative.

Executive Board
(Portfolio:
Development and
Regeneration)

2/9/08

Initial Member
consultation has taken
place.

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

Director of City
Development

Roundhay Mansion
Approval of a Preferred
and Reserve Bidder for the
tenancy of the Roundhay
Mansion.

Executive Board
(Portfolio: Leisure)

2/9/08

Executive Member for
Leisure and other
Executive Board
Members

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

Director of City
Development

Pudsey Bus Station
Redevelopment
Approval to construct the
highway works associated
with the redevelopment of
Pudsey Bus Station

Executive Board
(Portfolio:
Development and
Regeneration)

2/9/08

As this is a joint
LCC/Metro scheme,
joint consultation is
ongoing

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

Director of City
Development

Key Decisions

Decision Maker

Expected
Date of
Decision

Proposed
Consultation

Documents to be
Considered by Decision
Maker

Lead Officer
(To whom
representations should
be made)

Page 219

Street Design Guide
Approval of Supplementary
Planning Document

Executive Board
(Portfolio:
Development and
Regeneration)

2/9/08

Already carried out

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

Director of City
Development

Review of the Council's
lettings policy
Approval of the revised
Lettings Policy. The lettings
policy is reviewed as part
of a continuous process
improvement, as a result of
consultation with
stakeholders including
Arms Length Management
Organisations, Registered
Social Landlords, voluntary
sector agencies and
customers.

Executive Board
(Portfolio:
Neighbourhoods
and Housing)

8/10/08

Customers waiting to
be rehoused, Leeds
City Council tenants,
Arms Length
Management
Organisations, Belle
Isle Tenant
Management
Organisation,
Registered Social
Landlords, Leeds
Tenants’ Federation,
Legal Services,
Voluntary agencies

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

Director of
Environment and
Neighbourhoods

NOTES
Key decisions are those executive decisions:
• which result in the authority incurring expenditure or making savings over £250,000 per annum, or
• are likely to have a significant effect on communities living or working in an area comprising two or more wards

Page 220

Executive Board Portfolios

Executive Member

Central and Corporate

Councillor Richard Brett

Development and Regeneration

Councillor Andrew Carter

Environmental Services

Councillor Steve Smith

Neighbourhoods and Housing

Councillor John Leslie Carter

Leisure

Councillor John Procter

Children’s Services

Councillor Stewart Golton

Learning

Councillor Richard Harker

Adult Health and Social Care

Councillor Peter Harrand

Leader of the Labour Group

Councillor Keith Wakefield

Leader of the Morley Borough
Independent Group

Councillor Robert Finnigan

Advisory Member

Councillor Judith Blake

In cases where Key Decisions to be taken by the Executive Board are not included in the Plan, 5 days notice of the intention to take such
decisions will be given by way of the agenda for the Executive Board meeting.

LEEDS CITY COUNCIL
BUDGET AND POLICY FRAMEWORK DECISIONS
Decisions

Decision Maker

Budget

Council

Council Plan

Expected Date
of Decision

Documents to be considered
by Decision Maker
Report to be issued to the
decision maker with the agenda
for the meeting

Council

Via Executive
Board

Report to be issued to the
decision maker with the agenda
for the meeting

Children & Young
People’s Plan

Council

Via Executive
Board

Report to be issued to the
decision maker with the agenda
for the meeting

Community Strategy

Council

Via Executive
Board

Report to be issued to the
decision maker with the agenda
for the meeting

Council Business
Plan

Council

Via Executive
Board

Report to be issued to the
decision maker with the agenda
for the meeting

Crime and Disorder
Reduction Strategy

Council

Via Executive
Board

Report to be issued to the
decision maker with the agenda
for the meeting

Page 221

Proposed
Consultation
Via Executive
Board

Lead Officer

Decision Maker

Development Plan
documents

Council

Local Transport Plan

Council

Via Executive
Board

Plans and alterations
which together
comprise the
Development plan
Youth Justice Plan

Council

Via Executive
Board

Report to be issued to the
decision maker with the agenda
for the meeting

Council

Via Executive
Board

Report to be issued to the
decision maker with the agenda
for the meeting

Licensing Authority
Policy Statement

Council

Via Executive
Board

Report to be issued to the
decision maker with the agenda
for the meeting

Leeds Strategic Plan

Council

Via Executive
Board

Report to be issued to the
decision maker with the agenda
for the meeting

Safer Leeds
Partnership Plan
2008

Council

Via Executive
Board

Report to be issued to the
decision maker with the agenda
for the meeting

Health and Wellbeing Council
Partnership Plan

Via Executive
Board

Report to be issued to the
decision maker with the agenda
for the meeting

Page 222

Decisions

Expected Date
of Decision

Proposed
Consultation
Via Executive
Board

Documents to be considered
by Decision Maker
Report to be issued to the
decision maker with the agenda
for the meeting
Report to be issued to the
decision maker with the agenda
for the meeting

Lead Officer

Decisions

Decision Maker

Economic
Development
Strategy

Council

Climate Change
Strategy

Leeds Housing
Strategy

Expected Date
of Decision

Proposed
Consultation
Via Executive
Board

Documents to be considered
by Decision Maker
Report to be issued to the
decision maker with the agenda
for the meeting

Council

Via Executive
Board

Report to be issued to the
decision maker with the agenda
for the meeting

Council

Via Executive
Board

Report to be issued to the
decision maker with the agenda
for the meeting

Lead Officer

Page 223

NOTES:
The Council’s Constitution, in Article 4, defines those plans and strategies which make up the Budget and Policy Framework. Details of the
consultation process are published in the Council’s Forward Plan as required under the Budget and Policy Framework.
Full Council ( a meeting of all Members of Council) are responsible for the adoption of the Budget and Policy Framework.

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 224

